VILLAGE OF BELCARRA
FINANCE STANDING COMMITTEE MEETING
AGENDA
Village Hall
December 6, 2023

This meeting is live streamed and recorded by the Village of Belcarra
To view the meeting click: Village of Belcarra - YouTube

Committee Members

Mayor Jamie Ross
Councillor Carolina Clark
Councillor Joe Elworthy
Councillor Janet Ruzycki
Councillor Liisa Wilder

1. Call to Order

The Chair will call the meeting to order.

2.  Approval of Agenda
2.1 Agenda for December 6, 2023

Recommendation:

That the Agenda for December 6, 2023 be approved as circulated.

Adoption of Minutes
3.1 Finance Standing Committee Meeting Minutes, July 16, 2023
Recommendation:

That the Minutes from the Finance Standing Committee Meeting held July 16, 2023 be
adopted.

New and Unfinished Business

4.1 Edward Van den Berg of LandInfo Technologies, presentation regarding the Village of
Belcarra Asset Management (AM) data/information including the capabilities and
functionality of AM with the geographic information system (GIS)

Page 1 of 2

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Committees 2022 - 2023\Finance Standing Committee 2023\Agendas 2023\2023 12 06 Meeting\2023
12 06 Finance Committee Agenda.docx


https://www.youtube.com/@villageofbelcarra9617/streams

Finance Standing Committee Agenda December 6, 2023

4.2 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultation, PowerPoint presentation regarding the Village of
Belcarra’'s Road Map to Financial Sustainability.

4.3 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated December 6, 2023 regarding the Draft
Financial Sustainability Report - The Village of Belcarra’s Road Map to Financial
Sustainability

5. Adjournment

Recommendation:
That the December 6, 2023 Finance Standing Committee Meeting be adjourned.

Page 2 of 2

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Committees 2022 - 2023\Finance Standing Committee 2023\Agendas 2023\2023 12 06 Meeting\2023
12 06 Finance Committee Agenda.docx



3.1

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA

FINANCE STANDING COMMITTEE MEETING
MINUTES

July 17, 2023

This meeting was held in Council Chambers and live streamed at
Village of Belcarra - YouTube

Committee Members in Attendance
Mayor Jamie Ross

Councillor Carolina Clark

Councillor Joe Elworthy

Councillor Janet Ruzycki

Councillor Liisa Wilder

Staff in Attendance

Paula Richardson, Chief Administrative Officer

Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator
Amanda Seibert, Corporate Officer/Recording Secretary

Others in Attendance
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant

We wish to acknowledge that this meeting took place on the unceded territory of the Coast

Salish peoples. Tum-Tumay-Whueton, or Belcarra, is home to an ancestral village of the Tsleil-
Waututh Nation. We are thankful to conduct our work within their territory.

1. CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Ross called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm

2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA
2.1 Finance Standing Committee Meeting, July 17, 2023

Moved by: Councillor Clark
Seconded by: Councillor Ruzycki

That the agenda for the Finance Standing Committee Meeting of July 17, 2023 be
approved as circulated.

CARRIED


https://www.youtube.com/@villageofbelcarra9617/streams

Finance Standing Committee Meeting Minutes July 17, 2023

4.2

ADOPTION OF MINUTES
No items

NEW AND UNFINISHED BUSINESS

Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated July 17, 2023 regarding budget
variances for the period ending June 30, 2023.

The Financial Consultant reviewed the report. He advised that a report will be prepared
three times a year for periods ending June, September and December to compare and

analyze the approved budget with actuals to date. He provided detailed information on

the following and addressed questions from members of the Committee:

Appendix "A" — General Operating Fund Budget Review

Appendix "B" — Water Operating Fund Budget Review

Appendix "C" — Waste & Recycle Depot (WARD) Operating Fund Budget Review
Appendix "D" — Capital Budget Review

Moved by: Councillor Clark
Seconded by: Councillor Wilder

That the report dated July 17, 2023 titled “Budget Variance Report Based on
Results to June 30, 2023 be received into the record for information; and

That the report be forwarded to the July 24, 2023 Regular Council Meeting.
CARRIED

Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated July 17, 2023 regarding Terms of
Reference Village of Belcarra Integrated Long-Term (15-Year) Financial Plan & Related
Community Financial Sustainability Report.

The Financial Consultant reviewed the report and provided details on the Terms of
Reference.

Moved by: Councillor Clark
Seconded by: Councillor Ruzycki

That the report on the Terms of Reference Village of Belcarra Integrated Long-
Term (15-Year) Financial Plan & Related Community Financial Sustainability be
forwarded to the July 24, 2023 Regular Council Meeting; and further

That the Finance Standing Committee recommend that the Terms of Reference for
the Village of Belcarra Integrated Long-Term (15-Year) Financial Plan & Related
Community Financial Sustainability Report be approved by Council.

CARRIED

Page 2 of 3

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Committees 2022 - 2023\Finance Standing Committee 2023\Minutes 2023\2023 06 17 Finance
Standing Committee Meeting Minutes.docx



Finance Standing Committee Meeting Minutes July 17, 2023

4.3

4.4

Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, verbal report regarding Implementing Financial
Plan amendments via Council motions.

The Financial Consultant advised on the importance of financial plan amendments being
done through motions of Council.

Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, verbal report regarding budgeting practices for
capital projects and operations Including the use of contingencies.

The Financial Consultant spoke on budgeting practices for capital projects and
operations in local government. He advised on budgeting for revenues and expenses.
He also advised on the use of a stabilization fund which can be used to offset risk and
provide for unseen expenditures. He spoke on the merits of the use of a contingency
fund rather than placing contingencies into a capital budget and outlined the differences
between a reserve fund, a stabilization fund and a continency fund.

ADJOURNMENT

Moved by: Councillor Wilder
Seconded by: Councillor Clark

That the July 17, 2023 Finance Standing Committee Meeting be adjourned.

CARRIED

The meeting was adjourned at 7:22 pm

Certified Correct:

Jamie Ross Amanda Seibert

Chair

Corporate Officer

Page 3 of 3

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Committees 2022 - 2023\Finance Standing Committee 2023\Minutes 2023\2023 06 17 Finance
Standing Committee Meeting Minutes.docx



4.3

FINANCE STANDING COMMITEE REPORT

Date: December 6, 2023
From: Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant
Subject: Draft Financial Sustainability Report - The Village of Belcarra’s Road Map to Financial

Sustainability

Recommendation:

That the below steps be followed in terms of the Village’s draft Financial Sustainability Report or Road
Map:

1. Committee discussion of Road Map including the associated recommendations;
2. Make final changes to the Road Map based on Committee feedback;

3. Arrange for a community consultation meeting to discuss the Road Map including the financial
plan scenarios (includes draft 2024 budget);

4. Discuss community feedback at Committee Meeting; and

5. Committee makes recommendations to Council in terms of the Road Map and related financial
plan including the final 2024 tax and utility rate increases.

Purpose:

This report introduces the Draft Financial Sustainability Report - The Village of Belcarra’s Road Map to
Financial Sustainability (Financial Sustainability Report, Road Map or Report) and recommends a
process to be followed in terms of next steps with the Road Map.



Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant

Council Report: Draft Financial Sustainability Report - The Village of Belcarra’s Road Map to Financial Sustainability
December 6, 2023

Page 2 of 4

Background:
Council’s strategic priorities work plan includes the following goals and tasks:

MANAGING OUR ASSETS & INFRASTRUCURE

= Complete review and undertake field work to provide breakdown of asset components (including
remaining useful lives) and update GIS system accordingly

= Complete 5-year condition assessment schedule for assessing key assets and update annually

= Complete long-term financial estimates and plan for infrastructure/asset replacements (based on
asset management and condition assessment results)

» Integrate long-term infrastructure/asset replacement plan into long-term financial plan

STEWARDING OUR COMMUNITY & ITS NATURAL ENVIRONMENT
= Completed inventory and mapping of natural assets and include in GIS system

FISCAL MANAGEMENT & FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILTY

= Create long-term (15 years) financial planning model with integration to infrastructure and capital
plans (based on asset management results)

= Produce report for Council and community based on long-term financial plan which also
addresses financial sustainability

The attached draft Village of Belcarra’s Road Map to Financial Sustainability, which includes an Asset
Management Plan, fulfills the above strategic priorities. In completing the Road Map the below Financial
Planning Process & Model (Process) was followed. The Process considered the external and internal
impacts on the Village and the community, Council’s strategic direction and the Village’s services and
financial condition, in creating an Integrated Long-Term (15-year) Financial Plan into which the Asset
Management Plan results were incorporated. The Asset Management Plan (Appendix “H” of the Road
Map) and the related funding analysis, both of which are summarized in the body of the Report, are an
integral part of the Long-Term (15-year) Financial Plan.



Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant

Council Report: Draft Financial Sustainability Report - The Village of Belcarra’s Road Map to Financial Sustainability
December 6, 2023

Page 3 of 4

A number of recommendations have been made throughout the Report, for the Committee’s
consideration. These recommendations are summarized at the end of the Report and have been
categorized as follows:

» Recommendations arising from financial planning (FP);
» Recommendations arising from asset management (AM); and
» Recommendations resulting from financial policy and practice (PP) review.

These recommendations are brought forward for discussion and input purposes and any motions related
to these can be deferred until after the public consultation and input process (see below).

Steps:
The following steps are recommended in terms of the Road Map:
1. Committee discussion of Road Map including the associated recommendations;

2. Make final changes to the Road Map based on Committee feedback;

3. Arrange for a community consultation meeting to discuss the Road Map including the financial
plan scenarios (includes draft 2024 budget);

4. Discuss community feedback at Committee Meeting; and



Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant

Council Report: Draft Financial Sustainability Report - The Village of Belcarra’s Road Map to Financial Sustainability
December 6, 2023

Page 4 of 4

5. Committee makes recommendations to Council in terms of the Road Map and related financial
plan including the final 2024 tax and utility rate increases.

LandIinfo Technologies who were engaged to complete the Asset Management and Natural Assets
Plans (Plans) will be invited to participate in the community consultation session to address any specific
guestions related to the Plans including those related to the sustainability of the Village's assets and
infrastructure.

Asset Management and Financial Sustainability:

The Village of Belcarra now needs to maintain and update its asset and infrastructure data within GIS on
an ongoing basis and conduct regular condition assessments (see schedule for condition assessments
in Asset Management Plan). A process and procedure will be implemented to ensure that the asset
information is kept up to date.

One of the beneficial outcomes of having an Integrated Long-Term Financial Plan (Long-Term Plan)
which incorporates Asset Management Plan information and findings is the ability to see the long-term
consequences of present-day decisions. The Long-Term Plan can be easily updated annually and/or as
financial conditions change or as major projects are being considered, to determine the long-term
consequences or impacts of any proposed spending or changing financial conditions. This should focus
everyone on the Village’s long-term fiscal sustainability and lead to improved decision making.

Summary:

Through the Financial Sustainability Report including the Long-Term Financial and Asset Management
Plan the Village of Belcarra now has the opportunity to see the long-term consequences of present-day
decisions, and to strategically allocate scarce resources in a cost-effective manner with the overall goal
of keeping the Village on a sound and sustainable financial track in terms of providing services and
amenities to its citizens.

Attachment:

= Draft Financial Sustainability Report - The Village of Belcarra’'s Road Map to Financial
Sustainability



December 2023

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 1



Table of Contents

ACKNOWIEAGEMENTS ...ttt 3
Scope of Work and LImitations ........cccocevieeeeeieiesese e eeneeees 3
EXECULIVE SUMMAIY ....ovivieeeeiieeieietese sttt te e st e e sreete e saesaestessessessaeseensensens 4
BACKGrOUNG ..ottt s s st 14
Organizational FIOWCNAIT .........cccooiiiiiee e 16
L070] 121 011 71 2T P PRSI 18
SErategiC DirECHION ..ottt sttt bbb e 22
SrAtEQIC PIAN ..ciiiiiiiee e e e 22
Asset Management PIaNS .........ooo i 23
Official Community Plan (OCP)......cuiiiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeesriiireeee e ssiinneeee s e 23
Financial Policies & GUIdING TENELS ........uveeiieiiiiiiiiriieee e e 23
Economic Outlook & External ENVIrONMEeNt ...........cccoveveeienieneneneneeeceeenes 25
Operations & Financial Condition ..........cccecveievierinire e 27
OPEIALIONS ....etteeeeee e ettt et ettt e e e e e sttt et e e e e e s enbreeeeeeesesennrreeeeeseeanan 27
FINANCIAl OVEIVIEW ....eiiiiiiiiiiiiiee ettt st e s s sareee e 28
REVENUES & EXPENSES ....uuuiiiiiiiiiiiii s 31
General Operating FUNd ...t e e e e 31
Water Operating FUNd ........occviiiieiiee et e e s e e 34
WARD Operating FUNG .......ooociiii ettt seee e e e et e e enae e nreeeeas 36
DEDL & RESEIVES ...eeiiiiiiiiieeiitte ettt ettt e e e e e s eene et e e e e e e s enenee 38
D= o SO UPTSOUPRPP 38
Reserves, Surpluses & Deferred ReVeNUE...........cevveeieeciiiiieee e 40
Property Taxes & ULility RAtES ....ccccivvvicviiiieiiiiiiriiieieee e e e 42
Growth & DeVEIOPMENT .....cciiiiiiiiiieee et e e e e 44
Asset Management Plan & FUNAiNg.........ccocoieiinininininieeeee e 50

(@)Y oY1= PPN 50

FUNding LEVEIS & RESEIVES .....uviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiteee et ssineee e e s s 51
Accumulated Infrastructure Funding Gap .......ccccvveeeeeeeiiiiiiieieeee e 53
Funding Recommendations Asset Management (AM) ........ccccceeeeeeennnnne 54
Integrated Long-Term (15-Year) Financial Plans.........cc.cccccevevevievvneneevenenn, 56
General Operating FUNd ... .ooiieeeeeiiiiee e e eeeeeiiiceee e e eeeeerieee e e e e eeesaraeeeeeeesessnnes 56
Water Operating FUNG........ccviuiiiiieeie et eeeeeet e e e e e e e eeraaee e e e e e e eaaaaa s 59
WARD Operating FUN ......coeviiiiiiieeieeeeeeiiiee e eeeeevatiese e e e e e eentaaes s e e e seennsnnae s 63
Long-Term (15-year) Capital Plans OVErVIEW ........cceeeeeeeeeviiuneieeeeeeeeniiiienseeeenns 67
General Capital Plan.....uuucieeeeeeeeeiiiiee e e eeeevttieseeeeeeeeerareeeeeeseeessaaaeeeeeesensanan 68
Water Capital Plan .....cicueee et e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e eaaans 71
WARD Capital Plan couuuueeeeiieeeiiiiiiee e eeeeeticee e e e e eeeateee e s e e e e eeabaee s e e e e e eaaana s 73
Budget/Financial Plan SCENAIIOS.........ccccveieierierere et 75
Road Map to Financial Sustainability ...........c.cccoeiviiiiniinieieeeseeeeeeee 81
Financial Policies & PractiCes .......cevieieuirieiiiieiiiiiieeeeries e eeree e eenna e 81
Summarized Recommendations for Financial Sustainability ........c.c.cccoveeiinnnnis 83
Appendix “A” - Financial Planning Assumptions & Sensitivities.............ccc....... 87
Appendix “B” — GlOSSary of TEIMS ...cc.coiiiiiiiererese et 88

Appendix “C” — Detailed Long-Term (15-Year) General Operating Fund
FINANCIAL PIAN ..o 91

Appendix “D” — Detailed Long-Term (15-Year) Water Operating Fund

FINANCIAL PIAN ..ot 93
Appendix “E” — Detailed Long-Term (15-Year) WARD Operating Fund

FINANCIAL PIAN ...ttt 94
Appendix “F” — Detailed Long-Term (15-Year) Capital Plans.........c..cccccceee.e. 95
Appendix “G” — Graph, Map and Table INdeX.......c.ccoceeeeereieneninenenceceieenen 97
Appendix “H” — Asset Management Plan .........ccococvveeeeeveenenenesce e 99

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 2



A Village between forest and sea

Acknowledgements

This Road Map to Financial Sustainability includes the results of the Village
of Belcarra’s Integrated Long-Term Financial and Asset Management Plans
(together the Road Map, Project or Report). This Road Map has been
prepared by Ken Bjorgaard, CPA, CGA, MBA, Local Government Financial
Consultant, with the input of Village of Belcarra staff. The Asset
Management Plan (Appendix “H”) that comprises a significant component
of the Village’s Integrated Long-Term Financial Plan has been compiled by
LandInfo Technologies, with input and consultation from Village of Belcarra
staff and Ken Bjorgaard. Land Info technologies is a firm which specializes in
providing asset management solutions for small communities in Canada.

The Village of Belcarra is thankful for the grant funding (provided by the
Ministry of Municipal Affairs & Housing and administered by the UBCM) for
this important Project.

Scope of Work and Limitations

This Road Map, which includes the Village’s Integrated Long-Term Financial
and Asset Management Plans, serves as a conceptual framework or model
for guiding decision making by the Village of Belcarra (Village) and its
Council. This includes addressing the challenges associated with the
allocation of limited resources, public expectations around services,
competing priorities and the need for affordability from both taxpayer's and
rate payer’s perspectives.

The Village, like other local governments, has to fund programs and services
with limited funding, while addressing rising costs, increased service
responsibilities and aging infrastructure.

However, the Village is in a unique position in that it has limited options for
growth or development, compared to some other communities. This means
that the Village has to be very prudent when it comes to spending and
controlling costs.

Through this Road Map the Village now has the opportunity to see the long-
term consequences of present-day decisions, and to strategically allocate
scarce resources in a cost-effective manner with the overall goal of keeping
the Village on a sound and sustainable financial track in terms of providing
services and amenities to its citizens.

The Village’s Integrated Long-Term Financial and Asset Management Plans
(Plans) within this Road Map have been produced using the best
information available and the Plans will need to be updated as new data or
information becomes available including data related to the Village’s
infrastructure and assets.

Map 1: The Road Map to Financial Sustainability

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 3



A Village between forest and sea

Executive Summary

This “Road Map to Financial Sustainability” Report provides a
comprehensive review of the Village of Belcarra’s finances and the many
factors which impact or affect the Village’s long-term fiscal health. The
results of the Village’s first Integrated Long-Term Financial plan (15-year
time horizon) and related Asset Management Plan (50-year time horizon)
have been incorporated into this Road Map. External impacts on the Village
and the community are also considered within this Road Map including the
broader economic environment and the community’s demographics,
together with the strategic direction for the Village as recently established
by Council. Together these inputs have resulted in this “Road Map to
Financial Sustainability”, which can be used to inform decisions around the
Village's finances into the future.

A number of recommendations are also included throughout this Report,
and are summarized at the end, for Council’s consideration. These
recommendations are aimed at placing the Village on a long-term fiscally
sustainable path.

Community

Housing in Belcarra is becoming less affordable, with more and more
households are spending a greater percentage of income on housing.
Working from home and self-employment have also become more
prevalent in Belcarra.

Strategic Direction

Council has undertaken a strategic planning exercise to set out their goals
and priorities over their term of office to 2026. Council’s priorities including
their specific, strategic projects have been included in the Village’s
Integrated Long-Term Financial Plan and this Road Map.

Economic Outlook & External Environment

Belcarra’s population is aging with a declining younger segment of the
population. Based on the 2021 census, 65 children aged 0 to 14 were
enumerated in Belcarra, representing respectively 9.5% of the total
population. In comparison, for Canada, the proportion of children was
16.3% in 2021. The census also enumerated 210 persons aged 65 and over,
representing respectively 30.7% of the total population. In comparison, for
Canada, the proportion of seniors was 19.0% in 2021.

The Village of Belcarra and its residents are affected by prevailing economic
conditions or factors. These influences will continue to impact the economic
health and well-being of community members and the Village itself.

Economic conditions in BC post Covid, like the rest of Canada, have
generally deteriorated in 2023 and are leading to uncertainty. Citizens and
taxpayers and the Village itself will continue to see the impact of inflation,
rising interest rates, etc.

The Village of Belcarra is the smallest municipality in Metro Vancouver and
the lower mainland of BC. The Village is impacted by what happens in the
region, and has little influence over policy, direction and rates set by
external organizations such as TransLink, Metro Vancouver, and the Port of
Vancouver. Navigating this complex environment will continue to be a
challenge for the Village of Belcarra.

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 4



A Village between forest and sea

Organization

The Village of Belcarra delivers a variety of municipal services organized
around specific functions, namely: Administration and Human Resources,
Information Technology, Support Services (engineering, finance, and
planning), Building Inspection & Bylaw Enforcement, Public Works &
Transportation, Major Road Network (MRN), Emergency Planning and
Response Services, Waste & Recycle Depot (WARD), and Water Distribution
& Treatment.

The above services are organized under three operating areas or Funds, the
General Operating Fund, the Waste & Recycle Depot (WARD) Operating
Fund and the Water Operating Fund, with WARD & Water being self-funded
utilities which are meant to cover all of their operating and capital costs
through user fees paid for by those that benefit from the services.

Fire Response & Rescue Services are not provided by the Village, as they are
provided through the Metro Vancouver Regional District. The cost of these
shared regional services (joint services with the Villages of Belcarra &
Anmore) are requisitioned and funded through the Metro Vancouver
Regional District and are run by the Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department or
SVFD. The SVFD is governed by a seven (7) member Board of Trustees with
three (3) representatives each from both Belcarra and Anmore Councils and
one (1) member from Metro Vancouver.

Financial Condition

The Village’s financial position has steadily improved from 2018 to 2022, as
evidenced by the increase in its reserve & surplus balances, as well as its
lower debt (see Table 1 below). This has resulted in increased cash &
investment balances, and more investment income to support capital
spending programs.

Table 1 — Summary of Key Financial Numbers

Summary of Key Financial Numbers
(changes from 2018 - 2022)

2018 Year-

End Financial 2022 Year-End
Indicators Results Financial Results $ Change
Cash &
VeSS $ 1,700,055 $ 3,098,578 $1,398,523
Unrestricted
Operating $ 274,594 $ 378,106 $103,512
Surpluses
Reserve
ENe $ 975,630 $2,174,532 $1,198,902
EZ’Q%’Term ($3,727,134) ($3,150,134) $577,000
Net Debt
(Financial
e ($2,492,408) ($598,098) $1,894,310
Liabilities)

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 5



A Village between forest and sea

The Village has about $14.6 million (historical cost) of capital assets on its
books with a depreciated value of $10.5 million. In today’s dollars these
assets are worth approximately $21.5 million. Setting aside funds for the
replacement of these assets is critical and is addressed through the Asset
Management & Funding Plans included in this Report.

The Village’s key financial indicators around Sustainability, Flexibility and
Vulnerability are provided in this Report. The Village has generally improved
from 2020 to 2022 in a number of areas, with the build-up of reserves,
particularly operating reserves, being an area, which would provide the
Village with greater financial resiliency. These indicators can be tracked over
time to gauge the Village’s progress.

Revenues & Expenses

General Operating Fund

= The Village’s 2020 & 2021 revenues were impacted by the pandemic.
Overall non-property tax-based revenues have been recovering, with
property tax and interest income accounting for the upward trend in
revenue collected. As the Village’s reserves grow all-important interest
revenue will increase and can be used to fund capital projects and
increase the Village’s fiscal health.

= The Village’s non-property tax-based fees & charges have not increased
for a number of years, and as a result have not kept up with the Village’s
cost of delivering the services, including increased staffing costs and
other inflationary impacts.

= The Village will continue to be impacted by the broader economic
environment including inflation and as such needs to operate within a
rising cost environment. A sensitivity analysis has been provided which
shows how changes in specific revenue and expenses impact property
taxation.

Water Operating Fund

= Water user fee increases of about 40% were implemented over a 4-year
period (from 2020 to 2023) to put the Village’s Water Operating Fund on
a more sustainable path.

= The Village of Belcarra’s annual water usage fluctuates from year to year,
with usage trending upward after the peak in 2020. The Village’s water
usage and the water rates established by Metro Vancouver (billed by
District of North Vancouver) are the main cost drivers in the Water
Operating Fund.

Graph 1 — Belcarra Historical Water Usage

Belcarra Historical Water Usage

(Cubic Meters)
4,000,000 3,724,540
2793360  3:001,045

3,000,000 2554030 2,743,000
2,000,000
1,000,000

0

2019 Actual 2020 Actual 2021 Actual 2022 Actual 2023
Projected

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 6



A Village between forest and sea

Metro Vancouver’s non-peak (January to May and October to December)
water rates have increased 6% over the four (4) year period from 2020 to
2023 and the peak (June to September) rates over the same period have

increased by 27.2%.

WARD Operating Fund

WARD user fee increases of about 40% were implemented over a 4-year
period (from 2020 to 2023) to put the Village’s WARD Operating Fund on
a more sustainable path.

The WARD Operating Fund has been in a deficit position over the past
few years with annual transfers from WARD surplus required to offset
the operating deficits.

The biggest cost driver in WARD is the contractor processing & hauling
costs which are now stable due to new agreement with the contractor
which was entered into in 2021. This agreement comes up for renewal in
April of 2026, at which time the Village will have the opportunity to go to
the market to obtain the best service and pricing.

Debt & Reserves

The Village’s only outstanding debt, the 25-year MFA water debt, won’t
be paid off until 2037. The debt servicing costs on the debt recently
increased based on refinancing at a higher interest rate.

* The Village has about $300,000 worth of debt servicing cost room as per
Provincial legislation (see Table 2 below). This translates into various
borrowing limits based on the duration or term of the debt (see Table 2
below). This room does not provide a very large borrowing capacity.

Table 2 — Village of Belcarra Estimated Borrowing Capacity

Village of Belcarra Estimated Borrowing Capacity
Calculation of Liability Servicing | Maximum Borrowings Over Various Terms Based on
Available 4.5% Interest Rate
Debt
Servicing
Costs
Liability | Based on
Servicing New | Liability
Limit Based | Annual |Servicing
on 2022 Water |Capacity| 5Year | 10-Year | 15-Year | 20.Year | 25-Year
Revenue Debt |Available] Term Term Term Term Term
§570,809 | $269,563 | $301,246 | 1,300,000| 2,300,000 | 3,100,000 | 3,800,000 |4,300,000

* The Village is able to transfer between $500,000 and $600,000 annually
to reserves & surpluses which has resulted in healthier overall account
balances. Healthy reserve and surplus levels are the key to providing for
future asset/infrastructure replacement and minimizing external debt.
The Water and WARD reserve transfers are very low, and the Water
Reserve is too low to replace critical water infrastructure in the future.

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 7



A Village between forest and sea

Property Taxes & Utility Fees

Property tax increases have been lower in 2021, 2022 and 2023, in
comparison to the large increase (15%) in 2020. Water & WARD user
rates have had to increase to put these funds on a more sustainable path
and so these utilities can pay for their increased operating costs. These
utilities need to be setting aside more funds for asset or capital
replacement.

Graph 2 - % Changes in Property Taxes & User Fees

% Changes in Property Taxes & User Fees

2023
2022
2021
2020

L

0% 2% 4% 6% 8% 10% 12% 14% 16%

2020 2021 2022 2023
P Taxes - ¥
B Property Taxes - % 15% 7% 5% 3%
change
m Water NotC ted
ater Not Connecte 10% 12% 12% 10%
Fee - % change
O Water Connected Fee 6% 11% 12% 10%
- % change
Refuse & R li
B Refuse & Recycling 59% 12% 12% 12%

Fee - % change

Growth & Development

The Village of Belcarra generates limited additional property taxation
from new assessments or new construction. These additional tax dollars
have averaged between $5,000 and $6,000 annually over the past 4
years.

Assessed values in Belcarra have been increasing due to market changes
which has translated to more taxes going to other taxing authorities such
as BC Provincial School taxes, and the Metro Vancouver and TransLink
tax levies.

As per the Village’s recent draft OCP: “land for new housing options in
Belcarra is limited and the two areas for potential development face
hurdles in that one is Provincial Crown Land and the other is the remote
Farrer Cove area which does not have public road access. This makes any
new development uncertain and complex.” See Table 3 below for
estimated development revenue in today’s dollars from these lands
should they be developed in the future.

Photo credit: Village of Belcarra

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 8



A Village between forest and sea

Table 3 — Potential Development Revenue as Identified in Draft OCP

Potential Development Revenue as Identified in Draft OCP

2023
Residential Tax
Rate per $1,000

of Assessed

Value

Estimated
Number of
Residential

Development
Property
Description Lots
20 acres of
Provincial Crown

Estimated Total
Assessed
Property Values

Estimated
Annual
Property Tax
Revenue
Currently

Table 4 — Asset Inventory & Replacement Values

. TBD $44,400,000 1.25034 $55,515
Land (potential
development)
Farrer Cove
(potential TBD $64,500,000 1.25034 $80,647
development)
Totals $108,900,000 $136,162

Asset Management Plan

= The estimated replacement cost of the Village’s assets/infrastructure in
2023 dollars is about $21.5 million (see Table 4). The majority of these
assets are in Water Treatment & Distribution (510.5 million), Stormwater

Collection ($4.0 million) & Transportation (4.1milion).

Replacement  Average Average % of Useful
Value (2023 Life Remaining Life
Asset Groups (Systems) CAD) Span \ETS Consumed
Land & Natural Assets N/A N/A N/A N/A
Buildi truct
uildings, Structures and $1,399,500 44 22 44%
Components
Equipment $155,900 18 14 23%
Fleet $500,000 12 11 8%
Information Systems $94,000 5 3 40%
Multi-Use Path, Trail & 0
Road Shoulder Network »136,767 26 = 43%
Stormwater Collection $4,029,252 72 40 44%
Transportation $4,521,164 23 13 44%
Waste & Recycle Depot $185,000 15 11 27%
Water Treatment and $10,502,029 66 44 34%
Distribution
Grand Total $21,523,612

= Based on the Asset Management Plan results the Village’s sustainable
annual funding level for all Funds is $575,737, and the Village has annual
excess funding of $199,666 in the General Fund and annual funding
shortfalls of $15,083 and $166,120 in the WARD and Water Funds,
respectively (see Table 5 below). The sustainable annual funding levels
are for the replacement of the Village’s existing assets/infrastructure
only at the end of their useful lives and these amounts do not include the

investment in new and/or upgraded assets/infrastructure.

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 9




A Village between forest and sea

Table 5 — Sustainable Annual Funding versus Actual Annual Funding = The replacement cost of assets as shown in the Asset Management
Plan are rough projections of asset value in 2023 dollars.
Difference
LULTE] = These estimates are intended to provide a comparative, broad basis for
Funding - Gap decision-making and do not reflect the true, accurate costs of

Sustainable Actual
Annual Annual

Assets Groups (Systems)

Land & Natural Assets
Buildings & Components
Equipment

Fleet

Information Systems

Multi-Use Pathways, Trails
& Road Shoulder (MTRS)
Network

Stormwater Collection
Transportation

Subtotal General Capital
Waste & Recycle Depot

Water Treatment and
Distribution
Grand Totals

Funding
N/A
$30,454
$7,720
$41,667
$18,800
$5,230

$57,576
$208,887
$370,334
$16,083
$189,320

$575,737

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 10

Funding
N/A
As per below
As per below
As per below
As per below

As per below

As per below
As per below
$570,000
$1,000
$23,200

$594,200

or Excess)
N/A
As per below
As per below
As per below
As per below

As per below

As per below
As per below
$199,666
-$15,083
-$166,120

$18,463

undertaking the projects.

Photo credit: Village of Belcarra



A Village between forest and sea

Integrated Long-Term (15-Year) Financial Plans

General Operating Fund

The draft or base long-term General Operating Fund financial plan reflects
annual property tax increases of 4%, including for 2024. The key to the plan
is maintaining a gap between total revenues and total expenses, the net of
which can be transferred to reserves/surpluses to provide for the Village’s
long-term sustainability including the ability to fund capital projects
internally with minimal or no debt. This includes new assets as well as the
replacement of the assets and infrastructure as identified in the Asset
Management Plan. The detailed plan is shown in Appendix “C".

Graph 3 — Regular General Operating Fund Revenue & Expenses 2024 — 2028

Regular General Operating Fund Revenue & Expenses
2024 - 2038

$2,500,000

$2,000,000

$1,500,000 o

$1,000,000
m&b‘ m@’ m&b m“fi‘ m&% m&g 'L"""Q 'L°°’\’ '19’9 m“gi’ '190’& 'L°°’$ m“""b '190;‘ '»°°"%

X \\ \\ N\ \\ \\ N\ \\ \\ N\ \\ \\ N\ \\3 \\

ST QP QT QR QBT QT QBT QT QBT QBT QBT QT QR Q@ @

‘@'(" @->Total Regular Operating Expenses @@= Total Regular Operating Revenues

Water Operating Fund

The draft or base long-term Water Operating Fund financial plan includes a
20% increase in water rates for 2024, 15% for 2025, 15% for 2026, and 5%
each year thereafter. As shown in the Asset Management Plan the Water
Operating Fund is not currently at a sustainable annual funding level for the
replacement of its $10.5 million of infrastructure, therefore water rates
need to increase to make up for the funding gap. The detailed plan is shown
in Appendix “D”.

Graph 4 — Regular Water Operating Fund Revenue & Expenses 2024 - 2028

Regular Water Operating Fund Revenue & Expenses
2024 - 2038

$1,200,000
$1,100,000
$1,000,000
$900,000
$800,000
$700,000
$600,000
$500,000
$400,000 @—@—®—®
$300,000

PO D D P P P o
DU R R R R R R R R
AN NS A S A I M A S A S NS
EAR RS AR AR R AR S R SR R
o"“’<~

@ Total Regular Operating Expenses =—®=Total Regular Operating Revenues

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 11



A Village between forest and sea

WARD Operating Fund Long-Term (15-Year) Capital Plans

The draft or base long-term WARD Operating Fund financial plan includes Detailed long-term (15-year) capital plans for all of the Village’s Funds
20% increase in 2024, 10% increases in each of 2025 and 2026, and 4% (General, Water & WARD) are provided in Appendix “F”. Capital spending
increases each year thereafter. As shown in the Asset Management Plan the will peak over the next few years, and it is important that the Village build

WARD Operating Fund is not currently at a sustainable funding level for the up its reserves to fund projects internally, particularly in the Water and
replacement of its infrastructure. In addition, the WARD operating surplus WARD Funds.

balance is very low and cannot continue to fund annual operating deficits at
its current level. The detailed plan is shown in Appendix “E”.

Graph 5 — Regular WARD Operating Fund Revenue & Expenses 2024 - 2028 Graph 6 — 15-Year (2024 — 2028) Capital Plan
Regular WARD Operating Fund Revenue & Expenses 15-Year (2024 - 2028) Capital Plan
2024 - 2038
$1,000,000
$500,000
$450,000 $800,000
$400,000
$350,000 $600,000
$300,000
$250,000 $400,000
$200,000
$150,000 $200,000
> \/_\
AV S A9 10 9P 9 9 9 S P 9P S0 B (P $o =
2 0 a a A A A A A A A A A A B g9 a® ) P ® oS D o P oF P o0 ) o
“%\)b% 4 4 4 s A4 ] Q ] N ] ] ] 4 ] 19'1« ,191 ,LQ'L 19'1« ,1914 ,LQ"L ‘1«6” '19% ,LQ") ’1«6” ,‘9'5 '19'5 ,LQ"J ,‘9'5 ,LQ'Z»
>
ot . .
- Total General Capital Water Capital
®-—Total Regular Operating Expenses =®=Total Regular Operating Expenses = \WARD Capital

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 12



A Village between forest and sea

The funding plan to pay for the 15-year capital plan includes the use of the
Village's various reserves (including the Growing Communities Reserve fund
and the Canada Community-Building Reserve Fund), as well as TransLink
grants.

Graph 7 — Funding Sources for Long-Term (15-Year) Capital Plan

Funding Sources for Long-Term (15-Year)
Capital Plan

$1,000,000
900,000

800000

700000

600,000

500,000

200000

300,000

200,000 H H H H
1°°'°g8 = B [ = H =

'191'& 'L‘f’ 191'6 1@1 161'% '1919 'L°d’° 'L@’\' 'L°°“m 'L“d"% 10"’& 104"’ 'L°°’6 'L°°“1 104’%

[ canada Community-Building Fund Reserve [ General Capital Reserve
@ vehicle & Equipment Capital Reserve [ Transportation Infrastructure Reserve
[l Growing Communities Fund Reserve [l Water Capital Reserve

[ Grants TransLink

Budget/Financial Plan Scenarios

A summary of budget/financial plan scenarios is provided for the Village’s
three Operating Funds starting with the base budget or financial. These
scenarios reflect various property tax and user rate increases and the
impact on the Village reserves of the noted changes. The long-term
consequences of changing tax and rate increases is transparent with these
scenarios.

Road Map to Financial Sustainability

Financial Policies and Practices

During the course of this review the Village's existing finance policies were
examined and other local government finance policies were reviewed for
applicability to Belcarra. In addition, best financial practices within local
governments were reviewed to determine any recommendations. As a
result, specific recommendations have been made and are included in this
report.

Summary of Recommendations for Financial Sustainability

A number of recommendations have been made throughout this report and
are summarized on pages 79 to 82. These recommendations fall under the
following categories:

= Recommendations arising from financial planning
=  Recommendations arising from asset management
= Recommendation resulting from policy and practice review

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 13



A Village between forest and sea

Background

The duly elected Council of the Village of Belcarra (Village) has adopted an
actionable strategic plan with key objectives with three of these objectives
being: the creation of a Long-Term Financial Plan, the development of an
Asset Management Plan and the production of a community Financial
Sustainability Report. This Road Map to Financial Sustainability is the
culmination of these key objectives with the results of being reflected in this
Road Map to Financial Sustainability (Road Map).

The following definition of financial sustainability has been agreed upon and
is assumed within the Village’s planning processes:

A financially sustainable organization that can adequately cover its
operating costs, maintain in good repair its existing assets, replace assets
where appropriate, fund future growth and service improvements, and
plan for external impacts such as inflation, changes in technology, etc., to
the extent possible, all funded over an appropriate period of time with
stable and incremental revenues.

This Road Map is the starting point and not the end point on the Village’s
road to financial sustainability. The Integrated Long-Term Financial and
Asset Management Plans and related model will have to be used as an
evolving tool that is updated as new or better data/information becomes
available. The asset management information which feeds into the
Integrated Long-Term Financial (includes the condition, life expectancy and
replacement cost of infrastructure/assets) will also have to be maintained
and updated regularly.

There are important recommendations and financial indicators provided in
this Road Map which can be tracked and updated over time to gauge the
Village's progress towards financial sustainability.

In completing this road map the following Financial Planning Process and
Planning Model was used (see next page) which takes into account both
external and internal factors.

Map 2: Village of Belcarra and Indian Arm

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 14



A Village between forest and sea

—

Financial Planning Process & Model

Economic Outlook &
External Environment

Organization &

Strategic Direction Communit

Strategic Plan
Asset Management Plans

Official Community Plan (OCP)
Financial Policies & Guiding Tenants

| |
Services & Financial Condition

1
Asset Management Plan

Integrated Long-Term (15 - Year) Financial Plans

Road Map to Financial Sustainability
Review of Financial Policies & Practices
Summary of Recommendations to Achieve & Maintain Financial Sustainability

Pa—



A Village between forest and sea

Organizational Flowchart

The Village operates with 8.33 full-
time equivalent (FTE) employees and
relies on outside contracted services
or professionals to supplement staff

resources and/or to provide
specialized services.

Contracted Services
(Planning, Engineering, Finance &
Information Technology)

Public Works & Emergency
Preparedness Coordinator
(1.0 FTE)

Building Official
(0.80 FTE)

Accounting Clerk Corporate Officer
(1.0 FTE) (1.0 FTE)

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | Fall 2023 | Page 16



A Village between forest and sea

The Village of Belcarra provides a range of municipal services, including:

Administration and Human Resources — includes Council support
services, management of legal issues, records management, various
human resources functions and oversight of departmental areas.

Information Technology — comprised of services related to the Village’'s
information systems technology and infrastructure including its website.

Support Services (engineering, finance and planning) — includes the
Village's contracted support services for engineering, finance and
planning. These services are provided on an as needed basis.

Building Inspection & Bylaw Enforcement — includes the enforcement
of various regulatory bylaws such as parking.

Public Works & Transportation - includes the provision of services that
relate to the Village's roads, bridges, and drainage systems as well as for
the maintenance of pedestrian walkways and trails.

Major Road Network (MRN) — includes the maintenance and upkeep of
the regional Bedwell Bay Road, the costs of which are funded by
TransLink.

Emergency Planning and Response Services — includes emergency
planning or preparedness and response as required.

Waste & Recycle Depot (WARD) - includes refuse and recycling
collection at the drop-off center and pick-up and disposal of these same
materials.

Water Distribution & Treatment —includes the distribution and treatment
of the water supply which is used for domestic and firefighting purposes.

The Village is part of the Metro Vancouver Regional District (MVRD) and
participates in and receives a number of regional services through MVRD.
Fire Response & Rescue Services are provided through MVRD.

This shared regional service (joint service with the Villages of Belcarra &
Anmore) is requisitioned and funded through the Metro Vancouver Regional
District and is run by the Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department or SVFD.

The SVFD provides service to both the Village of Belcarra and the Village of
Anmore. The SVFD owns and maintains two firehalls and various fire
apparatus and equipment, and all calls in Belcarra and Anmore are
answered by the volunteer force which has members from both
municipalities.

Fire Response & Rescue Services and the SVFD are governed through a
seven (7) member Board of Trustees with three (3) representatives each
from both Belcarra and Anmore and one (1) member from Metro
Vancouver.

Based on its limited staff resources and the services the Village provides it is
important that the Village implement and utilize technology to allow for
greater efficiency and to keep up with the demand for services (see
Recommendation #1 below).

Recommendation #1

Financial Planning (FP)

That the Village implement automated solutions
such as electronic bill payments and e-commerce
services (provides electronic billings, account
balance look-up & bill payment services for
residents & customers) to assist staff and to

supplement limited staff resources.

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 17



A Village between forest and sea

Community

The community of Belcarra has specific attributes which need to be
considered when planning for a sustainable future. These attributes are
highlighted in this section.

Graph 8 — Population Counts, Belcarra

Population Counts

450

400
350
300
250
200
150
100
N
0

0to14 0to14 15 to 64 15to 64 65 and over 65 and over

B 2o B oon,

Belcarra’s population is aging with a declining younger segment of the
population.

o

L https://www12.statcan.gc.ca/census-recensement/2021/as-sa/fogs-

spg/page.cfm?topic=2&lang=E&dguid=2021A00055915036 (accessed Sept. 2, 2023)

In 2021, 65 children aged 0 to 14 were enumerated in Belcarra, representing
respectively 9.5% of the total population. In comparison, for Canada, the
proportion of children was 16.3% in 2021.

The working age population (15 to 64) for Belcarra represented 60.6% of the
total population. In comparison, for Canada, the proportion of the
population aged 15 to 64 was 64.8% in 2021.

In 2021, 210 persons aged 65 and over were enumerated in Belcarra,
representing respectively 30.7% of the total population. In comparison, for
Canada, the proportion of seniors was 19.0% in 2021.

Graph 9 — Employed labour force by main mode of commuting, Belcarra®

Employed labour force by main mode of
commuting, Belcarra

100
80
60
40
20
0 mm W= m -
Car, truck or  Car, truck or  Sustainable Public transit Active Other method
van-asa van—asa transportation transportation
driver passenger

E2016 2021

2 https://www12.statcan.gc.ca/census-recensement/2021/as-sa/fogs-
spg/page.cfm?topic=13&lang=E&dguid=2021A00055915036 (accessed Sept. 2,
2023)

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 18



A Village between forest and sea

The use of alternate forms of transportation used by Belcarra residents, in
the form of public transit and active transportation, have decreased down

from 2016 to 2021. 2021 was potentially being impacted by the pandemic.

Graph 10 — Employed labour force by place of work status, Belcarra

Employed labour force by place of work
status, Belcarra, 2016 to 2021

80
70
60
50

40
30
20
v [
0

Worked at home Worked outside No fixed workplace Usual place of work
Canada address

m2016 [@2021
3Working from home has become more prevalent in Belcarra, which may

again be influenced by the pandemic. This trend does not appear to be
changing.

3 https://www12.statcan.gc.ca/census-recensement/2021/as-sa/fogs-
spg/page.cfm?topic=13&lang=E&dguid=2021A00055915036 (accessed Sept. 2,
2023)

Table 6 - Number and Median After-Tax Income of Belcarra Households

Number and median after-tax income of households, Belcarra and
its neighbouring census subdivisions, 2015 and 2020

Median after-tax income of
Geography Number of households households

% %
2016 2021 change 2015 2020 change

Anmore (Village) 690 745 8.0 123,000 136,000 10.6

Belcarra (Village) 255 265 3.9 114,000 138,000 21.1

Metro Vancouver
A (Regional
district electoral
area)

6,100 7,685 26.0 45,600 58,000 27.2

North Vancouver
(District 31,115 32,700 5.1 96,000 106,000 10.4
municipality)

Port Moody

. 12,980 13,105 1.0 85,000 99,000 16.5
(Village)

“The average household after tax income in Belcarra exceeds that of the
surrounding area.

4 https://www12.statcan.gc.ca/census-recensement/2021/as-sa/fogs-
spg/page.cfm?topic=5&lang=E&dguid=2021A00055915036 (accessed Sept. 2, 2023)

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 19



A Village between forest and sea

Table 7 - Total Belcarra Population by Labour Force Status Graph 11 — Percent of households in Belcarra that spent 30% or more of income on shelter

costs
Total population aged 15 years and over by labour force status

and broad age groups, Belcarra, 2021 Percent of households that spent 30% or

20.0%
18.0%
16.0%

12.0%

Employed 10.0%
8.0%

4.0%

Not in the labour force 2.0%

0.0%
2016 2021

Employment rate (%)

SHousing in Belcarra is becoming less affordable, with more and more

5The unemployment rate for Belcarra residents 25 and older is very low as most households spending a greater percentage of income on housing.
people are actively engaged in employment.

5 https://www12.statcan.gc.ca/census-recensement/2021/as-sa/fogs- 6 https://www12.statcan.gc.ca/census-recensement/2021/as-sa/fogs-
spg/page.cfm?topic=12&lang=E&dguid=2021A00055915036 (accessed Sept. 2, spg/page.cfm?topic=7&lang=E&dguid=2021A00055915036 (accessed Sept. 2, 2023)
2023)

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 20



A Village between forest and sea

Table 8 — Belcarra Employed Labour Force by Class of Worker

Employed labour force by class of worker and broad age groups,
Belcarra (Village), 2021

Class of worker Count % Count % Count % Count %

Employee 25 100.0 145

As Belcarra’s population ages they are more likely to be self-employed.

7 https://www12.statcan.gc.ca/census-recensement/2021/as-sa/fogs-
spg/page.cfm?topic=12&lang=E&dguid=2021A00055915036 (accessed Sept. 2,
2023)

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 21



A Village between forest and sea

Strategic Direction
Strategic Plan

Steward Our Community & Its Natural Environment

Council has undertaken a strategic planning exercise to set out their goals We will care for our Community and value its natural

and priorities over their term of office (to 2026). Council’s priorities, as environment by:
shown below, including their specific, strategic projects have been included

in the Village's Integrated Long-Term Financial Plan.

Manage & Renew Our Infrastructure

We will manage and safeguard our assets and
infrastructure by:

= Continuing to build our Asset Management
Program (for hard & natural assets)

= Renewing key infrastructure & assets (see Key
Project List)

= Making water system improvements (see Key
Project List)

=  Making waste & recycle service and facility
improvements.

Placing an Emphasis on Emergency Management &
Prenaredness

We will make public safety a priority by:
= Updating our emergency preparedness plan

= Creating and implementing a fire safety &
resiliency plan

=  Implementing a mass notification system.

® |nventorying, mapping, and maintaining our
natural assets (tree canopies, wetlands,
riparian areas, etc.)

= Adopting and operationalizing a new Official
Community Plan (OCP) Incrementally building
out and maintaining a multi-use path,

= Trail, and road shoulder (MTRS) network

= Re-developing the tennis court site.

Achieve Financial Sustainability though Fiscal

Management

We will operate in a fiscally responsible and financially
sustainable manner by:

= Creating a long-term (15 years) financial plan
that is integrated with asset management &
that considers alternate land use scenarios

=  Providing regular fiscal updates
= |nstituting a Finance Committee

= Creating a formal, ongoing grant writing
process.

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | Fall 2023 | Page 22




A Village between forest and sea

Asset Management Plans

The Village of Belcarra engaged LandInfo Technologies to complete a
comprehensive Asset Inventory/ Replacement Plan & Condition Assessment
Framework (Project) for the Village. The primary objective was to create a
detailed GIS integrated asset inventory with asset attributes that enable
staff to analyze and report on the condition, life expectancy, replacement
cost as well as the probability and consequence of failure of assets. This
work has been completed and the information has been used in the
Village's financial planning model and is now available in the Village’s GIS
system.

The Village also engaged LandInfo Technologies to identify its natural assets
and their associated attributes. This included parks, environmentally
sensitive areas, green spaces, stormwater management facilities, water
courses, registered springs, tree canopies, and other such assets. These
natural have been identified and inventoried with the inventory including
information on the type, location (mapping), size, condition, and
management practices of each asset, and are now captured in the Village’s
GIS system.

The Asset Management Plan can now be used to make more informed
decisions and has been included in this Road Map. The Asset Management
Plan is provided in Appendix “H”.

Official Community Plan (OCP)

Financial Policies & Guiding Tenets

The Village recently undertook a major update to its Official Community
Plan, which is now still in progress. The implications of the new draft OCP
have been considered in this Road Map including the long-term vision for
the community and the strategic objectives and policies that will guide
planning and land use management.

The Village has a number of existing financial policies which address
accountability and promote financial best practices. These policies have
been reviewed as part of this planning exercise. The following guiding tenets
have formed the basis for creating the Village Integrated Long-Term
Financial Plan and related Road Map.

An important outcome of this Road Map is a number of recommended
financial policies and practices which are aimed at achieving and
maintaining financial sustainability for the organization and community. The
following tenets or principles have been guided the Village’s Integrated
Long-Term Financial Plan and this Road Map.

Revenue Sources

Guiding Tenets

= those who receive direct benefits from a good or service should
pay for that good or service according to the level or value of the
benefit received;

= the full cost of providing a good or service should be the starting
point when calculating user fees;

= in cases where groups of individuals may lack the resources
required to consume Village goods and services, the Village may
choose to provide a subsidy;

= the nature of a funding source should be considered to determine
the appropriateness in funding a particular service or project, with
the goal of matching limited funding sources with one-time or
limited duration projects and matching ongoing funding sources
with ongoing expenditures; and

= |everaging external funding sources and opportunities should be a
priority

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | Fall 2023 | Page 23



A Village between forest and sea

Infrastructure & Asset Investments

Guiding Tenets

infrastructure/assets should be environmentally and economically
sustainable;

infrastructure/assets are a capital investment and must be
responsibility managed;

there needs to be a systematic and predictable method of
budgeting for the renewal and replacement funding for
infrastructure/assets;

infrastructure/assets must be maintained in a condition that
enables them to perform their intended functions;

a priority should be placed on funding the maintenance, renewal,
and replacement of existing infrastructure/assets before funding
new assets/infrastructure; and

infrastructure programs should support the values and objectives
contained in plans and priorities approved by Council.

Reserves & Surpluses

Guiding Tenets

maintain adequate levels of reserves and surpluses to achieve
financial stability for taxpayers and rate payers, including provision
to fund emergency expenditures;

build and maintain reserves to fund major planned and/or
unforeseen expenditures;

provide for stabilization in terms of fluctuations in operating and
capital activities including offsetting cyclical and volatile revenues
and expenditures;

build up reserves to serve as internal financing and funding sources
and to thus minimize external debt;

reserves and surpluses should not be used to fund ongoing
operating expenditures; and

ensure adequate reserve levels to fund renewal and replacement of
infrastructure/assets.

Debt Management

Guiding Tenets

pay as you go funding and internal reserve financing is preferable to
external debt;

any debt should not impact long-term financial flexibility and should
limit financial risk exposure;

any debt should minimize the long-term cost of financing;

debt should never be used to pay for operations;

debt may be used to moderate significant tax or rate increases;
debt levels should be managed to minimize the impact of debt
servicing costs on taxpayers; and

the term of the debt financing should not exceed the anticipated
useful life of the underlying assets or infrastructure.

Operating Costs

Guiding Tenets

deliver core services efficiently and effectively ensuring value for
money and the transparent stewardship of public funds;

promote, establish, maintain and explore programs and facilities that
encourage the use of alternative models and levels of delivery of
services through continuous improvement;

leverage external investments as much as possible (e.g., Community-
Building Fund and TransLink funding);

match one-time or limited duration operating expenses with limited
funding sources and match ongoing operating expenses with ongoing
funding sources; and

regularly review municipal expenditures in the context of inflationary
increases.

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | Fall 2023 | Page 24



A Village between forest and sea

Economic Outlook & External Environment

Economic Outlook =

The Village of Belcarra and its residents are influenced by many prevailing

economic conditions or factors. These influences will continue to impact the
economic health and well-being of community members and the Village ]
itself.

Economic conditions in BC post Covid, like the rest of Canada, have

generally deteriorated in 2023 and are leading to uncertainty. The following

trends have been identified by Deloitte in their June 2023 Economic

outlook: .

] British Columbia is in for a weak period of growth relative to its
recent performance. Households in the province are the most
indebted in the country and this will weigh on consumer spending. .

] Further, non-residential investment drove economic gains for years
in the province (BC), but as work winds down on major projects
such as the Trans Mountain pipeline expansion and the LNG Canada
facility, investment will detract from growth prospects.

=  Strong household spending at the start of the year (2023) was

supported by a drawdown in savings and an accumulation in debt.
After averaging 5.8% in the last quarter of 2022, the household
savings rate plunged to 2.9% in the first quarter of this year, its
lowest rate since before the pandemic. Further, data from Equifax
shows that consumer credit card balances were up 14.5% year-
over-year in the first quarter and that more mortgage holders are
missing payments on their non-mortgage debt.

High inflation expectations have triggered demands for higher
wages and caused businesses to raise prices to accommodate
higher salaries, something called wage-push inflation.

Many businesses hold pessimistic views about future sales growth
due to concerns over a potential recession and reduced
household consumption resulting from the rising cost of living.
These factors will weigh on business investment outside of the
energy sector.

The economy cannot escape the impact of high inflation and the
most rapid tightening in monetary policy in decades without
slowing.

Labour market strength supported household spending in the
face of higher debt payments and inflation earlier this year
(2023). However, the labour market is projected to cool
substantially over the rest of this year and push the
unemployment rate to 5.6% by year end. The good news is that
we do not expect employment to decline, as population is rapidly
rising thanks to immigration.

The above factors point to the need to be cautious in terms of
spending plans as many citizens and taxpayers will continue to
see the impact of inflation, rising interest rates, etc. The Village
and its citizens cannot escape these influences and have to
operate and live within the context of these economic realities.
This means adjusting, as best as possible, ways of doing business
to respond the external environment.

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 25



A Village between forest and sea

External Environment

The Village of Belcarra is the smallest municipality with the Metro
Vancouver Regional District and the lower mainland of BC. The Village is

impacted by what happens in the region, and has little influence over policy,
direction and rates set by external organizations such as TransLink, Metro
Vancouver, and the Port of Vancouver, including:

=  Regional transportation planning

= Regional planning and related growth strategy

=  Regional parks strategy and planning

=  Metro Vancouver water rates

= Metro Vancouver regional waste tipping charges
= Market value of recyclables and compost

=  Water infrastructure conveyance costs as established by the
District of North Vancouver

= Vancouver Port Authority policies and direction
=  Wage & benefit patterns established throughout the region

= Environmental policy and direction

Operating within this complex and dynamic external environment presents
its challenges, including the inability to directly control specific costs.
Navigating this complex environment will continue to be a challenge for the
Village of Belcarra, as the Village has a limited tax base and prospects for
growth in comparison to the other communities in Metro Vancouver. In
other words, the Village's ability to pay and to absorb cost increases is not

Map 3: Lower Mainland

at the level of the other communities and organizations within the region.

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 26



A Village between forest and sea

Operations & Financial Condition

Operations

The Village of Belcarra is organized around three (3) operating areas or
funds, as follows:

= General Operating Fund — accounts for the operating revenues and
expenses related to general operations (Building Inspection & Bylaw
Enforcement, Public Works & Transportation, and the Major Road
Network (MRN) and Emergency Planning and Response Services)
and the support functions necessary for all services (Administration
and Human Resources, Contracted Support functions (planning,
engineering, finance and information technology, etc. The Village
engages outside support contractors to provide expertise and
specialized services as opposed to providing these services from
within the organization.

= Waste & Recycle Depot (WARD) Operating Fund — accounts for the
operating revenues and expenses related to refuse and recycling
collection at the drop-off center and pick-up and disposal of these
same materials.

= Water Operating Fund — accounts for the operating revenues and
expenses related to the distribution and treatment of the water
supply which is used for domestic and firefighting purposes.

A percentage of General Operating Fund costs are charged to the Major
Road Network (operating & maintenance costs are funded by TransLink),
the Waste Recycle Depot Operating Fund and the Water Operating Fund to
account for the full cost of supporting these services.

The WARD Operating Fund and the Water Operating Fund are treated as
self-funding or self-balancing utilities in that the fees charged to the users of
these functions are meant to cover operating costs, including the capital
costs associated with the renewal or rehabilitation of assets/infrastructure,
any new assets or infrastructure and any related debt servicing costs.

Photo credit: Village of Belcarra

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 27



A Village between forest and sea

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA

Statement of Financial Position
As at December 31, 2022

Financial Overview

Table 9 — Summary of Key Financial Numbers

Summary of Key Financial Numbers 2022
(changes from 2018 - 2022) Financial assets:
2018 Year- Cash $ 2,047,060
Investment 1,051,518
_End 2022 Year-End Recelvables "94577
Financial Financial MFA debt reserve deposit 57,631
Indicators Results Results $ Change 3.250,786
Cash & $ 1,700,055 $3,008,578  $1,398,523 He e,
A t ble and d liabiliti 108,408
Investments T B B Performance bonds and refundable :jI:SOSH:s 258,734
- Deferred revenue 315,608
Unrestricted Debt 3,150,134
Operating $ 274,594 $ 378,106 $103,512 Employee future benefit . Slg-ggg
Surpluses 848,
S Met debt (598,098)
FErS]g;VG $ 975,630 $ 2,174,532 $1,198,902 Mon-financial| assets -
Tangible capital assets 10,505,991
Prepaid expenses 13,268
_ Inventories held-for-consumption 25519
'5‘;%? Term  ¢3,727,134) ($3,150,134) $577,000 10544 778
Net Debt Accumulated surplus $ 9,946,680
et De
(Financial . , - .
Assets less ($2,492,408) ($598,098) $1,894,310 The Village’s has about $14.6 million (historical cost) of
Liabilities) capital assets on its books with a depreciated value of 510.5

The Village’s financial position has steadily improved as
evidenced by the increase in its reserve & surplus balances,
as well as lower debt. This has resulted in increased cash &

investment balances, and more investment income to
support capital spending programs.

million. Setting aside funds for the replacement of these
assets is critical and is addressed through the Asset

Management & Funding Plan include in this Report. The
performance bonds and refundable deposits in the Statement
of Financial Position (5258,735 under Liabilities) have been
held for some time and should be reviewed.

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 28



A Village between forest and sea

Recommendation #2 (FP)

That the Village’s performance bonds, and
refundable deposits be reviewed to determined
whether the funds should be returned, continue
to be held by the Village or taken into revenue.

N— _/

The Village’s financial indicators are shown in the Table 10 below. Most
of the indicators are trending in the right direction with the trend being
toward greater sustainability and flexibility; however, operating
reserves could be increased to provide greater sustainability. These
indicators can be used to track the Village’s progress over time.

The Village is reliant on the annual Small Communities Grant ($259,000)
from the Province of BC for its core operations which was 12.8% of its
total revenues in 2022. This is noted as a vulnerability factor. This grant
increased to $327,000 in 2022 due to a one-time top up from the
Province of BC and the grant in 2021 was $257,000, which is the range
expected for this grant.

Recommendation #3 (FP)

That the Village continue to track its financial
indicators annually based on year-end results
with the results being reported to Council
and the community.

N— _/

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 29



A Village between forest and sea

Table 10 - Summary of Financial Indicators 2020 2021 2022 Explanation
Sustainability

Financial assets to financial liabilities 63.9% 75.3% 84.5%  Ability to cover obligations or liabilities Improving
Indication of savings for future

Total surplus & reserve funds per household 5,198 6,740 7,524  expenditures & ability to minimize new Improving
debt

. 0 i . .
Total operating expenses as a % of taxable 0.36% 0.36% 0.31% Ability to cover operating cost with tax Improving
assessment base
. . 0 . I
Operating reserve & unrestricted surpluses as a % 20.30% 21.04% 20.12% Indicates the ability to offset unexpected Worsening

of operating expenses revenue losses or excess expenses

Flexibility

Increase in tax burden per household; %

Municipal residential taxes per household 2,893 3,119 3,295 . . Improving
rise decreasing

Total long-term debt per water user 14,372 13,758 13,126 Sseer?ammg 225 DU EN @ EEIE TELET Improving
Average residential taxation as a percentage of 2 1% Not Not Impact of property taxation on Nt eve el
average after tax household income available available households
Total taxation as a % of total assessment 0.14% 0.15% 0.13%  Ability to sustain tax revenue Improving
Debt servicing costs (interest and principal) as a % 42 2% 39.8% 36.8% Ab|I!ty to cover debt costs; have Improving
of water revenues dedicated parcel tax to cover debt costs
Net book value of tangible capital assets as a L S

N . : Indication of remaining life of assets or Expected

0 0 0,

gzggtage of historical cost of tangible capital 75.5% 73.6% 72.0% % consumed decline

Vulnerability

Degree of reliance on assistance for
Operating grants as a % of total revenues 10.0% 10.9% 12.8%  core operations; 2022 affected by one- Worsening
time top up in grant
Ability to tap into grants for capital
projects

Capital grants as a % of total capital expenditures 0.0% 26.9% 0.0% Worsening

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 30



A Village between forest and sea

Revenues & Expenses The Village has a fees and charges bylaw with the following fees listed.

Other that the annual increases in WARD and Water user fees or rates
many of these fees have not changed for a number of years and have thus

General Operating Fund not kept up with the cost of providing the services including increased staff
Graph 12 — Regular Geneal Operating Fund Revenue 2020 - 2023 costs.
Schedule 1 - General Administration
Regular General Operating Fund Revenue Schedule 2 - Building Permit and Inspection Services
Schedule 3 - Business Licence Fees
2020 - 2023 Schedule 4 - Finance and Taxes

Schedule 5 - Engineering, Public Works, Permits and Services
Schedule 6 - Fire Prevention Fees

$2,000,000 Schedule 7 - Municipal Property Rentals
$1,800,000 /12,243 1,654,862

Schedule 8 - Planning, Land and Development Services

Schedule 9 - Filming Permits and Services

Schedule 10 - Recycling and Garbage Collection and Removal (WARD)
Schedule 11 - Grow Operation, Health, Nuisance and Safety Fees
Schedule 12 - Animal Control Fees

Schedule 13 - Waterworks Fees

$1,600,000 1,450,372 1,546,367 1,445,067
$1,400,000
$1,200,000
$1,000,000
$800,000
$600,000
$400,000
$200,000
]

Actual 2020 Actual 2021 Actual 2022 Budget 2023 Estimated
Year-End
2023

Recommendation #4 (FP)

That a comprehensive review of the Village’s
fees & charges be undertaken with the goal

Note: 2020 revenue was impacted by Covid-19 Restart grant revenue funds which Of increasing non-property tax-based
were used to offset loss of revenue and increased expenses.

W Taxes EGrant Transfers [ Fees & Charges M Interest Income

revenue, and that these fees be reviewed
annually to keep up with the Village’s
increased cost of providing services which

The Village’s 2020 & 2021 revenues were impacted by
the pandemic. Overall non-property tax-based revenue . _ . .
has been recovering, with property tax and interest \ includes the impact of inflation. /

income accounting for the upward trend in revenue
collected.

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 31



A Village between forest and sea

Graph 13 — Regular General Fund Operating Expenses 2020 - 2023

Regular General Fund Operating Expenses The Village has been subject to ongoing cost pressures from
2020 - 2023 inflation which has translated into increased wage & benefit

1,357,336 costs, increased insurance costs, increases from service
$1,400,000 1,280,074 1,215,818 1,238,220 1,290,896 y ),

$1,200,000 providers, etc.
$1,000,000
$800,000 . e . . .
$600,000 The below General Operating Fund Sensitivity Analysis shows the impact of
5400'000 certain variables on the property tax levy. The Sensity Analysis shows that
$200,000 changes in operating expenses have a greater impact on the tax levy than
1]

changes in revenue. For example, a 1% increase in non-property tax fees
Actual 2020 Actual 2021 Actual 2022 Budget 2023 Estimated and charge equates to a -0.13% reduction in the tax levy and a 1% increase

Year-End in regular operating expenses (not including indemnities, wages & benefits)
2023 equates to a 0.72% increase in the tax levy.
[ Interest, Bank Expenses, Bad Debts & Other
Submission of operating spending packages is a way of reviewing and
M Fire & Emergency Operations approving increased operating costs related to new or additional resources
[] Bylaw Enforcement including those that result from increases service levels.

M Building & Plumbing Inspection

[ Council, Grants & Meetings

B contracted Support Services (Finance, Engineering, Website & Other) Recommendation #5 (FP)

E planning
B Municipal Hall, Legal & Audit That Operating Spending Packages be completed as
Il Public Works a means of approving all new expenditures that are

related to new or expanded services or increased
service levels.

N— S

[ Administration, Human Resources & Information Systems

| Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 32



A Village between forest and sea

Table 11 — General Operating Fund Sensitivity Analysis

General Operating Fund Sensitivity Analysis
(Based on 2023 Budget)

1% Increase in Property Taxes = $9,957 of Revenue

% Impact
$ Impact on on
Property Tax Property
Variables Levy Tax Levy Comments
(change in (change in
levy) levy)
1% Increase in Non- ($1,268) -0.13%
Property Tax Fees &
Charges Operating
Revenue
1% increase in Small ($2,570) -0.26%
Communities Grant
1% Increase in $7,192 0.72% After allocation
Regular Operating of centralized
Expenses (Not support costs
including
Indemnities, Wages
& Benefits)
1% Increase in $5,717 0.57%
Indemnities, Wages
& Benefits

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 33



A Village between forest and sea

Water Operating Fund

Graph 14 — Regular Water Operating Fund Revenue 2020 - 2023

Water Operating Fund Revenue 2020 - 2023

$400,000

392,424 396,419
$300,000 288,943

362,430
316,865
$200,000
$100,000
$0

Actual 2020 Actual 2021  Actual 2022 Budget 2023  Estimated
Year-End 2023

B Interest Income
[ water System Connection Fees/Other

B water Annual Fees

Water user fee increases of about 40% were implemented over a 4-year
period (from 2020 to 2023) to put the Village’s Water Operating Fund on

a more sustainable path. Water rates set by Metro Vancouver and
charged by the District of North Vancouver and actual water usage are
the biggest cost drivers impacting rates in the Water Operating Fund.

Graph 15 — Regular Water Operating Fund Expenses 2020 - 2023

Water Operating Fund Expenses 2020 - 2023

400,000 364,361 355,870
$350,000

3300,000 269,085
$250,000
$200,000 182,993
$150,000
$100,000
$50,000
$0

Actual 2020 Actual 2021  Actual 2022 Budget 2023  Estimated
Year-End 2023

341,688

[ water Systems Operations
[ water Purchases & Conveyance

M Allocation of Centralized Cost/Other

Note: In 2021 centralized support cost recoveries were instituted and charged to the
water, WARD and MRN operating areas. These cost recoveries were phased in over a
3-year period to reach full cost recovery in 2023.

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 34



A Village between forest and sea

Graph 16 — Belcarra Historical Water Usage

Belcarra Historical Water Usage
(Cubic Meters)

4,000,000 3,724,540

3,500,000
3000000 —gz5rmam 2743000 2793360 00104
2,500,000
2,000,000
1,500,000
1,000,000
500,000
0

2019 Actual 2020 Actual 2021 Actual 2022 Actual 2023
Projected

The Village of Belcarra’s annual water usage fluctuates from year to year,
with usage trending upward after the peak in 2020. The water usage and
the water rates established by Metro Vancouver are the key drivers of
costs for the Village’s Water Operating Fund.

Metro Vancouver’s non-peak (January to May and October to December)
water rates have increased 6% over the four (4) year period from 2020 to
2023 and the peak (June to September) rates over the same period have
increased by 27.2%.

The Water Operating Fund Sensitivity Analysis (Table 12) shows the impact
of certain variables on the water user rates. The Sensity Analysis shows
that changes in specific operating expenses have on water user rates. For
example, every 1% increase in centralized support costs equates to a 0.42%
increase in water rates, every 1% increase in Metro Vancouver water
charges will increase water rates by 0.22% and every 1% increase in regular
operating expenses will increase water rates by 0.10%

Table 12 — Water Operating Fund Sensitivity Analysis

Water Operating Fund Sensitivity Analysis
(Based on 2023 Budget)

1% Increase in Water User Rates = $3,840 of Revenue

$Impact % Impact
on Water on Water
User User
Variables Rates Rates

Comments

1% Increase in
Centralized Support
Costs

$1,615 0.42%

Billed from
District of North
Vancouver

1% increase in Water
Charges from Metro
Vancouver

$839 0.22%

1% increase in District of
North Vancouver
Infrastructure Charge

$240 0.06%

1% Increase in Regular
Operating Expenses (Not
including Allocation of
Centralized Support
Costs, Wages & Benefits
and Water Charges)

$389 0.10%

1% Increase in Wages &
Benefits

Not including
Allocation of
Centralized
Support Costs

$553 0.14%

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 35




A Village between forest and sea

Graph 18 — WARD Operating Expenses 2020 - 2023

WARD Operating Fund WARD Operating Expenses 2020 - 2023

Graph 17 — WARD Operating Revenue 2020 - 2023 $200,000 187,873 184,853
$180,000
WARD Operating Revenue 2020 - 2023 160,345
$160,000 147,039
$180,000 172,647 173,530
$140,000
154,172
117,389
136,792 $120,000
123,319
$130,000 $100,000
$80,000
$80,000 $60,000
$40,000
$30,000 $20,000
]
s20000 Actual2020  Actual2021  Actual 2022 Budget2023  Estimated Actual 2020 Actual 2021 Actual 2022 Budget 2023 Estimated
e Year-End 2023 Year-End
2023
B Fees & Charges [ Covid Restart Grant [ Interest Income B Allocation of Centralized Support

. 0 . Note: In 2021 centralized support cost recoveries were instituted and charged to the
WARD userfee Increases Of about 40% were lmp/emented over a 4- water, WARD and MRN operating areas. These cost recoveries were phased in over a

year period (from 2020 to 2023) to put the Village’s WARD 3-year period to reach full cost recovery in 2023.

Operating Fund on a more sustainable path. The WARD Operating

Fund has been in a deficit position over the past few years with The below WARD Operating Fund Sensitivity Analysis shows the impact of
certain variables on the WARD user rates. The Sensity Analysis shows that

changes in specific operating expenses have on WARD user rates. For
example, every 1% increase in the waste & recyclables contractor’s charges
equates to a 0.40% increase in WARD user rates.

annual transfers from WARD surplus required to offset the deficits.
The biggest cost driver in WARD is the contractor processing &
hauling costs which are now stable due to new agreement with the

contractor which was entered into in 2021.

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 36



A Village between forest and sea

Table 13 — WARD Operating Fund Sensitivity Analysis

WARD Operating Fund Sensitivity Analysis
(Based on 2023 Budget)
1% Increase in WARD User Rates = $1,710 of Revenue

$Impact on % Impact on

WARD User WARD User
Variables Rates Rates Comments

1% Increase in
Centralized Support
Costs

$810 0.47%

1% increase in Waste

0,
Waste & Recycle $676 0.40% Connections is
Contractor Charges the Contractor

1% Increase in
Regular Operating
Expenses (Not
including Allocation
of Centralized
Support Costs,
Contractor Charges
& Wages &
Benefits)

$97 0.06%

1% Increase in $235 0.14%
Wages & Benefits

Photo credit: Village of Belcarra

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 37



A Village between forest and sea

Debt & Reserves

Debt
Graph 19 — Water Fund Long-Term Debt Outstanding

Water Fund

Long-Term Debt Outstanding
(Total new annual principal & interest payments of

$269,563)
S
S &
) %)
$4,000,000 y § < § s
$3000000 = & & $ T N
" N o 5 2
$2,000,000 - 3 g8 8
-t -
$1,000,000 I I l o
$0 L]
% ) A ) n > ) A
BN LGN LGS LR SR ST A o

The Village’s 25-year MFA water debt won’t be paid off
until 2037. The debt servicing costs on the debt recently
increased based on refinancing at a higher interest rate.

The increase in debt servicing cost on the debt are
recovered via a parcel tax.

Table 14 — Village of Belcarra Borrowing Capacity

Village of Belcarra Estimated Borrowing Capacity

Calculation of Liability Servicing | Maximum Borrowings Over Various Terms Based on
Available 4.5% Interest Rate
Debt
Servicing
Costs
Liability | Based on
Servicing New | Liability
Limit Based | Annual |Servicing
on 2022 Water |Capacity| 5Year | 10-Year | 15Year | 20.-Year | 25-Year
Revenue Debt |Available] Term Term Term Term Term
$570,809 | 5269563 [$301,246]1,300,000/ 2,300,000 | 3,100,000 | 3,800,000 |4,300,000

The Village currently has about $300,000 worth of debt
servicing cost room as per Provincial legislation. This translates
into various borrowing limits based on the duration or term of
the debt. This room does not provide for a very large
borrowing capacity.

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 38



A Village between forest and sea

Debt versus Sustainable Reserve Funding Example

" & W ater Besermoiris due for replacement in 2033 [in 10 uears]

" The cast of the W ater Beservair today iz 1.3 million
" The cast of the -ater Besersair will

grow to 3,034,300 by 20335 due to

annual inflation of 52

" The effective interest rate on the debt is d. 505

Option 1: Sustainable Savings

Tatal costin 2033 #3094 300
Annual Funding Starting in 2024 FEETTTT
Accumulated Annual Funding after 10 $2 577,770
Interest earnings ta 20335 @ 4271 E: 1 i i
Total cost to taxpayer/rate payer 52,577,770
Tatal costin 2033 ¥3.034.300
Annual Principal Pavments FZEESTT
Principal Pavments over 10 'ears 2 6ES.TTO
Annual Interest Pauments #3321
Interest paid over W0 wears@ 4.5 $1.53= 710
Total cost to taxpayer/rate payer 54,061,430

1.483,710

Difference Expressed in 2033

Dollars (with payments discounted
owver 10 years [@ 5%) 5558,3597

The MFA borrowing process is outlined at the below link:

https://mfa.bc.ca/sites/default/files/Processes/01_muni_long_term_tem
porary_borrowing_process.pdf

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 39



A Village between forest and sea

Reserves, Surp|use5 & Deferred Revenue Graph 21 — Total Reserve & Surplus Balances

Graph 20 — Historical Transfers to (from) Reserves & Surpluses

Historical Transfers to (from) Reserves &

Total Reserve & Surplus Balances

$3,000,000
Surpluses $2,521,283
1,417,980 $2,500,000 $2,242,747
$1,350,000 $2,000,000 $1,773,087
$1,150,000 $1,500,000
@ Unrestricted WARD
Operating Fund Surplus 1
$950,000 @ Unrestricted Water 31,000,000
Operating Fund Surplus
$750,000 698,396 @ Unrestricted General $500,000
591,362 Operating Fund Surplus
$550,000 527,317 557,784 O Water Reserve Funds $0
@ General Reserve Funds 2020 2021 2022
$350,000
l Total Reserves & Surpluses
$150,000
$50,000 The Village is able to transfer between $500,000 and
’ ’\9.‘9 '\9.\;» '190 q,@'p "9,{3: 5$600,000 annually to reserves & surpluses which has
&,& \07} é\;z} 8’? & resulted in healthier overall account balances. Healthy
v \a LR .\Q;b" reserve and surplus levels are the key to providing for
6@6 future asset/infrastructure replacement and minimizing
@6\ external debt. The Water Capital Reserve is very low

based on the magnitude of water infrastructure.

Note: 2020 transfers were larger based on the COVID-19 Restart Grant funds received.
In 2023 a one-time BC Growing Communities grant was received from the Province of
BC in the amount of $759,000 which is being transferred to reserves

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 40



A Village between forest and sea

At the end of 2023 the Village will have approximately $192,000 of deferred In terms of the Village’s overall reserves, it would be prudent to establish
revenue on hand. The Major Road Network funding from TransLink is operating reserves for Water and WARD, similar to the Financial
dedicated for the Bedwell Bay Rd. operating & maintenance costs. The Stabilization Reserve in the General Operating Fund, as these two utilities
Climate Action Program and Next Generation 911 funds have to be used as are subject to unpredictable changes in operating costs.

per the program guidelines.

Table 15 — Deferred Revenue Projections

DEFERRED REVENUE PROJECTIONS

(Based on draft financial plan)

Recommendation #6 (FP)

2023 2024
Deterred Revenue That the Village create additional operating reserves
Climate Action Program 90,164 91,746 for the Water & WARD utilities to stabilize
Major Road Network (MRN) TransLink 79,397 75,680 operations and to offset unanticipated expenditure
Nex Generation 911 22,500 45,000 increases and/or losses of revenue.
Total Deferred Revenue $192,061 $218,426 \\ /

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 41



A Village between forest and sea

Property Taxes & Utility Rates

Graph 23 — % Changes in Property Taxes & User Fees

Graph 22 — Property Tax & Utility User Rates History % Changes in Property Taxes & User Fees

Property Tax & Utility User Rates History 2023

$7,000
2022

$6,000

74000 0% 2% 4% 6% 8% 10% 12% 14% 16%
$3,000 | 2020 2021 2022 2023

Bl Property Taxes - %

15% 7% 5% 3%
change
$2,000
@ Water Not Connected
o 10% 12% 12% 10%
Fee - % change
$1,000
O Water Connected Fee
o 6% 11% 12% 10%
s0 - % change
Total Taxes Total Taxes B Refuse & Recyclin
Provert Water F Water Water Fee &Fees  &Fees (Not F % ch ycling 5% 12% 12% 12%
sz:sy WARD Fee (Co:neect::) Parc:I?I'a (Non- (Connected Connected €é - % change
X X Connected) to Water to Water
System) System) ) .
m2020 2,802 332 1,119 973 785 5,266 4,932 Property tax increases have decelerated since the large
2021 3,063 372 1,253 973 879 5,661 5,287 increase in 2020. Water & WARD user rates have had to
m2022 2,939 417 1,403 73 984 5732 5313 increase to put these funds on a more sustainable path that
m2023 3,027 467 1,543 1,110 1,082 6,147 5,686

can pay for increased operating costs.

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 42



A Village between forest and sea

The Village of Belcarra serves as a collection agency for the various taxing
authorities. Only 36% of the total tax burden is controlled by Belcarra. All of
these taxes, together with the Village’s water and WARD user rates and
water parcel tax, are reflected on the annual tax notices.

Graph 24 — 2023 Taxes Raised by Various Taxing Authorities

2023 Taxes Raised by Various Taxing  other (8¢

Authorities Assessment
Authority &
Total = $2,745,390
( 52, ’ ) Municipal
Finance
TranslLink, Authority),
$176,299 , 6% $27,496 , 1%
Metro
Vancouver
Regional
District,
$374,826,
14%

There are many taxing authorities that affect each
taxpayer. Each take up a piece of the tax pie. Only 36%
of the total tax burden is directly attributed to and

controlled by the Village. School Taxes take up the
largest part of the pie at 43%.

In BC, an additional school tax rate applies to high-valued residential
properties, including:

e Detached homes

e Stratified condominium or townhouse units

e Most residential class vacant land

The additional school tax rate applies on the portion valued over $3 million.
The additional tax rate is:

e 0.2% on the residential portion assessed between $3 million and
S4 million
e 0.4% on the residential portion assessed over $4 million

Many Village of Belcarra residents are subject to the above additional
school tax, based on having property values greater than the $3 million. The
S3 million threshold has not changed even though the market or assessed
value of properties has increased dramatically over the past few years.

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 43



A Village between forest and sea

Growth & Development

Table 18 — Assessed Property Value Changes 2023 & 2022

Table 16 — New Construction Assessments & Revenue 2020 & 2021 Village of Belcarra - 2023 Assessed Values (Market & Non-Market) & Percentage
220 201 | e
2020 2021
Non- Market
2023 on-Market | o chg. ue | % chg. o
Non- Market Non- Market Property Assessment (new New Dueto | TO%!%
P t New New Classes construction) . Change
roperty (new . (new . Roll Construction | Market
. Construction . Construction Assessments
Classes construction) Tax Dollars construction) Tax Dollars
Assessments Assessments 01 - Residential | $785,128,800 | $4,180,700 0.58% 9.13% 9.72%
- - 02 - Utilities $248,600 S0 0.00% 4.10% 4.10%
Residential 3,940,500 5,636 3,731,900 5,730 06 “Busi P
Utilities 0 0 0 0 Oﬂ;erus'”ess $70,700 %0 0.00% | 35.96% | 35.96%
Business & 0 0 0 0 08 -
Other Recreation/ $10,145,100 SO 0.00% 3.71% 3.71%
E:e;friiatlon/Non- 0 0 0 0 -II\-lon-IP:I:;flt
t
ota $795,593,200 | $4,180,700
Total All Classes | $3,940,500 $5,636 $3,731,900 $5,730 Classes
Table 17 — New Construction Assessments & Revenue 2022 & 2023 Village of Belcarra - 2022 Assesse%x:Luge;s(Market & Non-Market) & Percentage
Non- Market Non- Market perty Assessment . New Due to °
New New Classes construction) . Change
Property (new . (new . Roll Construction | Market
. Construction . Construction Assessments
Classes construction) Tax Dollars construction) Tax Dollars - - - . .
Assessments Assessments 01 - Residential | $715,599,700 $4,239,000 0.72% 21.19% 21.91%
Residential 4,239,000 5642 4,180,700 5227 02 - Utilities $238,800 SO 0.00% 17.00% 17.00%
Utilities 0 0 0 0 Ooir;e'ius'”ess & $52,000 $48,300 1305.41% | 0.00% | 1305.41%
g‘t‘:"ess & 48,300 157 0 0 08 -
er Recreation/ $9,782,500 ($3,000) -0.04% 32.02% | 31.98%
Recreathn/ (3,000) 4 0 0 Non-Profit
Non-Profit Total Al
Total All Classes | $4,284,300 $5,795 $4,180,700 $5,227 Classes $725,673,000 | $4,284,300

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 44



A Village between forest and sea

Table 19 — Assessed Value Property Changes 2021 & 2020

The Village of Belcarra generates limited additional
property taxation from new assessments or new

Village of Belcarra - 2021 Assessed Values (Market & Non-Market) &

Percentage Changes

2021 Non- Market % Chg. Due | % Chg construction. These additional tax dollars have
: . .
Property Classes | Assessmen cons(tr:'z‘::vtion) New Due to .(I;?\::gﬁ averaged between 55,000 and 56,000 annually over
t Roll Assessments | construction | Market the past 4 years. Assessed values in Belcarra have
been increasing due to market changes which has
01 - Residential »586,965,1 $3,731,900 0.64% -0.22% 0.42% g . g .
00 translated to more taxes going to other taxing
02 - Utilities $204,100 50 0.00% 0.34% | 0.34% authorities such as BC Provincial School taxes, and
Ooil;;usmess & $3,700 S0 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% the Metro Vancouver and the TransLink tax levies.
08 - Recreation/ | - 415 000 $0 0.00% 0.05% | 0.05%
Non-Profit
Total All Classes $5946384'9 $3,731,900

Village of Belcarra - 2020 Assessed Values (Market & Non-Market) &

Percentage Changes

Non- Mark
2020 on-Market | o che. Due | % che.
(new Total %
Property Classes | Assessmen TR ) New Due to Change
t Roll Construction | Market &
Assessments
01 - Residential $5846325’7 $3,940,500 0.61% -10.01% -9.40%
02 - Utilities $203,400 SO 0.00% -7.42% -7.42%
06 - Busi &
UsIness $3,700 $0 0.00% 0.00% | 0.00%
Other
08 - Recreation/ | o /58 500 $0 -0.42% 3.43% | 3.01%
Non-Profit
Photo credit: BC Assessment
592,141,0
Total All Classes 3 60 ! $3,940,500

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 45



A Village between forest and sea

The following excerpts have been taken from the Village of Belcarra’s recent

Official Community Plan (OCP) update which is due to go to public hearing.

According to the OCP, “Belcarra’s population increased from 643 residents
in 2016 to 687 in 2021 - a 6.8% population increase over a 5-year timeline.
The Metro 2050 Regional Growth Strategy (RGS) anticipates growth to
continue to occur across the region. Belcarra is designated as a Rural area
and is not deemed a significant area for growth as it is outside of Metro
Vancouver's Urban Containment Boundary and has limited available land
base to accommodate future growth. Belcarra is a small Village with a total
land area of 5.5 square kilometers (km2) and only 30% (1.6 km2 ) is
developable area.”

As per the Village’s draft OCP update, “new development in Belcarra is
constrained by the availability of developable lots with appropriate

services required for construction.”

The ability to accommodate future residential growth is most likely
dependent on what happens with the “Future Residential” areas indicated
on Figure 9 OCP (see opposite) within the Land Use Designation Map and
the OCP goes on to state that: “No new roads will be funded by the Village
during the period of this OCP, however, the Village will participate in and
support an appropriate planning process, initiated and paid for by the
owners of Farrer Cove (South) properties, which involves all relevant
stakeholders to develop legal road access to this area. The capital cost to
design and build a new road to service Farrer Cove (South) properties will
not be borne by the Village and should minimize traffic impacts on existing
Village residents in the area.”

According to the OCP, “beyond incremental re-development of existing
residential neighbourhoods there are only two areas within the Village
boundary that have been identified as having potential to create new
housing opportunities. The first of these sites is Provincial Crown land.

These lands are estimated to be approximately 20 acres in total and could
provide approximately 12 half acre lots after accounting for topography,
environmental sensitivities, service, and access requirements. The second
area identified is Farrer Cove where there is substantial potential to create
additional housing through subdivision of 15 large lots and a portion of the
Evangelical Laymen’s Church (ELC) site.” These sites are designated in red as
special study areas in the map below.

Map 4: Village of Belcarra, Official Community Plan

As per the draft OCP, “land for new housing options in Belcarra is
limited and the two areas for potential development face hurdles in

that one is Provincial Crown Land and the other is the remote Farrer
Cove area which does not have public road access. This makes any
new development uncertain and complex.”

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 46



A Village between forest and sea

The OCP states that: “ ‘Commercial’ land use designation is new, and no
lands have been identified for commercial uses. A new commercial land use
designation should encourage businesses that serve the needs of the
community, but it is also acknowledged that the small Village population
and limited parking available for visitors may make commercial
development difficult to realize. However, it may be possible to encourage
commercial services by creating a more flexible approach to home-based
businesses, which could reduce vehicle trips out of the community to obtain
day-today necessities.”

Generally home-based businesses are not assessed under the
business/other property class by the BC Assessment Authority (BCAA),
accept in special circumstance as outlined by BCAA policy which can be
accessed at the following link:

https://info.bcassessment.ca/services-and-products/APPs/Home-Based-
Business-Live-Work-Policy.pdf

Map 5: Village of Belcarra Official Community Plan Aerial Photograph

The opportunities for addition business or commercial
classified properties, and thus addition property taxes, are
limited in Belcarra due to lack of developable commercial

land and because the BC Assessment Authority only
designates home-based businesses under the business
classification in special circumstances.

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 47



A Village between forest and sea

The potential annual property tax revenue from the development of the
two sites identified above is shown in the table below. The actual revenue
would be dependent upon the assessed values and property tax rates in
effect at the time of development; therefore, the estimated revenue would
change. The $136,162 of new revenue is the equivalent to a 13.7% tax
impact based on 2023 property tax levy.

The draft OCP is currently undergoing a revision which
will be brought forward in early 2023, and the potential
development areas, including the number of possible
lots, may change in the revised version.

Table 20 — Potential Development Revenue as Identified in Draft OCP

Potential Development Revenue as Identified in Draft OCP (presented in September of 2023)

2023
Estimated Estimated Residential Estimated
Current Land Value of Estimated Estimated Tax Rate per Annual
Values Per Improvements Number of Total Assessed $1,000 of Property Tax
Development Property Parcel if per Parcel if Residential Property Assessed Revenue
Description Subdivided Developed Lots Values Value Currently

20 acres of Provincial
Crown Land (potential

development) $1,200,000 $2,500,000 12 $44,400,000 1.25034 $55,515
Farrer Cove (potential

development) $1,500,000 $2,800,000 15 $64,500,000 1.25034 $80,647
Totals $108,900,000 $136,162

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 48



A Village between forest and sea

The Province of BC has introduced legislation that will bring about sweeping
changes to the local planning framework through new requirements to
allow increased density in areas currently zoned for single-family or duplex
use. The legislation will also change housing needs reporting and public
hearing requirements and require more frequent updating of Official
Community Plans together with pre-zoning that accommodates a 20-year
housing supply.

The legislation and forthcoming regulations will require all local
governments to update zoning bylaws to permit one secondary suite or
laneway home (accessory dwelling unit) in all single-family residential zones.

The Province will also require zoning bylaws to be updated by June 30, 2024
to permit small-scale, multi-unit housing such as triplexes and townhomes
in municipalities of over 5,000 people.

The Province of BC has introduced legislation requiring all
local governments to update zoning bylaws to permit one
secondary suite or laneway home (accessory dwelling
unit) in all single-family residential zones. The Province
will also require zoning bylaws to be updated by June 30,

2024 to permit small-scale, multi-unit housing such as Photo credit: Province of BC
triplexes and townhomes in municipalities of over 5,000
people. It is too early to tell if and how these changes in
legislation will impact the Village of Belcarra.

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 49


https://news.gov.bc.ca/releases/2023PREM0062-001706

A Village between forest and sea

Asset Management Plan & Funding
Overview

The Village of Belcarra’s detailed Asset Management Plan and related
results are shown in Appendix “H”. A summary of the major findings, a
related funding analysis and recommendations follow. The replacement
cost of assets as shown in the Asset Management Plan are rough projections
of asset value in 2023 dollars. These estimates are intended to provide a
comparative, broad basis for decision-making and do not reflect the true,
accurate costs of undertaking the projects.

Asset Inventory Valuation

The total estimated replacement cost of the Village’s capital
assets/infrastructure is approximately $21.5 million. In comparison the total
historical cost of the Village’s assets at the end of 2022 was approximately
$14.5 million and the net book value or depreciated cost was 10.5 million.
The breakdown in the Village’s asset/infrastructure inventory follows is
shown the following table.

The estimated replacement cost of the Village’s
assets/infrastructure in 2023 dollars is about $21.5 million.
The majority of these assets are in Water Treatment &

Distribution (510.5 million), Stormwater Collection (54.0
million) & Transportation (4.5milion) asset groups.

Table 21 — Asset Inventory & Replacement Costs

Replacement  Average

Asset Groups Value (2023 Life

(Systems) CAD) Span

Land & Natural

Average
Remaining
Years

% of Useful
Life
Consumed

Assets N/A N/A N/A N/A
Buildings, Structures $1,399.500 a4 ” 44%
and Components

Equipment $155,900 18 14 23%
Fleet $500,000 12 11 8%
Information Systems $94,000 5 3 40%
Multi-Use Path, Trail

& Road Shoulder $136,767 26 15 43%
Network

Stormwater $4,029,252 72 40 44%
Collection

Transportation $4,521,164 23 13 44%
Waste & Recycle $185,000 15 11 27%
Depot

Water Treatment ¢, 502,029 66 44 34%

and Distribution

Grand Total $21,523,612

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 50




A Village between forest and sea

Sustainable Annual Funding

The total Sustainable Annual Funding in terms of the amount of money that
needs to be set aside on an annual basis to replace the Village’s assets is
$575,737 which can be broken down to $370,334 for General Fund assets,
$16,083 for WARD Fund assets and $189,320 for Water Fund Assets. These
values were determined by taking individual asset replacement costs
dividing by estimated, remaining useful lives.

Table 22 — Annual Reserve Contributions for Assets

Annual
Asset Groups (Systems) Reserve
Land and Natural Assets N/A N/A
Buildings, Structures and Components $30,454 5.3%
Equipment $7,720 1.3%
Fleet $41,667 7.3%
Information Systems $18,800 3.2%
Multi-Use Path, Trail & Road Shoulder Network $5,230 0.9%
Stormwater Collection $57,576 10%
Transportation $208,887 36.2%
Subtotal General Fund Assets $370,334 64.0%
Waste & Recycle Depot $16,083 2.8%

Water Treatment and Distribution $189,320 32.8%
Grand Total $575,737 100.0%

The Sustainable Annual Funding levels address the replacement of
existing assets/infrastructure only, not new assets. Therefore, reserve

transfers need to be higher than Sustainable Annual Funding to pay
for new or upgraded assets.

Funding Levels & Reserves

Funding for the replacement of the Village’s assets is discussed in this
section including a review of the Village’s current reserve levels.

Annual Funding Levels

The Village’s current annual funding for asset/infrastructure replacement is
$594,200 (see below) (does not include operating and surplus transfers),
which represents the current level of capital reserve transfers. Only $24,200
is generated from the Water Operating Fund and $1,000 from the WARD
Operating Fund, which means that the Water and WARD utilities are not
meeting their annual sustainable funding levels which are $189,320 and
$16,083 respectively. The majority of the Village’s capital reserve transfers
(5570,000) are generated from General Operating Fund, i.e., general
taxation and other revenues.

Table 23 — Funding Sources or Assets

Funding Sources

Transfers to Reserves: From General Fund $387,000
Taxation
Transfer to Reserve: Community Building Fund $63,000
Annual Interest Revenue Allocated to Reserves $120,000
Subtotal General Reserves $570,000
Transfer to Reserve: Waste & Recycle Depot $1,000
(WARD) Equipment
Transfers to Reserves: Water Utility $22,000
Annual Reserve Interest Revenue Water $1,200
Subtotal WARD & Water Reserve $24,200

Grand Total $594,200

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 51



A Village between forest and sea

Sustainable Annual Funding versus Actual Funding Summary of Reserves (Accumulated Funding)

Based on the asset management results, the Village’s has excess funding of
$199,666 in the General Fund and funding shortfalls of $15,083 and
$166,120 in the WARD and Water Funds, respectively, in term of setting
aside funds for asset replacement. As noted above the sustainable annual
funding levels are for the replacement of the Village’s existing
assets/infrastructure only at the end of their useful lives and these amounts
do include the investment in new and/or upgraded assets/infrastructure.

The following capital reserves are currently in place in part to fund the
renewal or replacement of the Village’s existing assets or infrastructure, as
well as new assets. These funding sources do not include the operating
reserve (Financial Stabilization Reserve) and Unrestricted Surpluses in each
the Genera, Water and WARD Funds. The Village has a reserve & surplus
policy which sets out the purpose of each of its reserve, and in some cases
minimum and optimal reserve levels have been established.

Table 24 — Sustainable Annual Funding versus Actual Annual Funding for Assets
Table 25 — Reserve Balances

Difference
Sustainable Actual [Annual Projected 2023
Annual GLUE] Funding - Gap Year-End

Assets Groups (Systems) Funding Funding or Excess) Reserves Balances Comments
Land & Natural Assets N/A N/A N/A
Buildings & Components $30,454 As per below  As per below BC Growing Communities $770,000 One-time injection of funds
Equipment $7,720 As per below As per below Fund ’ from Province of BC
Fleet $41,667 As per below As per below Community Building Reserve Agreement subject to
Information Systems $18,800 As per below As per below Fund $250,000 renewal after 2024
Multi-Use Pathways, Trails As per below As per below
& Road Shoulder (MTRS) General Capital Reserve Fund $1,126,000
Network $5,230 Vehicle & Equipment Capital
Stormwater Collection $57,576 As per below As per below Reserve Fund $105,000
Transportation $208,887 As per below As per below

Subtotal General Capital $370,334 $570,000 $199,666 Transportation Infrastructure $488,000
Waste & Recycle Depot $16,083 $1,000 -$15,083 Reserve Fund
Water Treatment and .
Distribution $189,320 $23,200 -$166,120 Water Capital Reserve Fund 5129,000
Grand Totals $575,737 $594,200 $18,463 Grand Total $2,868,000

* Currently, the Village’s Reserve Transfers are not dedicated by asset class as
outlined above. Reserve Transfers are allocated according to available funding in
General, WARD and Water. WARD currently does not have a dedicated reserve,
but it contributes to the Vehicle & Equipment Replacement Reserve.

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 52



A Village between forest and sea

ACCleUIated InfraStrUCture Fundlng Gap Table 27 — Accumulated Funding Gap for Assets

The Village’s current Accumulated Infrastructure Funding Gap is estimated

Reserve Targets
to be $5.3 million (as shown on in Table 27). $2.3 million of this is

Based on % of Actual Accumulated

attributable to Water Infrastructure. This estimate is based on taking the

percentage consumed for each asset type times the replacement cost of the

Asset Groups
(Systems)

Assets
Consumed

Reserve
Balances?

Infra. Funding
Gap

assets less actual reserve levels. The WARD has been considered as part of Land & Natural N/A N/A N/A
the General Reserves in this exercise as it contributes a small amount Assets
annually to the Village’s Vehicle & Equipment Replacement Reserve. Buildings and As per below As per below
Components $615,780
The Accumulated Infrastructure Funding Gaps can be closed by moving to Equipment $35,857 As per below As per below
the annual sustainable annual funding for Water and WARD as soon as Fleet _ $40,000 As per below As per below
possible and by maintaining the current amount of General Fund reserve Informatlon Systems 537,600 As per below As per below
Multi-Use Pathways,
transfers. .
Trails & Road
As per below As per below
- : : : : Shoulder (MTRS)
To close the funding gaps in Water and WARD immediately would require
. . . Network $58,810
the following user rate increases. These increases would be separate and Stormwater
apart from the increases required to maintain services in the Water and Collection $1,772,871 As per below As per below
WARD utilities. Transportation $1,989,312 As per below As per below
) o Waste Recycle Depot $49,950 As per below As per below
Table 26 — Funding Gaps for Water & WARD Utilities Subtotal General
$'s % Reserves $4,600,180 $2,739,000 $1,861,180
Generated | Increase W T
ater Treatment $3,570,690 $129,000 $3,441,690

Sustainable
Annual
Funding

Asset Groups
(Systems)

from
Every 1%
Actual Annual Increase
Annual Funding in Utility
Funding Gap Rates

Required
to
Eliminate
Funding
(CET

and Distribution

Grand Totals $8,170,870 $2,868,000 $5,302,870

The Village’s Accumulated Infrastructure Funding gap is
estimated to be about 55.3 million based %s of assets

Waste & $16,083 = $1,000  $15083  $1,710 8.82%

Recycle Depot consumed and current reserve levels.

r::;::nent and | $189.320  $23200 | $166.120  $3,840 43.26% This a rough estimate as an average of the life all assets in
Distribution ’ ’ ’ ’ each asset group has been used.

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 53




A Village between forest and sea

Funding Recommendations Asset Management
(AM)

Recommendation #1 AM — That sustainable funding levels be

achieved in the Water & WARD utilities by implementing
minimum rate increases over the next three years.

Implementing the following minimum utility rate increases over the next
3 years will ensure the Water & WARD utilities can cover their operating
costs in the future including infrastructure replacement costs:

Table 28 — Recommended WARD & Water Utility Rate Increases

Waste & Recycle Depot 20% 10% 10%

Water Treatment and

0, 0, o,
Distribution 20% 15% 15%

Recommendation #2 AM - That the Village investigate
removing the Water and WARD utility rates from tax notices to

be billed on separate utility bills invoiced on a quarterly or
semi-annual basis.

The above recommendation is aimed at separating the utility rates from
property taxes and treating Water and WARD similar to other utilities.
This would also allow rate payers to be more aware of the cost of these
utility services and to budget for these costs throughout the year.

Recommendation #3 AM - That minimum & optimal reserve &
surplus levels be established, based on the Asset Management

plan and Long-Term Financial Plan results, and that Corporate
Policy No. 211 — Reserve Funds and Surpluses, be updated.

The Village has Corporate Policy No. 211: Reserve Funds and Surpluses
(Policy), which sets out the philosophy and principles behind the
Village’s reserve and surpluses as well as the purpose of each. This
Policy which was adopted in 2020 did not define the minimum and
optimal levels for many of the reserve and surplus accounts as there
was limited infrastructure/asset replacement cost data and long-term
financial plan information at that time.

Now that we have the Asset Management Plan and Long-Term Financial
Plan results it is recommended that Corporate Policy No. 211: Reserve
Funds and Surpluses, be updated including the establishment of minimum &
optimal levels for all reserves & surpluses and that annual reports be
provided to Council as to the progress towards meeting the optimal levels.

Recommendation #4 AM - That lifecycle costing be integrated

into procurement decisions when updating Corporate Policy
No. 203 - Procurement (including Disposal of Assets)

Council should be provided with full life-cycle information when making
decisions related to Village infrastructure and assets.

Procurement decisions utilize evaluation scoring based on numerous
factors. If a procurement decision only considers implementation or capital
costs and fails to consider lifecycle costs, including ongoing operating
impacts, a more expensive option may be selected. As an example, a
hypothetical software purchase is shown below:

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 54



A Village between forest and sea

Table 29 — Life Cycle Costing

Software #1 Software #2
Software Purchase $50,000 $100,000
Implementation Costs $20,000 $50,000
Total Acquisition Costs $70,000 $150,000

At first glance, Software #2 appears to be more expensive and, therefore,
would receive half the score of Software #1. However, when evaluated from

a lifecycle costing perspective, Software #2 is much less expensive:

Table 30 — Life Cycle Costing Example

Software #1 Software #2

Software Purchase $50,000 $100,000

Implementation Costs $20,000 $50,000

A | Total Acquisition Costs $70,000 $150,000

B | Annual Licensing Costs $20,000 $10,000

C | Expected Useful Life 10 years 15 years

D | Total Licensing Cost per Useful $200,000 $150,000
Life (BxC)

E | Total Lifecycle Costs (A+D) $270,000 $300,000

F | Annualized Lifecycle Costs (E/C) $27,000 per $20,000 per

year year

Under the Acquisition Costing Procurement Method in table 1, Software #2
appears to be more than twice as expensive. However, Software #2 is found
to be 25% less expensive when annual lifecycle costs are calculated.

The Village’s Corporate Policy No. 203 — Procurement (including Disposal of
Assets, is due to be update as part of Council’s strategic work plan and it is
recommended that the Policy be amended to encourage staff to consider

lifecycle costs when scoring procurement processes.

Recommendation #5 AM — That the estimated operating cost

impacts of capital projects be integrated into capital decision
making and approval process.

The Village’s capital budgets, and related decision making do not currently
consider the ongoing operating impact of capital expenditures. In other
words, capital budgets are approved without an assessment of the ongoing
operating impacts which are often present. Operating costs are often
incurred to operate or maintain capital.

When capital expenditure decisions are made during budget deliberations,
it is important that Council consider the operating costs of the capital
projects. This would include the initial capital outlay (construction and
acquisition costs) and estimated and associated operating or maintenance
costs.

Recommendation #6 AM - That long-term cash flows be

aligned with the Village’s long-term investment portfolio
horizon to maximize investment returns

Aligning the Village’s investment portfolio with long-term cash flow
projections will allow the Village to generate higher investment returns.
Investment returns can significantly reduce the Village’s need to raise taxes
and utility fees in order to fund infrastructure and asset replacement.

It is recommended that multi-year cash flow projections be established
based on the Village’s long-term operating and capital financial plans and
the investment portfolio be aligned with the cash flow projections.

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 55



A Village between forest and sea

Integrated Long-Term (15-Year) Financial

Plans
General Operating Fund

A base detailed long-term (15-year) financial plan for the General Operating
Fund is provided in Appendix “C” and an overview of reserve and surplus
transfers generated and revenues and expenses follows. The base plan
reflects annual property tax increases of 4% including 2024.

Graph 25 — General Operating Fund Reserve & Surplus Transfers

$800,000
$700,000
$600,000
$500,000
$400,000
$300,000
$200,000
$100,000

S0

[ General Operating Fund Transfers

e % Change General Operating Fund Transfers

Draft
Budget
2024

580,778

12%

Plan

2025

607,064 603,745 633,900

5%

Plan

2026

-1%

The key to the plan is the net revenue/expenses that can be transferred to
reserves/surpluses to provide for the Village’s long-term sustainability
including the ability to fund capital projects internally with minimal or no
debt. This includes new assets as well as the replacement of the assets and

infrastructure as identified in the Asset Management Plan (see attached).
The overall reserve and surplus transfers generated via the long-term plan
are shown below. The Village’s progress in terms of meeting these
reserve/surplus targets can be tracked over time.

General Operating Fund Reserve & Surplus Transfers

Plan

2027

5%

Plan

2028

548,901

-13%

Plan

2029

570,650 605,412 633,446 671,858 585,225 613,508

4%

Plan

2030

6%

Plan

2031

5%

Plan

2032

6%

Plan

2033

-13%

Plan

2034

5%

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 56

15.0%
10.0%
5.0%
0.0%
-5.0%
-10.0%

-15.0%
Plan Plan Plan Plan

2035 2036 2037 2038

645,850 681,859 726,178 643,149

5% 6% 6% -11%



A Village between forest and sea

Graph 26 — Regular General Operating Revenue 2024 - 2038

Regular General Operating Fund Revenue 2024 - 2038

$2,500,000
2,552,823 2,642,116
2,466,812
2,304,149 2,383,961
$2,000,000 2,227,261 77
2,153,187
2,081,819
2,013,055
1,946,800
1,882,955
1.762.142 1,821,432
1,685,395 ’
1,630,708 4
$1,500,000
$1,000,000
$500,000
1]
Draft Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan
Budget 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038

2024

B Taxes [ Grant Transfers [ Fees & Charges [ Interest Income

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 57



A Village between forest and sea

Graph 27 — Regular General Operating Expenses 2024 - 2038

Regular General Fund Operating Expenses 2024 - 2038

$2,800,000 2,667,304
2,395,453 2,449,672
2,334,261
2,277,119
$2,300,000 2,208,482
2,010,337
1,871,929 1,917,828 1,967,064
1,816,271 7
$1,800,000 1,601,054 1,635,745
1'451,977 1,489,826
$1,300,000
$800,000
$300,000
-$200,000 Draft Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan
Budget 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038
2024
O Administration, Human Resources & Information Systems B public Works
B Municipal Hall, Legal & Audit @ Planning
[ contracted Support Services (Finance, Engineering, Website & Other) O council, Grants & Meetings
[ Building & Plumbing Inspection [ Bylaw Enforcement
M Fire & Emergency Operations [ Interest, Bank Expenses, Bad Debts & Other

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 58



A Village between forest and sea

Water Operating Fund

A base detailed long-term (15-year) financial plan for the Water Operating
Fund is provided in Appendix “D” and an overview of user rates increases,
reserve and surplus transfers and revenues and expenses follows. The plan
includes a 20% increase in 2024, 15% increases in each of 2025 & 2026, and
5% each year thereafter. As shown in the Asset Management Plan the
Water Fund is not currently at a sustainable funding level in terms of setting
aside funds for asset replacement.

As noted previously the main cost drivers for Water Operating Fund are
water usage and Metro Vancouver water rates. Metro Vancouver has

approved a 14.7% increase in peak water rates (applies to months June
through to September) for 2024, with non-peak rates staying the same as

The water rate increases projected by Metro Vancouver for 2025 — 2028 are
as follows:

2025 —-8.9%, (%'s apply to the ‘blended’, Peak, Off-peak)
2026 — 6.4%, (%'s apply to the ‘blended’, Peak, Off-peak)
2027 —3.5%, (%’s apply to the ‘blended’, Peak, Off-peak)
2028 — 2.7%, (%'s apply to the ‘blended’, Peak, Off-peak)

The above highlights the importance of controlling water usage, particularly

during the peak months from June through September.

2023.
Table 31 — Water Rates & Increases in Draft Long-Term Financial Plan
Water Rates & Increases Projected In Long-Term Financial Plan
Years | 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038
Water - Connected
Total Water Fee (Connected) 1,852 2,130 2,450 2,573 2,702 2,837 2,979 3,128 3,284 3,448 3,620 3,801 3,991 4,191 4,401
Water Parcel Tax 1,120 1,210 1,110 1,110 1,210 1,110 1,210 1,220 1,110 1,110 1,210 1,110 1,110 1,110 1,110
Total Water Fee (Connected) & Parcel Tax | 2,962 3,240 3560 3,683 3,812 3947 4,089 4238 4394 4558 4,730 4,911 5,101 5301 5511
Total Water Fee (Not Connected) 1,298 1,493 1,717 1,803 1,893 1,988 2,087 2,191 2301 2416 2,537 2,664 2,797 2,937 3,084
Water Parcel Tax 1,110 1,220 1,220 1,110 1,220 1,220 1,110 1,110 1,220 1,110 1,110 1,220 1,110 1,110 1,110
Total Water Fee (Not Connected) & Parcel
Tax 2,408 2,603 2,827 2913 3,003 3,098 3,197 3,301 3,411 3,526 3,647 3,774 3,907 4,047 4,194
Water Connected Fee - % change (total) 20% 15% 15% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5%
Water Connected Fee - $ change (total) 309 278 320 123 129 135 142 149 156 164 172 181 190 200 210
Water Not Connected Fee - % change
(total) 20% 15% 15% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5%
Water Not Connected Fee - $ change
(total) 216 195 224 86 90 95 99 104 110 115 121 127 133 140 147

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 59




A Village between forest and sea

Graph 28 — Water Operating Fund Reserve & Surplus Transfers

Water Operating Fund Reserve & Surplus Transfers

$450,000 200.0%
$400,000
0,
$350,000 150.0%
$300,000
100.0%
$250,000
$200,000
50.0%
$150,000
$100,000 0.0%
$50,000 I
S0 -50.0%
Draft
Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan
Budget
2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038
2024
[ Water Operating Fund Transfers 76,250 131,580 189,577 212,241 191,463 211,803 233,211 259,402 286,307 269,459 293,843 325,755 357,184 391,746 378,580
% Change Water Operating Fund Transfers ~ 172% 73% 44% 12% -10% 11% 10% 11% 10% -6% 9% 11% 10% 10% -3%

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 60



A Village between forest and sea

Graph 29 — Water Operating Fund Revenue 2024 - 2038

Water Operating Fund Revenue 2024 - 2038

$1,200,000
1,106,568
1,054,130
1,004,186
$1,000,000 956,618
911,312
868,161
827,062
787,917
$800,000 750,634
715,125
681,304
649,092
618,411
$600,000 538,722
469,409
$400,000
$200,000
S0
Draft Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan
Budget 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038
2024
B Water Annual Fees ] water System Connection Fees/Other E Interest Income

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 61



A Village between forest and sea

Graph 30 — Water Operating Fund Expenses 2024 - 2038

Water Operating Fund Expenses 2024 - 2038

$1,000,000
727,988
$900,000
662,384
647,002 ’
$800,000 617,469 630,863
598,702
$700,000 517,423 528,515 540,755
489,841 503,322
$600,000
428,834 436,851
$500,000 393,159 407,142
$400,000
$300,000
$200,000
$100,000
$0
Draft Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan
Budget 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038

2024

B Allocation of Centralized Cost/Other [ water Purchases & Conveyance B water Systems Operations

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 62



A Village between forest and sea

WARD Operating Fund
A base detailed long-term (15-year) financial plan for the WARD Operating The WARD Operating Fund also has as low surplus balance and cannot
Fund is provided in Appendix “E” and an overview of user rate increases, continue to fund operating deficits from surplus.

reserve & surplus transfers and revenues and expenses follows. The plan
includes 20% increase in 2024, 10% increases in each of 2025 and 2026, and
4% increases each year thereafter. As shown in the Asset Management Plan
the WARD Fund is not currently at a sustainable funding level for the
replacement of its infrastructure.

Table 32 — WARD Rates & Increases in Draft Long-Term Financial Plan

WARD Rates & Increases Projected In Long-Term Financial Plan

Years | 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038

WARD Fee 560 616 678 705 733 762 792 824 857 891 927 964 1,003 1,043 1,085
Refuse & Recycling Fee - % change 20% 10% 10% 4% 4% 4% 4% 4% 4% 4% 4% 4% 4% 4% 4%
Refuse & Recycling Fee - $ change 93 56 62 27 28 29 30 32 33 34 36 37 39 40 42

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 63




A Village between forest and sea

Graph 31 — WARD Operating Fund Reserve & Surplus Transfers

WARD Operating Fund Reserve & Surplus Transfers

$50,000 300.0%
$40,000
200.0%
$30,000
o,
$20,000 100.0%
$10,000 I 0.0%
$0
-100.0%
-$10,000
-$20,000 -200.0%
Draft
Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan
Budget
2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038
2024
[ WARD Operating Fund Transfers (9,566) 4,616 14,844 19,216 12,900 15,522 18,185 22,722 27,060 20,972 23,207 28,565 33,001 38,284 31,522
= % Change WARD Operating Fund Transfers  -37% -148% 222% 29% -33% 20% 17% 25% 19% -22% 11% 23% 16% 16% -18%

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 64



A Village between forest and sea

Graph 32 — WARD Operating Fund Revenue 2024 - 2038

WARD Operating Fund Revenue 2024 - 2038

$450,000
400,671
$400,000 385,325
370,568
342,733 336,378
$350,000 329,611
316,992
293,190 304,858
$300,000 281,969
260,804 271,179
250,826 !
$250,000 228,214
207,654

$200,000
$150,000
$100,000

$50,000

S0
Draft Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan
Budget 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038

2024

B Fees & Charges [ Interest Income

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 65



A Village between forest and sea

Graph 33 — WARD Operating Fund Expenses 2024 - 2038

WARD Operating Fund Expenses 2024 - 2038

$400,000
369,149

347,041
$350,000 B L
319,526 ’
308,639
$300,000 282136 289,932
266,407 272005
258,279 '
$250,000 235,982 241,588
217,220 223598

$200,000
$150,000
$100,000
$50,000

$0

Draft Plan 2025 Plan 2026 Plan 2027 Plan 2028 Plan 2029 Plan 2030 Plan 2031 Plan 2032 Plan 2033 Plan 2034 Plan 2035 Plan 2036 Plan 2037 Plan 2038
Budget
2024

B Allocation of Centralized Support ~ [[] WARD Operations

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 66



A Village between forest and sea

Long-Term (15-year) Capital Plans Overview

Detailed long-term (15-year) capital plans for all of the Village’s Funds This means that the capital plan represents a worst-case scenario in terms
(General, Water & WARD) are provided in Appendix “F” and an overview of of asset and infrastructure replacement. The cost estimates in the capital
planned capital spending over the next 15 years, for General, Water and plan also represent “order of magnitude” pricing and contingency factors
WARD Capital, follows, together with the major projects planned for over have been built into most of the capital project cost estimates. The Village’'s
the next 5 years (to 2028). The projects listed represent new capital projects capital projects will be subject to ongoing inflationary cost pressures within
and well as the replacement of existing assets or infrastructure that will the construction industry. According to the BC Construction Industry “The
reach the end of their useful lives as per the Asset Management Plan. industry is experiencing a 79% increase in the value of current projects from
Before assets are replaced condition assessments will be undertaken to see five years ago, and a 17% increase from pre-pandemic levels, even as labour
if service lives can be extended. shortages continue, and cost of goods are at all-time high.

Graph 34 — 15-Year (2024 — 2028) Capital Plan

15-Year (2024 - 2028) Capital Plan
$1,000,000

$800,000
$600,000
$400,000

$200,000
$0 R

D Yo © 1\ D> ) Q N 42 ) D o) © 2\ D
SN LS M ST LS LA LGN A T UM (AN | AN (ST AN S
- Total General Capital Water Capital - \WARD Capital

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 67



A Village between forest and sea

General Capital Plan

The long-term General Capital Plan includes about $5.5 million of spending over the next 15 years and $3.3 million over
the next 5 years. A summary of the General Capital Plan is shown in Graph 35 below and the higher value projects are

shown in Table 33 below (2 pages).

The major projects over the next 5 years include: Shelter of Public Works Machinery in 2026 for $100,000; Replacement
of the Holland Tractor in 2024 for $160,000; Marine Ave - Mill & Fill in 2024 for $165,000; Belcarra Bay Rd (from stop
sign to Turtlehead Rd) in 2026 at $287,500; Belcarra Bay Rd (from Turtlehead Rd to Whiskey Cove Lane) in 2028 at
$200,000; the Bedwell Bay Rd. Upgrade Project for (BBUP) (from 2024 to 2027) (total cost of $1.265 million - funded
with a TransLink Grant and Growing Communities Reserve); Gabion wall Main Ave (intersection Bedwell Bay Rd) (per

Asset Management) (total cost of $250,000).

Table 33 — General Major Capital Projects over the Next 5 Years

Major Projects over Next 5 Years

program value greater than or equal to $20,000)

Draft
Budget Plan Plan Plan Plan Total Capital
Page 1 of 2 Funding Sources 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2024 - 2038
General & Information Technology
Computers/Hardware General Capital Reserve 23.000 1,800 10,100 12,600 2,000 49,500
Subtotal General $23,000 $1,800 $10,100 $12,600 $2,000 49,500
Public Works & Municipal Hall
New Generator (for Municipal Hall & Public Works) Vehicle & Equipment Resernve 40,000 40,000
Permanent Shelter For Public Works Machinery General Capital Reserve 100,000 100,000
Public Works Driveway General Capital Reserve 50,000 50,000
Public Works Fuel Station (above ground fuel tank, pump &
catchment) (per Asset Management) General Capital Reserve 40,000 40,000
Public Works Equipment Vehicle & Equipment Resernve 8.500 5.000 5,000 5.000 5.000 28,500
Municipal Hall Septic Systems (per Asset Management) General Capital Reserve 75,000 75,000
Subtotal Public Works $8,500 $80,000 | $195,000 $45,000 $5,000 $333,500
Vehicles & Equipment
Chipper (per Asset Management) Vehicle & Equipment Reserve 20,000 20,000
Holland TN70DA Tractor, Deluxe Cab 4x4 with bucket/New
Backhoe, JD 310 General Capital Reserve 160,000 160,000
Subtotal Vehicle & Attachments $160,000 $0 $0 $20,000 $0 $180,000
Non-MRN Roads including Access
Canada Community-Building
Marine Ave - Mill & Fill (Marine) Fund Reserve 165,000 165,000
Transportation Infrastructure
Turn around area 4000 block Marine ave (per Asset Management) Resere 60,000 60,000
Belcarra Bay Rd (from stop sign to Turtlehead Rd) + possible Transportation Infrastructure
drainage design Resemve 287 500 287,500
Transportation Infrastructure
Belcarra Bay Rd (from Turtlehead Rd to Whiskey Cove Lane) Reseme 200,000 200,000
Transportation Infrastructure
Senkler Bridge Wing Wall Repair (per Council motion) Resere 20,000 20,000
Transportation Infrastructure
Tatlow Station Access Rd. Resemve 70,000 70,000
Transportation Infrastructure
Road Rehabilitation (including pothole repairs) Resere 30,000 30,000 60,000
Transportation Infrastructure
Shouldering Boulevards Resene 15.000 15.000 15.000 45,000
Subtotal Non-MRN Roads $185,000 $45,000 | $287,500 $175,000 $215,000 $907,500

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 68




A Village between forest and sea

Major Projects over Next 5 Years

program value greater than or equal to $20,000)
Draft
Budget Plan Plan Plan Plan Total Capital
Page 2 of 2 Funding Sources 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2024 - 2038
MRN Roads
Bedwell Bay Upgrade Project (BBUP) (Construction) Grant TransLink 207,000 207,000 207,000 207,000 828,000
Growing Communities Fund
Bedwell Bay Upgrade Project (BBUP) (Construction) Reserve 109,250 109,250 109,250 109,250 437,000
Gabion wall Main Ave (intersection Bedwell Bay Rd) (per Asset
Management) Grant TransLink 187,500 187,500
Gabion wall Main Ave (intersection Bedwell Bay Rd) (per Asset Canada Community-Building
Management) Fund Reserve 62,500 62,500
Road Barriers & Flashing Beacons - Bedwell Bay Rd - part of
Major Road Netwark (MRN) Grant TransLink 35,000 35,000
Subtotal MRN Roads $351,250 | $316,250 | §316,250 $316,250 |  $250,000 $1,550,000
Drainage
Storm Sewer & Catch Basin Replacements General Capital Reserve 15,000 15,000 30,000
Subtotal Storm Sewer $0 $0 | $15,000 $0 $15,000 $30,000
Parks & Recreation
Transportation Infrastructure
Trail System Rehabilitation & Improvements Reserve 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 25,000
Transportation Infrastructure
Cancrete stairs with wooden railing - Marine Ave (per Asset Mana Resenve 20,000 20,000
Senkler Bridge Inspections, Repair & Renewal General Capital Reserve 20,000 10,000 30,000
Transportation Infrastructure
Salish Foreshore Bridge Reseme 20.000 20,000
Three (3) Trails from Marine Avenue to Beach (3400 block) Marine
- wooden stairs down to beach; 3700 block — divers trail; 3900 Transportation Infrastructure
block Marine - cement staircase Reseme 50.000 20.000 70,000
Subtotal Parks & Recreation $75,000 $5,000 | $25,000 $15,000 $45,000 $165,000

TOTAL GENERAL CAPITAL

$802,750

$448.050 $848,850

$583,850

$532,000

$3,215,500

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 69




A Village between forest and sea

Graph 35 — 15-Year (2024 — 2028) General Capital Plan

$950,000
$900,000
$850,000
$800,000
$750,000
$700,000
$650,000
$600,000
$550,000
$500,000
$450,000
$400,000
$350,000
$300,000
$250,000
$200,000
$150,000
$100,000
$50,000
$

o

@ Parks & Recreation

H Drainage
B MRN Road

B Non-MRN Roads

@ Vehicle & Equipment

O Public Works

B General

2024
75,000
15,000
351,25
185,00
160,00

8,500
27,660

2025 2026
5,000 31,000
- 25,000
316,25 316,25
45,000 287,50
80,000 195,00
2,400 24,100

15-Year (2024 - 2028) General Capital Plan

‘!!l‘lllllll i B

2027
15,000
316,25
175,00
20,000
58,500
12,930

2028 2029 2030 2031
45,000 5,000 15,000 5,000

15,000 - 15,000 -
250,00 - - -
215,00 45,000 130,00 45,000
23,000 - - -

15,000 5,000 5,000 5,000
3,700 32,852 2,851 28,623

2032

2033

2034

25,000 205,00 5,000

15,000

195,00
5,000

45,000

5,000

15,000

23,000
5,000

2035
5,000

45,000
130,00
5,000

2036
15,000
15,000
625,00
170,00

5,000

15,357 4,394 39,018 3,385 33,995

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 70

2037 2038
25,000 5,000
- 15,000
45,000 -
- 10,000
5,000 35,000
18,238 5,219



A Village between forest and sea

Water Capital Plan

The Long-Term Water Capital Plan includes $774,000 of spending over the next 15 years and $499,000 over the next 5
years. A summary of the Water Capital Plan is shown in Graph 36 below. The higher value or major projects are:
Universal Water Meters in 2025 and 2026 for $50,000 (subject to a business case analysis); Water Chlorination System
Construction in 2025 at a cost of $175,000.

Table 34 — Water Major Capital Projects over the Next 5 Years

Major Projects over Next 5 Years
(with program value greater than or equal to $20,000)

Draft
Funding Sources Budget Plan Plan Plan Plan Total Capita
_ 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2024 - 2038
Universal Water Meters (radio read/pit antennae) Water Capital Resene 40,000 10,000 50,000
New Water Meters Water Capital Resenve 10,000 10,000 20,000
New Water Meter for Leak Detection (Tatlow) Water Capital Resene 30,000 30,000
Tatlow/Dutchman Resenvoir Repairs Water Capital Resere 30,000 30,000
Water Meters (per Asset Management) Water Capital Resenve 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 25,000
Water Equipment Water Capital Resenve 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
Growing Communities Fund
Water Chlorination System Construction Resenve 175,000 175,000
Pipeline Inspection (see Sept. 11th, 2023 Council agenda) Water Capital Resenve 29,000 29,000
Tatlow Resenoir Water Pump Water Capital Resene 55,000 35,000

TOTAL WATER CAPITAL §80.000 $265000 $30,000  $20000  $85000  $489,000

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 71



A Village between forest and sea

Graph 36 — 15-Year (2024 — 2028) Water Capital Plan

$300,000 15-Year (2024 - 2028) Water Capital Plan

$250,000
$200,000
$150,000
$100,000

$50,000

o i N B i n R m B mEnm RN

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038
B Water Capital 89,000 270,00 30,000 25,000 85,000 25,000 30,000 25,000 30,000 25,000 30,000 25,000 30,000 25,000 30,000

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 72



A Village between forest and sea

WARD Capital Plan

The Long-Term WARD Capital Plan includes $332,500 of spending over the next 15 years and $218,500 over the next 5
years. A summary of the WARD Capital Plan is shown in Graph 37 below. The higher value or major projects are
highlighted in the below table and include: Wasteline porta Pak compactor and container in 2027 for $50,000; Universal
compactor and container in 2028 for $40,000; a Mobile Office in 2024 for $30,000; Repaving the Tarmac Area in 2026 for
$50,000.

Table 35 — WARD Major Capital Projects over the Next 5 Years

Major Projects over Next 5 Years

(with program value greater than or equal to $20,000)

Draft
Funding Sources Budget | Plan Plan Plan Plan | Total Capital
[VASTEGRECVELEDEROTARDICAFAL DI o | ows | oms | o | ow | oo

Minor WARD Equipment General Capital Resene 8,000 8,000 8,000 24,000
Wasteline porta Pak 3032 compactor and container - Bin A per
Asset Management) Vehicle & Equipment Resanve 50,000 50,000
Universal UP200 compactor and container - Bin C (per Asset
Management) Vehicle & Equipment Resene 40,000 40,000
Mobile Office General Capital Resene 30,000 30,000
Repaving Tarmac Area General Capital Reserve 50,000 50,000

TOTAL WARD CAPITAL $38,000 §0 $58000  §50000  §$48000  $194,000

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 73



A Village between forest and sea

Graph 37 — 15-Year (2024 — 2028) WARD Capital Plan

$75,000 15-Year (2024 - 2028) WARD Capital Plan

$50,000

$25,000 | | | I
, ihN | I I |

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038

B WARD Capital 38,000 - 67,500 65,000 48,000 35,000 8,000 9,500 8,000 - 8,000 - 17,500 20,000 8,000

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 74



A Village between forest and sea

Budget/Financial Plan Scenarios
General Operating Fund

Table 36 — General Operating Fund Budget/Financial Plan Scenarios

2035

2036

2037

2038

Scenario A - Base Budget or Financial Plan 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033

4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0%

General Property Tax Increases 4.0% 4.0%

2034
4.0%

4.0%

General Property Tax Increases

Transfers to General Fund Reserves &

Surplus $580,778 $607,064 $603,745 $633,900 $548,901 $570,650 $605,412 $633,446 $671,858 S$585,225 S$613,508  $645,850 $681,859 $726,178 $643,149
General Fund Reserve & Surplus Balances $3.014M  $3.124M $2.923M $3.008M  $2.972M  $3.323M  $3.687M  $4.144M  $4.476M $4.662M $5.139M $5.535M $5.273M $5.823M $6.295M
General Sustainable Annual Funding

(Reserve Transfers) to Replace Existing

Assets $370,334 $370,334 $370,334 $370,334 $370,334 $370,334 $370,334 $370,334 $370,334 $370,334  $370,334 $370,334 $370,334 $370,334 $370,334
Scenario B - Low Budget or Financial Plan 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038

General Property Tax Increases

Transfers to General Fund Reserves &

Surplus $560,863 $565,962 $540,118 S$546,346 $435,949 $430,763 $436,974 $434,766 $441,164 $320,660 $313,129 $307,626 $303,658 $305,770 $178,197
General Fund Reserve & Surplus Balances $2.994M  $3.061M $2.794M $2.786M $2.63M $2.83M $3.009M  $3.246M  S$3.321M $3.208M $3.341M $3.348M $2.646M $2.713M $2.646M
General Sustainable Annual Funding

(Reserve Transfers) to Replace Existing

Assets $370,334 $370,334 $370,334 $370,334 $370,334 $370,334 $370,334 $370,334 $370,334 $370,334  $370,334 $370,334 $370,334 $370,334 $370,334
Scenario C - High Budget or Financial Plan 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038

Transfers to General Fund Reserves &

Surplus $600,690 $648,961 $669,859 $726,635 $670,846 $724,590 $794,342 $860,586 $940,668 $899,417 $977,077 $1,063,073 $1,157,327 $1,264,818 $1,250,240
General Fund Reserve & Surplus Balances  $3.034M  $3.187M  $3.056M  $3.238M  $3.333M  $3.85M  $4.419M $5.126M $5.757M  $6.296M  $7.185M  $8.059M $8.345M $9.523M $10.708M
General Sustainable Annual Funding

(Reserve Transfers) to Replace Existing

Assets $370,334 $370,334 $370,334 $370,334 $370,334 $370,334 $370,334 $370,334 $370,334 $370,334  $370,334 $370,334 $370,334 $370,334 $370,334

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 75



A Village between forest and sea

Graph 38 — General Operating Fund Reserve & Surplus Balance Resulting From Scenarios

General Operating Fund Reserve & Surplus Balances
Resulting From Scenarios

$12,000,000

$11,000,000

$10,000,000
$9,000,000
$8,000,000
$7,000,000
$6,000,000
$5,000,000
$4,000,000
$3,000,000 SN
$2,000,000

$1,000,000

S0
2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038

Scenario A - General Fund Reserve & Surplus Balances - Scenario B - General Fund Reserve & Surplus Balances

= Scenario C - General Fund Reserve & Surplus Balances

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 76



A Village between forest and sea

Water Operating Fund

Table 37 — Water Operating Fund Budget/Financial Plan Scenarios

Scenario A - Base Budget or Financial Plan 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038
Water Rate Increases 20.0% 15.0% 15.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%
Transfers to Water Fund Reserves & Surplus $76,250  $131,580 $189,577 $212,241 $191,463 $211,803 $233,211 $259,402  $286,307  $269,459 $293,843 $325,755  $357,184  $391,746 $378,580
Water Fund Reserve & Surplus Balances $.233M  $.274M $.441M $.641IM  $765M  $.974M  $1.206M  $1.477M  $1.776M  $2.076M  $2.404M  $2.78M  $3.194M  $3.66M  $4.123M
Water Sustainable Annual Funding (Reserve

Transfers) to Replace Existing Assets $189,320 $189,320 $189,320 $189,320 $189,320 $189,320 $189,320 $189,320  $189,320  $189,320 $189,320 $189,320  $189,320  $189,320 $189,320
Scenario B - Low Budget or Financial Plan 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038

Water Rate Increases

Transfers to Water Fund Reserves & Surplus $37,851 $66,302 $91,276 $109,024  $83,085 $98,006 $113,724  $133,941 $154,573  $131,138 $148,606 $173,257 $197,061  $223,617 $202,045

Water Fund Reserve & Surplus Balances $.194M  $.168M $.232M $321M  $.325M  $.406M  $.499M $.622M $.761M $.89M  $1.035M $1.215M  $1.42M  $1.662M  $1.885M
Water Sustainable Annual Funding (Reserve

Transfers) to Replace Existing Assets $189,320 $189,320 $189,320 $189,320 $189,320 $189,320 $189,320 $189,320  $189,320  $189,320 $189,320 $189,320  $189,320  $189,320 $189,320
Scenario C - High Budget or Financial Plan 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038

Water Rate Increases

Transfers to Water Fund Reserves & Surplus $76,250 $154,619  $243,719  $269,090 $251,154 $274,478 $299,020 $328,501  $358,861  $345,641 $373,834 $409,746  $445375 $484,346 $475,810
Water Fund Reserve & Surplus Balances $.233M $.298M $.52M $.78M $.969M  $1.248M  $1.555M  $1.906M $2.291M  $2.684M  $3.112M  $3.595M $4.122M  $4.711M  $5.303M

Water Sustainable Annual Funding (Reserve
Transfers) to Replace Existing Assets $189,320 $189,320 $189,320 $189,320 $189,320 $189,320 $189,320 $189,320  $189,320  $189,320 $189,320 $189,320  $189,320  $189,320 $189,320

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 77



A Village between forest and sea

Graph 39 — Water Operating Fund Reserve & Surplus Balance Resulting From Scenarios

Water Operating Fund Reserve & Surplus Balances
Resulting from Scenarios
$6,000,000

$5,000,000

$4,000,000

$3,000,000

$2,000,000

$1,000,000

S0
2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038

Scenario A - Water Fund Reserve & Surplus Balances = Scenario B - Water Fund Reserve & Surplus Balances

= Scenario C - Water Fund Reserve & Surplus Balances

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 78



A Village between forest and sea

WARD Operating Fund

Table 38 — WARD Operating Fund Budget/Financial Plan Scenarios

2037 2038

Scenario A - Base Budget or Financial Plan 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036
Waste & Recycle Depot Rate Increases 10.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0%
Transfers to (from) WARD Surplus & Reserves  ($9,566) $4,616 $14,844  $19,216 $12,900 $15,522  $18,185  $22,722  $27,060  $20,972 $23,207 $28,565 $33,001 $38,284 $31,522
WARD Reserve & Surplus Balances $6,758 $10,184  $23,802  $41,915  $53,740  $68,075  $84,937 $106,182 $131,595 $150,544 $171,072  $196,146  $224,664  $257,228  $281,299
Waste & Recycle Depot Sustainable Annual
Funding (Reserve Transfers) to Replace
Existing Assets $16,083  $16,083  $16,083  $16,083  $16,083  $16,083  $16,083  $16,083  $16,083  $16,083  $16,083 $16,083 $16,083 $16,083 $16,083
Scenario B - Low Budget or Financial Plan 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038
Waste & Recycle Depot Rate Increases 4.0% 4.0% 4.0%
Transfers to (from) WARD Surplus & Reserves ($26,658) ($14,186) ($5,838)  ($2,293)  ($9,469) ($7,742)  ($6,010)  ($2,440) $891 ($6,244) ($5,097) ($871) $2,388 $6,446 (51,589)
WARD Reserve & Surplus Balances ($10,591) ($26,217) ($33,783) ($38,150) ($50,108) ($60,837) ($70,431) ($77,172) ($81,442) ($93,879) ($106,408) ($116,197) ($124,511) ($130,907) ($147,906)
Waste & Recycle Depot Sustainable Annual
Funding (Reserve Transfers) to Replace
Existing Assets $16,083  $16,083  $16,083  $16,083  $16,083  $16,083  $16,083  $16,083  $16,083  $16,083  $16,083 $16,083 $16,083 $16,083 $16,083
Scenario C - High Budget or Financial Plan 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038
Waste & Recycle Depot Rate Increases 4.0% 4.0%
Transfers to (from) WARD Surplus & Reserves  ($9,566)  $14,871  $37,918  $43,213 $37,857 $41,477  $45,178  $50,795  $56,256  $51,336 $54,786 $61,407 $67,157 $73,806 $68,465
WARD Reserve & Surplus Balances $6,758  $20,593  $57,944 $101,438 $140,380  $183,659 $231,387 $285,520 $345,947 $402,146  $462,275  $529,420  $602,604  $682,561  $756,889
Waste & Recycle Depot Sustainable Annual
Funding (Reserve Transfers) to Replace
Existing Assets $16,083  $16,083  $16,083  $16,083  $16,083  $16,083  $16,083  $16,083  $16,083  $16,083  $16,083 $16,083 $16,083 $16,083 $16,083

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 79



A Village between forest and sea

Graph 40 — WARD Operating Fund Reserve & Surplus Balance Resulting From Scenarios

WARD Operating Fund Reserve & Surplus Balances
Resulting From Scenarios

$1,000,000

$800,000

$600,000

$400,000

$200,000

$0

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 ——2029- 2020 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038

($200,000)

Scenario A - WARD Reserve & Surplus Balances = Scenario B - WARD Reserve & Surplus Balances

= Scenario C - WARD Reserve & Surplus Balances

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 80



A Village between forest and sea

Road Map to Financial Sustainability

Financial Policies & Practices
During the course of this review the following finance policies were
examined and other policies were reviewed for applicability to Belcarra. In
addition, local government financial best practices were reviewed. This
section provides the results of the review and the related recommendations
which followed. The intent is not to create policies for the sake of having
policies, but to improve the Village’s long-term financial stability and

sustainability.

Table 39 - Financial Policies & Practices

Finance Name of
Policies Policy Comments
Policy 195 Financial Plan — Amendment, Policy is out of date;
Y Monitoring and Control not current
. Financial Plan — Sources and Pohcy is out of; .
Policy 196 duplicates Community
Uses of Funds .
Charter requirements
Policy 201 Travel Expense Still relevant
Procurement - Out of date; due to be
. Administrative .
Policy 203 A reviewed as part of
Guideline to -
strategic workplan
Procurement
Policy 211 Reserve Funds Recommendation
Y and Surpluses provided in this Report
. Internal Cost .
Policy 217 Allocations Still relevant
Policy 219 Asset Management Policy Still relevant
Policy 220 B|II.Payment Still relevant
Policy
Policy 222 Grant-in-aid application form Still relevant
Policy 222 Grants in Aid Still relevant

Based on this review the following recommendations are made with respect
to existing and new policies:

Recommendation Policies &

Practices (PP) #1

That the following Village of Belcarra policies
be updated:
1. Policy 195 Financial Plan — Amendment,
Monitoring and Control
2. Policy 196 Financial Plan — Sources and Uses
of Funds

N—________

Recommendation Policies &

Practices (PP) #2

That the following new policies be brought
forward for Council’s consideration:
1. Financial Plan Amendments
2. Investing Municipal Funds
Rationale #1: There is need to clarify when
financial plan amendments need to occur and
the process around these amendments.

Rationale #2: The Village’s investment portfolio
has increased, and the funds should be
invested in a diversified manner with a ba/ance/

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 81



A Village between forest and sea

Interest earnings on growing surplus and reserve balances can become a
key factor in increasing the Village’s overall financial resiliency. Consider the
example below, which illustrates the compounding effect of interest
earnings after 4 years.

Effect of Compounding Interest

Total
Principal & Interest
Annual Interest Earnings
Dollars Interest @  Balance After Over 4
Invested 4% 4 years Years
$3,000,000 $120,000 $3,509,576 $509,576

The Village of Belcarra buys many goods and services which are common to
other local governments. To take advantage of bulk pricing many
communities have joined cooperative purchasing groups. Participating in
these groups can assist in lowering costs.

Recommendation Policies & Practices

(PP) #3

That the Village join a cooperative purchasing
group to obtain bulk pricing on goods & services
and to take advantage of economies of scale.

N— _

The practice of securing goods and services, including capital project work,
within local government is important for controlling costs and obtaining the
best terms possible.

Many projects can be subject to scope creep and unapproved change
orders, which results in cost overruns, unless controls are in place. Many
local governments have put formal project management policies and
practices place to control these risks.

The Village of Belcarra’s strategic work plan includes an initiative to update
the Village’s procurement policy. This policy has many implications and is
integral to controlling costs and risks, and for obtaining the best value for
Village of Belcarra residents, rate payers and taxpayers.

Recommendation Policies & Practices (PP) #4

That the Village implement formal project management policies
and practices to ensure the best outcomes for projects.

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 82



A Village between forest and sea

Summarized Recommendations for Financial Sustainability

Table 40 — Recommendations Arising from Financial Planning (FP)

Recommendations Arising from Financial Planning (FP)

Recommendation #1 FP

That the Village implement automated solutions such as electronic bill payments and e-commerce services to
assist staff and to supplement limited staff resources.

Rationale & Comments

The Village needs to utilize technology to keep up with demand for services with limited staff resources.

Recommendation #2 FP

That the Village’s performance bonds, and refundable deposits be reviewed to determined whether the funds
should be returned, continue to be held by the Village or taken into revenue.

Rationale & Comments

These funds on the Village’s statement of financial position or balance sheet have been held for some time and need to be
resolved.

Recommendation #3 FP

That the Village continue to track its financial indicators annually based on year-end results with the results being
reported to Council and the community.

Rationale & Comments

By tracking its financial indicators annually, the Village will be able to gauge its progress toward financial sustainability.

Recommendation #4 FP

That a comprehensive review of the Village’s fees & charges be undertaken with the goal of increasing non-
property tax-based revenue, and that these fees be reviewed annually to keep up with the Village’s increased cost
of providing services which includes the impact of inflation.

Rationale & Comments

The Village’s fees and charges are not reviewed annually and have not kept pace with inflation.

Recommendation #5 FP

That Operating Spending Packages be completed as a means of approving all new expenditures that are related to
new or expanded services or increased service levels.

Rationale & Comments

The Village’s finances are sensitive to operating cost increases and by completing and approving Operating Spending
Packages there will be a thorough review of the impacts of specific spending initiatives.

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 83




A Village between forest and sea

Table 40 — Recommendations Arising from Financial Planning (FP) cont’d

Recommendations Arising from Financial Planning (FP) cont’d

Recommendation #6 FP

That the Village create additional operating reserves for the Water & WARD utilities to stabilize operations and to
offset unanticipated expenditure increases and/or losses of revenue.

Rationale & Comments

The Water & WARD utilities are subject to uncontrollable cost increases and having reserve “safety nets” in place to offset
unexpected expenditure increases and/or revenue would help to stabilize these utility funds.

Table 41 — Recommendations Arising from Asset Management (AM)

Recommendations Arising from Asset Management (AM)

Recommendation #1 AM

That sustainable funding levels be achieved in the Water & WARD utilities by implementing minimum rate increases
over the next three years, as follows:

Water — 2024 20%, 2025 15%, 2026 15%
WARD - 2024 20%, 2025 10%, 2027 10%

Rationale & Comments
The Asset Management Plan results show the Water and WARD utilities are not generating enough net revenue to replace their
assets/infrastructure and the WARD utility is in a deficit operating position with a low accumulated surplus balance.

Recommendation #2 AM

That the Village investigate removing the Water and WARD utility charges from tax notices to be billed on separate
utility bills invoiced on a quarterly or semi-annual basis.
Rationale & Comments

Separating the utility rates from property taxes would treat the Water and WARD utilities similar to other utilities. This would
allow rate payers to be more aware of the cost of these utility services and to budget throughout the year for these costs.

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 84




A Village between forest and sea

Table 41 — Recommendations Arising from Asset Management (AM) cont’d

Recommendations Arising from Asset Management (AM) cont’d

Recommendation #3 AM

That minimum & optimal reserve and surplus levels be established, based on the Asset Management Plan and Long-
Term Financial Plan results, & that Corporate Policy No. 211 — Reserve Funds and Surpluses, be updated.

Rationale & Comments

The Village’s Corporate Policy No. 211 does not provide minimum and optimal levels for all of the Village’s reserves and
surpluses. Now that the Asset Management Plan and Long-Term Financial Plan results are available they can be used to
determine reserve & surplus levels.

Recommendation #4 AM

That lifecycle costing be integrated into procurement decisions when updating Corporate Policy No. 2023 — Procurement
(including Disposal of Assets).

Rationale & Comments
Procurement decisions should take into account total lifecycle costs, including ongoing operating impacts, or a more expensive
option may be selected.

Recommendation #5 AM

That the estimated operating cost impacts of capital projects be integrated into the capital decision making and approval process.

Rationale & Comments

When capital expenditure decisions are made during budget deliberations, it is important that Council consider the estimated
operating costs of the capital projects. This would include the initial capital outlay (construction and acquisition costs) and the
estimated and associated operating or maintenance costs.

Recommendation #6 AM

That long-term cash flows be aligned with the Village’s long-term investment portfolio horizon to maximize investment returns.

Rationale & Comments

Aligning the Village’s investment portfolio with long-term cash flow projections will allow the Village to generate higher
investment returns. Investment returns can significantly reduce the Village’s need to raise taxes and utility fees in order to fund
infrastructure replacement.

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 85




A Village between forest and sea

Table 42 — Recommendations Arising From Policy Review (P)

Recommendations Arising from Policy & Practice Review (PP)

Recommendation #1 PP

That the following Village of Belcarra policies be updated:

1. Policy 195 Financial Plan — Amendment, Monitoring and Control
2. Policy 196 Financial Plan — Sources and Uses of Funds

Rationale & Comments

The above policies are dated and the actual practices have changed.

Recommendation #2 PP

That the following new policies be brought forward for Council’s consideration:

1. Financial Plan Amendments

2. Investing Municipal Funds
Rationale & Comments
Rationale #1: There is need to clarify when financial plan amendments need to occur and the process around these
amendments.
Rationale #2: The Village’s investment portfolio has increased, and the funds should be invested in a diversified
manner with a balance of security and investment returns.

Recommendation #3 PP

That the Village join a cooperative purchasing group to obtain bulk pricing on goods & services and to take advantage
of economies of scale.

Rationale & Comments

The Village can take advantage of bulk pricing to acquire certain goods and services including those related to capital to save
money. An example of a coop purchasing group is the Canoe Procurement Group which many local governments participate in.

Recommendation #4 PP

That the Village implement formal project management policies and practices to ensure the best outcomes for
projects.

Rationale & Comments

Many projects can be subject to scope creep and unapproved change orders, which results in cost overruns, unless controls are
in place. Formal project management policies and practices can be put in place to control these risks.

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 86




A Village between forest and sea

Appendix “A” - Financial Planning
Assumptions & Sensitivities

Benefits: Health benefits annual increase of 3% and statutory benefits
annual increases of 2%.

Canada Community-Building Funds (formerly Gas Tax Funds):
Contributions from the Federal Government are expected to continue after
2024 at which time a new agreement is expected to be signed.

Costing: the most relevant and accurate unit rates that were available have
been used to prepare estimates. Further refining of unit rates and resulting
forecasts should be conducted on a regular basis. Market conditions and
expenditure timing can greatly impact forecasted expenditures.

Class D Construction Cost Estimates — This level of estimating project costs
provides an indication of the cost of the work, based on the Village’s
functional requirements to the degree known. It is based on historical cost
data for similar work, suitably adjusted for such factors as the effect of
inflation, location, risk, quality, size, and time. These estimates provide an
indication of the order of magnitude of cost of the work. The Village’s
capital projects include class D estimates the final cost could vary from that
shown in the capital plan.

Human Resources: Additional 0.5 full-time equivalent (FTE) time starting in
2026 to supplement staff administration resources, additional 0.2 FTE time
starting in 2026 for building inspection (increased cost offset by more
building permit revenue) and additional 1.0 FTE each for administration and
public works in 2028, 2033 & 2038.

Inflation: Inflationary impacts have been built into long-term operating
expenditure projections with different inflationary impacts used for
different types of expenditures. Inflation has not been built into the capital
plans; however, the capital cost estimates do contain contingency amounts.

Information Systems: Accounting software support annual increase of 4%
and other system support as per long-term plan from service provider
(SeatoSky).

Infrastructure Grants: It is assumed that senior level infrastructure grants
will not be available to refurbish or replace existing assets or infrastructure
(with the exception of Canada Community-Building Funds).

Insurance Costs: Property and liability insurance annual increases of 3%.
Investment Revenue: Interest earnings are expected to grow by about
120% in the draft 2024 over the 2023 budget, due to higher investment
returns and an increased investment portfolio. The 2023 budget did not
forecast the current high interest rate environment. After 2024 interest
earnings are projected to grow by 2% annually. About 90% of interest
earnings are transferred to reserves based on projected reserve balances.

Material, Supplies & Equipment: Increases of between 1% and 3%

Non-Property Tax Based Revenues: Non-property tax-based revenues in
the General Operating Fund are projected to grow by about 2% annually
with the assumption that there will be annual reviews of fees and charges.

Official Community Plan (OCP): Provision for review and update costs every
5 years starting in 2028 with funding from Financial Stabilization Reserve.

Strategic Planning: Provision for costs every 4 years starting in 2026 and

with funding from Financial Stabilization Reserve.

Timeframe: The financial plan timeframe for this report is a 15-year time
horizon from 2024- 2038 and the asset management time frame is over a
50-year period to 2073.

Undedicated Reserves: The Village has not dedicated accumulated reserve
balances and annual funding levels by all asset classes. Therefore, to
estimate the Village’s accumulated infrastructure funding gaps and
surpluses, funding has been shown by Fund or operating function, those
being the General Fund, the Waste & Recycle Depot (WARD) Fund and the
Water Fund.

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 87



A Village between forest and sea

Appendix “B” — Glossary of Terms

Accumulated Surplus: The accumulated excess of revenues over
expenditures from prior years.

Annual Surplus: The excess of actual revenue over operating expenditures
incurred during a budget period or fiscal year.

Budgeting or Budget: A financial forecast which focuses on the first year of
a longer-term Financial Plan and which typically contains more details
around revenues and expenses than the longer-term Financial Plan.

Capital or Capital Budget: Those capital assets or expenditure which meet
the PSAB accounting definition of tangible capital assets (TCA) and which
meet the Village’s asset capitalization thresholds, as well other capital
expenditures which are not capitalized (not above capitalization threshold)

and which are above a minimum dollar threshold established by the Village.

Cash-based Budget or Financial Plan: A Budget or Financial Plan which is
based on revenues which will generate cash and expenses which will be
paid out in cash. A cash-based Budget is different than an accrual-based
Budget. A cash-based Budget is approved by the elected Council to ensure
that an organization’s services and programs can be funded.

Core or Base Budget: The cash-based Budget that is required to maintain
existing services and programs at previously approved service levels.

Debt Servicing Costs: The annual principal and interest payments
associated with incurring debt or borrowing.

Deferred Revenue: Revenue received for services or goods to be delivered
in the future. Deferred Revenue is recorded as a short-term liability on an
organization’s statement of financial position or balance sheet. Also
referred to as Restricted Revenue.

External Debt: Short-term capital borrowing or long-term borrowing
undertaken through the Municipal Finance Authority (MFA) or another
external lending party.

Financial Forecasting or Forecasts: The process of projecting or estimating
revenues, expenditures, and reserve/surplus transfers, over a period of
time using known future factors, assumptions about economic conditions,
future spending scenarios, historical revenues and expenses, and other
variables.

Full-Time Equivalent (FTE): A measure of an employee’s work hours as
ratio of full-time hours with 1.0 being a full-time position.

Funding Sources: Those revenues and reserve/surplus transfers that are
utilized to fund or pay for the Village’s operating and capital expenditures
within the Village’s Financial Plan/Budget.

Internal Debt: Funds borrowed internally from one reserve fund (lending
reserve fund) to another (borrowing reserve fund) to complete a project
that is allowed for under the terms of the borrowing reserve fund
establishing bylaw. This inter-reserve fund borrowing is allowable under the
Community Charter if the lending reserve fund is paid back foregone
interest, and the funds are paid back by the time the lending reserve needs
the funds.

Long-Term Financial Planning: A combination of financial forecasting and
strategizing. Long-Term Financial Planning is a highly collaborative process
that aligns long-term financial with long-term service objectives by
considering and determining future scenarios and challenges.

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 88



A Village between forest and sea

Municipal Finance Authority (MFA): The Municipal Finance Authority of
British Columbia (MFA) was created in 1970 to contribute to the financial
well-being of local governments throughout BC. The MFA pools the
borrowing and investment needs of BC communities through a collective
structure and is able to provide a range of low cost and flexible financial
services to our clients equally, regardless of the size of the community. The
MFA is independent from the Province of British Columbia and operates
under the governance of a Board of Members appointed from the various
Regional Districts within the province.

New Construction Tax Revenue: This refers to the tax revenue generated
from properties that have been recently constructed and not previously
included in the City’s assessment tax base.

Operating or Operating Budget: Those expenditures which are not defined
as capital. Generally, expenditures for items which are not held for use in
the production or supply of goods and services, and which are normally
consumed as part of day-to-day activities.

Operating Spending Packages: Formal process of submitting costs for
approval for new services or programs or increased service levels so that
the cost impacts are clear and understood.

Parcels Taxes: Local government taxes levied on the unit, frontage or area
of a property. Parcel taxes are distinct and separate from the property
value taxes, which are levied on the assessed value of a property.

Property Taxes: Revenue generated through the collection of taxes levied
on real property assessments.

Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB): the body of the Chartered
Professional Accountants of Canada (CPA) that issues recommendations
and guidance with respect to matters of accounting in the public sector. Its
aim is to improve the financial and performance information reported by
governments and other public-sector entities for the benefit of decision
makers and other users of the information.

Reserve Fund: An allocation of accumulated net revenue. There are two
types of reserve funds: statutory reserve funds are required under
Provincial statute and non-statutory reserve funds are established at the
discretion of Council. Reserve funds are created by bylaws and are used for
the specified future purposes set out in the bylaws.

Restricted Revenue: Moneys collected whose use is restricted by virtue of
legislation, or by an agreement with the external party that provided the
funds. Also referred to as Deferred Revenue.

Restricted Surplus: Funds set aside from Accumulated Surplus to complete
specific budgeted projects that could not be completed in a particular fiscal
year and that are expected to be completed in the following fiscal year.
Bylaws are not required or needed for Restricted Surplus funds as these
monies are expected to be used in the short term for their original
budgeted purpose.

Self-Funded or Self-Balancing Utilities: An operating function like a water
utility that is set up so that the users of the utility pay for all of the
associated costs.

Sensitivity Analysis: Determining how different values of an independent
variable affect a particular dependent variable under a given set of
assumptions.

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 89



A Village between forest and sea

Tax Rate: A percentage rate that is used to determine the property tax levy
to be paid by a particular taxpayer within the Village. The rate for a
property depends on its tax class. Tax rates are multiplied by the property
assessment to provide the tax levy. In the context of the property tax
calculation, one mill is one thousandth of the assessment value. Tax rates
are established by a Council bylaw.

Tangible Capital Asset: non-financial assets which have physical substance
that meet all the following criteria:

e Are held for use in the production of supply of goods and/or services,
for rental to others, for administrative purposes of for the
development, construction, maintenance, or repair of other tangible
capital assets.

e Have useful economic lives extending beyond an accounting period.

e Have been acquired to be used on a continuing basis.

e Are not intended for sale in the ordinary course of business.

Unrestricted Accumulated Surplus: The accumulated surplus amounts built
up in the Village’s various operating funds that have not been designated
for specific uses or purposes like a restricted surplus.

User Fees and Charges: Fees paid by individuals or organizations to the
Village for the use of Village facilities or for the provision of municipal
services.

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 90



Appendix “C” — Detailed Long-Term (15-Year) General Operating Fund Financial Plan

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA GENERAL OPERATING FUND
15-YEAR (2024 - 2028) FINANCIAL PLAN

Estimated Draft % change
Page 1 of 2 Budget Year-End Budget from 2023
2023 2023 % change 2024 Budget Plan 2025 Plan 2026 Plan 2027 Plan 2028 |Plan 2029| Plan 2030 | Plan 2031 | Plan 2032| Plan 2033 | Plan 2034 | Plan 2035 | Plan 2036 Plan 2037 Plan 2038
Regular Operating Revenues
Taxes
Municipal Taxes 995 660 0995 667 0.0%| 1,039 494 4.4%| 1,085,154 1,132,722 | 1,182,276 1,233,897 | 1,287,670 | 1,343,682 | 1,402,024 | 1,462,792 | 1,526,085 | 1,692,005 1,660,660 | 1,732,161 1,806,624 | 1.884.170
1% Utility Taxes 10,628 13,439 26.4% 13,439 26.4% 13,708 13,982 14,262 14,547 14,838 15,135 15,438 15,747 16,062 16,383 16,711 17.045 17.386 17.734
Taxes 1,006,297 1,009,106 0.3%| 1,052,933 4.6%| 1,098,862 1,146,704 | 1,196,538 | 1.248,444 [1,302,508 | 1,358,817 | 1,417.462 [ 1,478,639 | 1,642,147 | 1,608,388 | 1,677,371 | 1,749,206 1,824,010 | 1,901,904
Fees & Charges
Leases 2,100 2,100 0.0% 2.100 0.0% 2,100 2,100 2,100 2,100 2,100 2,100 2,100 2,100 2,100 2,100 2.100 2,100 2,100 2,100
Penalties & interest (on taxes) 10,190 14677 44.0% 12,766 25.3% 12,894 13,023 13,154 13,286 13,419 13,563 13,689 13,826 13,964 14,104 14,245 14,388 14,532 14677
Permits and Licences 103,008 127,844 24 1% 130,299 26.5% 132,905 155,563 158,675 161,849 165,087 168,389 171,757 175,192 178,695 182,268 185,913 189,631 193,425 197,294
Miscellaneous 11.516 36,370 215.8% 17.746 54.1% 18,101 18,463 18,832 19,208 19.592 19,983 20,383 20,791 21,207 21,631 22,063 22,504 22,954 23,413
Fees & Charges 126,814 180,991 42.7% 162,911 28.5% 166,000 189,149 192,761 196,443 200,198 204,025 207,929 211,909 215,966 220,103 224,321 228,623 233,011 237,484
Grant Transfers
COVID-19 Restart Grant & Transfers o (4] 0.0% o 0.0% o o o o o] o] o o o o o o o o
School Tax Administration & Climate Change 3,449 48 540 1307.4% 3,458 0.3% 3,489 3,620 3,651 3,683 3,615 3,647 3.680 3,713 3,746 3,780 3.814 3,848 3,883 3,918
Small Communities Investment Fund (SCIF) 257,000 259,000 0.8% 259,000 0.8% 261,590 264,206 266,848 269,516 272,211 274,933 277,682 280,459 283,264 286,097 288,958 291,848 294,766 297,714
Grant Transfers 260,449 307,540 18.1% 262,458 0.8% 265,079 267,726 270,399 273,099 275,826 278,580 281,362 284,172 287,010 289,877 292,772 295,696 298,649 301,632
Other Revenue
Interest Income 51,507 177,225 244.1% 152,406 195.9% 155,454 158,563 161,734 164,969 168,268 171,633 175,066 178,667 182,138 185,781 189,497 193,287 197,153 201,096
Total Regular Operating Revenues 1,445,067 1.674,862 15.9%|] 1.630,708 12.8%|] 1,685,395 1,762,142 | 1,821,432 1,882,955 | 1,946,800 | 2,013,055 | 2,081.819 | 2,153,187 | 2,227,261 2,304,149 2,383,961 2,466,812 2,552,823 | 2,642,116
Regular Operating Expenses
Council, Grants & Meetings
Indemnities & Benefits 75,320 94,495 25.5% 94,668 25.7% 97,473 100,361 103,335 106,397 109,551 112,798 116,142 119,585 123,132 126,783 130,542 134,415 138,402 142,508
Council Other 8,430 11,621 37.9% 12,826 52.1% 12,954 13,084 13,215 13,347 13,480 13,615 13,752 13,890 14,028 14,167 14,309 14,452 14,596 14,742
Grants 5,483 2,898 -47 1% 4,130 -24.7% 4,171 4,212 4,254 4,296 4,339 4,383 4,427 4,472 4,517 4,562 4,608 4,654 4,700 4,747
Meetings, Events & Appreciation 13,703 17,608 28.5% 13,840 1.0% 13,977 14,117 14,260 14,403 14 547 14 693 14,840 14,988 15 137 15,288 16,441 16 596 15,762 15,910
Council, Grants & Meetings 102,936 126,622 23.0% 125,464 21.9% 128,575 131,774 135,064 138,443 141,917 145,489 149,161 152,935 156,814 160,800 164,900 169,117 173,450 177,907
Administration, Human Resources & Information
Systems
General Administration 342,859 346,935 1.2% 387,252 12.9% 397,547 449,474 451,581 569,038 584,704 600,827 517,418 534,493 752,067 773,152 794,855 817,195 840,189 968,858
Human Resources 16,499 13,401 -18.8% 15,053 -8.8% 15.244 15,438 15,633 15,832 16,034 16,237 16,445 16,656 16,870 17.087 17.306 17.529 17.756 17.986
Information Systems 54,508 65,437 20.1% 69,418 27.4% 70,307 72,975 69,572 70,717 82,729 83,800 86,988 82,965 84,344 98 631 99 926 103,733 98,979 100,642
Administration, Human Resources & Information
Systems 413,866 425,773 2.9% 471.723 14.0% 483.098 537.887 546,786 655,587 683.467 700,864 720,851 734.114 853,281 888.870 212,087 938.457 956,924 | 1,087.486
Municipal Hall, Legal & Audit 186,000 191,632 3.0% 213,409 14.7% 220,917 225,827 230,744 235,067 239,500 244,046 248,710 253,493 258,403 263,437 268,605 273.905 279,344 284,922
Planning 40,000 30,672 -23.3% 35,000 -12.5% 35,700 36,414 37,142 37,885 38,643 39,416 40,204 41,008 41,828 42,665 43,518 44,388 45,276 46,182
Contracted Support Services (Finance., Engineering
Website & Other) 106,191 105,881 -0.3% 105,565 -0.6% 107,661 109.799 111,980 114,204 116,472 118,785 121,145 123,552 126,006 128.508 131.060 133,663 136.319 139,028
Building & Plumbing Inspection 96,627 120,303 24.5% 112,449 16.4% 115,389 138.412 142,120 145,935 149.860 153.895 158,047 162,317 166,711 171,231 175.880 180,663 185.586 190,649
Bylaw Enforcement 20,521 24,567 19.7% 44,809 118.4% 46,090 47,407 48,763 50,158 51,595 53,074 54,594 56,158 57,769 59,427 61,132 62,887 64,694 66,553
Public Works
Public Works General 208,045 217,299 4.4% 222,539 7.0% 229175 235,992 242 998 296,188 304 967 313,992 323,269 332,809 390,795 402,326 414,185 426,382 438,927 502,202
Vehicles, Equipment & Supplies 56,363 58,403 3.6% 54 657 -3.0% 55,560 56,557 57.571 58,607 59,658 60,732 61,827 62,942 64,077 65,234 66,412 67.613 68,837 70,086
Roads, bridges, storm sewers etc. (Mon-MRN) 35,394 23,935 -32.4% 26,262 -25.8% 26,788 39,324 40,112 40,913 41,731 42 565 43,417 44 285 45 171 46,074 46,996 47,935 48 894 49,872
Trails & Public Spaces 9,170 8,725 -4.9% 11,000 20.0% 11.220 11.444 11,673 11,9086 12,144 12,387 12,635 12,887 13,145 13,408 13,676 13,950 14,229 14.514
Public Works 308,972 308,362 -0.2% 314,458 1.8% 322,743 343,317 352,354 407,614 418,500 429,676 441,148 452,923 513,188 527,042 541,269 555,880 570,887 636.674
Fire & Emergency Operations
Fire Protection 5,000 4,356 -12.9% 5,000 0.0% 5,100 5,202 5,306 5412 5,620 5,630 5.743 5,858 5,975 6,095 6.217 6,341 6,468 6,597
Emergency Preparedness 5,000 4,115 -17.7% 7.000 40.0% 7,140 7.283 7.429 7.578 7,730 7.885 8,043 8,204 8,368 8,535 8.706 8,880 9,058 9.239
Fire & Emergency Operations 10,000 8,471 -15.3% 12,000 20.0% 12,240 12,485 12,735 12,990 13,250 13,515 13,786 14,062 14,343 14,630 14,923 15,221 15,526 15,836
Interest, Bank Expenses, Bad Debts & Other 5,783 15,053 160.3% 17,100 195.7% 17.413 17,732 18,057 18,388 18,725 19,068 19,418 19,775 20,139 20,509 20,887 21,272 21,666 22,067
|Tota| Regular Operating Expenses 1,290,896 1.357.336 5.1%| 1,451,977 12.5%|] 1.,489.826 1,601,054 | 1,635,745 1.816.271 | 1,871,929 | 1,917,828 | 1,967.064 | 2,010,337 | 2,208,482 | 2.277.119 2,334.261 2,395,453 2,449,672 | 2,667.304
Allocation of Centralized Support Costs to MRN,
Water & WARD (299.739) (318.424) 6.2% (339.073) 13.1% (347.891) (378.417)] (383,331)] (416.686)| (429.,593)| (443.337)| (451.,175)| (460.817)] (497.573) (516.9186) (525,892) (539.539) (551,356) (595.949)
| Surplus Before Other Revenue/Expenses & Transfers 453.910 635.950 40.1% 517.804 14.1% 543.460 539.505 569,018 483.370 504.464 538.564 565,930 603.667 516,352 543,946 575,592 610.8928 654,507 570,761

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 91



VILLAGE OF BELCARRA GENERAL OPERATING FUND
15-YEAR (2024 - 2028) FINANCIAL PLAN

Estimated Draft % change
Page 2 of 2 Budget Year-End Budget  from 2023
2023 2023 % change 2024 Budget Plan 2025 | Plan 2026 | Plan 2027 | Plan 2028 | Plan 2029] Plan 2030 | Plan 2031 | Plan 2032| Plan 2033 | Plan 2034 | Plan 2035 | Plan 2036 | Plan 2037 | Plan 2038
Major Road Network (MRN) - TransLink Funded
Conditional Operating Transfers (MRN) (168,196) (126,762) -24.6%| (139,014) A7.3%|  (142,721) (150,633)| (153,709) (188,528)| (194,041) (199,799) (204,522)| (209,681) (247611} (255641) (261,814) (269,008) (275,985)| (318,108)
Allocation of Centralilzed Support to MRN 57,239 60,807 6.2% 64,763 13.1% 66,447 72,278 73,216 79,587 82,052 84 677 86,174 88,016 95,036 98,731 100,445 103,052 105,309 113,826
MRN Operating Costs 110,957 65,955 -40.6% 74,251 -33.1% 76,274 78,355 80,493 108,941 111,989 115,122 118,348 | 121,665 152 575 156,910 161,369 165,956 170,676 204,282
Net MRN 0 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Community Building Fund Grant Revenue & Transfer
Community Building Fund Grant (62,974) (62,974) 0.0% (62,974) 0.0% (63,604) (64,240) (64,882) (65,531)] (66,186)] (66,848) (67,516)| (68,191)| (68,873) (69,562) (70,258) (70,961) (71,671) (72,388)
Transfer to Community Building Fund Reserve 62,974 62,974 0.0% 62,974 0.0% 63,604 64,240 64,882 65,5631 66,186 66,648 67,516 68,191 68,873 69,562 70,258 70,961 71,671 72,388
Growing Communities Fund Grant 0 (759,000} >100.0% 0 0.0% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Transfer to Community Building Fund Reserve 0 759000 >100.0% 0 0.0% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Net Community Builidng Fund 0 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Non-Reoccurring & Special Operating Expenses &
Funding
Community Wildfire Protection Plan Expenses 0 3,375 >100.0% 0 0.0% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1] 0 0 0 0 0
UBCM Community Resiliency Investment Grant 0 (27,406) >100.0% 0 0.0% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
UBCM Community Resiliency Pragram Expenses 0 24,031 >100.0% 0 0.0% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Transfer from Stabilization Reserve 0 0 0.0% 0 0.0% V] (34,338) 0 0 0 (37,772) 0 0 V] (41,549) 0 0 0 (45,704)
Strategic Planning 0 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 12,000 0 0 0 13,200 0 0 0 14,520 0 0 0 15,972
Election Expenses 0 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 22,338 0 0 0 24 572 0 0 0 27,029 0 0 0 29,732
Transfer from Community Works Gas Tax Reserve (70,000) (100,434) 43.5% (30,600} -56.3% (31,212) (31,836) (32,473) (93,122)] (33,784)] (34,460) (35,149)| (35,852)| (101,569) (37,300) (38,0486) (38,807) (39,583)| (110,375)
Integrated Long-Term Financial & Asset Management
Grant 0 (25,0000 =>100.0% 0 0.0% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 V] 0 0 0 0 0
Natural Asset Planning Project Grant 0 (10,000} >100.0% 0 0.0% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Climate Action Plan Deferred Revenue (Active
Transportation Plan) 0 0 0.0% (37,500)
Active Transportation Plan Grant 0 0 0.0% (37,500)
Asset Management & Long-Term Financial Planning 50,000 78,430 56.9% 30,600 -38.8% 31,212 31,836 32,473 33,122 33,784 34,460 35,149 35,852 36,569 37,300 38,046 38,807 39,583 40,375
MNatural Asset Planning Project 0 15,000 >100.0% 0 0.0% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Active Transportation Plan 0 0 0.0% 75,000 >100.0% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
OCP Review & Update 20,000 42,004 110.0% 0 -100.0% 0 0 0 60,000 0 0 0 0 65,000 0 0 0 0 70,000
Net Non-Reoccurring & Special Projects 0 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Transfers to Reserves & Surplus
General Capital Reserve Fund 257,300 301,044 17.0% 126,232 -50.9% 134,243 131,880 141,211 110,213 83,256 91,025 97,093 | 105,739 83,106 89,187 96,262 104,236 114,268 92,443
Vehicle & Equipment Capital Reserve Fund 10,404 10,404 0.0% 72,133 593.3% 76,710 75,360 80,691 62,980 66,605 72,819 97,093 | 105,739 83,107 89,186 96,261 104,235 114,267 92,444
Transportation Infrastructure Reserve Fund 120,000 120,000 0.0% 108,200 -9.8% 115,065 113,038 121,036 94,470 | 148,860 163,842 174767 | 190,331 149,593 160,534 173,270 187 622 205,681 166,399
Financial Stabilization Reserve Fund 5,000 25,000 400.0% 54,100 982.0% 57,533 56,520 60,519 47,235 33,302 36,408 19,418 21,148 16,622 17,836 19,252 20,847 22,853 18,489
Transfer of Interest to Reserves/Surplus 41,206 159,502 287.1% 137,139 232.8% 139,909 142,707 145,561 148,472 | 151,441 154 470 167,659 [ 160,710 163,924 167,203 170,547 173,958 177,438 180,986
Transfer to General Fund Surplus 20,000 20,000 0.0% 20,000 0.0% 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
Total Transfers to Reserves & Surplus 453,910 635,950 40.1% 517,804 14.1% 543,460 539,505 569,018 483,370 | 504,464 | 538,564 565,930 | 603,667 | 516,352 543,946 575,592 610,898 654,507 570,761
FINANCIAL PLAN BALANCE 0 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 92




Appendix “D” — Detailed Long-Term (15-Year) Water Operating Fund Financial Plan

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA WATER OPERATING FUND
15-YEAR (2024 - 2028) FINANCIAL PLAN

Estimated Draft % change
Budget Year-End Budget from 2023
2023 2023 % change 2024 Budget Plan 2025 Plan 2026 Plan 2027 Plan 2028 Plan 2029 Plan 2030 | Plan 2031 Plan 2032 | Plan 2033| Plan 2034 Plan 2035 Plan 2036 Plan 2037 Plan 2038
Regular Operating Revenues
User Fees, Charges & Interest
Water Annual Fees 383,988 382,656 -0.3%| 460,786 20.0%| 529,904 609,390 639,860 671,853 705,446 740,718 777,754 816,642 | 857,474 900,348 945,365 992,633 | 1,042,265 1,004,378
Water System Connection Fees/Other 3,750 3,130 -16.5% 3,750 0.0% 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750
Interest Income 4686 10,633 126.9% 4873 4.0% 5,068 5,271 5,482 5701 5.929 6,166 6,413 6,670 6,937 7.214 7.503 7.803 8,115 8,440
User Fees, Charges & Interest 392,424 396,419 1.0% 469,409 19.6% 538,722 618,411 649,092 681,304 715125 750,634 787,917 827,062 868,161 911,312 956,618 1,004,186 1,054,130 1,106,568
Total Regular Operating Revenues 392,424 396,419 1.0%| 469,409 19.6%| 538,722 618,411 649,092 681,304 715,125 750,634 787,917 827,062 | 868,161 911,312 956,618 | 1,004,186 | 1,054,130 | 1,106,568
Regular Operating Expenses
Administration
Allocation of Centralized Support 161,470 171,535 6.2% 182,760 13.2%| 187,513 203,067 206,615 224,594 231,651 238,059 243,183 248380 | 268,192 278,618 283,456 290,812 297,181 321,217
Other (Environmental Monitoring & Lease) 777 277 -64.4% 277 -64.4% 277 277 277 277 277 277 277 277 277 277 277 277 277 277
Allocation of Centralized Cost/Other 162,247 171,812 5.9% 183,037 12.8% 187,790 204,244 206,892 224,871 231,828 239,236 243,460 248,657 268,469 278,885 283,733 291,089 297,458 321,494
Water Purchases & Conveyance 107,926 106,048 -1.7% 113,605 5.3% 116,157 118,768 121,440 124175 126,973 129 837 132,768 135,768 138,838 141,980 145,196 148,488 151,857 155,306
Water Systems Operations
Public Works 55,301 57537 4.0% 60,527 9.5% 62,298 64,121 65,098 97.437 100,311 103,271 106,320 109,459 | 143,600 147 857 152,238 156,750 161,396 198,497
Utilities & Scada 12,992 9,652 -25.7% 10,350 -20.3% 10,544 10,742 10,043 11,149 11,357 11,569 11,787 12,007 12,232 12,463 12,698 12,937 13,180 13,428
Water Mains Repair & Maintenance 5152 0 -100.0% 5,255 2.0% 5,360 5,467 5576 5,688 5,802 5918 6,036 6,157 6,280 6,406 6,534 6,665 6,798 6,934
Station Repair & Maintenance 14,000 8,082 -42.3% 14,160 1.1% 14,443 14,731 15,026 15,326 15,632 15,945 16,264 16,589 16,922 17,260 17,605 17,957 18,316 18,682
Reservoir Repair & Maintenance 1,125 1,125 0.0% 1,125 0.0% 5,348 5,455 5,564 5,675 5.788 5,904 6,022 6,143 6,266 6,391 6,518 6,648 6,781 6,017
Materials & Equipment 5618 1,614 -71.3% 5,100 9.2% 5,202 5,306 5,412 5,520 5.631 5743 5,858 5,975 6,095 6,217 6,341 6,468 6,598 6,730
Water Systems Operations 94,188 78,010 -17.2% 96,517 2.5% 103,185 105,822 108,518 140,795 144,521 148,350 152,287 156,330 191,395 196,594 201,934 207,425 213,069 251,188
Total Regular Operating
Expenses 364,361 355,870 -2.3% 393,159 7.9%| 407,142 428,834 436,851 489 841 503,322 517,423 528,515 540,755 | 598,702 617,469 630,863 647,002 662,384 727,988
Surplus Before Debt & Transfers (28,063) (40,549) 44.5% (76,250) 171.7%| (131,580) (189,577) (212,241) (191,463) (211,803) (233,211) (259,402) (286,307) (269,459) (293,843) (325,755) (357,184) (391,746)| (378,580)
Long-Terms Debt Payments/Transfers (Funded by
Parcel Taxes & Transfer)
Long-Term Debt Interest Expense 150,561 150,561 0.0% 150,561 0.0%| 150,561 150,561 150,561 150,561 150,561 150,561 150,561 150,561 | 150,561 150,561 150,561 150,561 150,561 150,561
Debt Principle Payment 119,002 119,002 0.0% 119,002 0.0%| 119,002 119,002 119,002 119,002 119,002 119,002 119,002 119,002 | 119,002 119,002 119,002 119,002 119,002 119,002
Parcel tax (267,617)  (266,506) -0.4%| (267,617) 0.0%| (267,617) (267,617)  (267.617)|  (267.617) (267.617) (267617 (267,617) (267.617)| (267,617) (267,617) (267,617) (267617) (267.617)| (267,617)
Transfer from Water Debt Repayment Reserve (1,946) (1,946) 0.0% (1,946) 0.0% (1,946)| (1,946), (1,946)| (1,946), (1,946) (1,946)| (1,946)| (1,946)| (1,946)| (1,946)| (1,946), (1,946), (1,946)| (1,946),
Total Net Long-Term Debt 0 1,111 >100.0% 0 0.0% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Transfers to Reserve Funds & Surplus
Transfer To Water Capital Reserve 20,316 31,691 56.0% 68,840 238.8% 124122 177,070 198,684 168,855 189,143 210,498 236,635 263,484 246 580 270,906 302,759 334,128 368,629 355,401
Transfer to Vehicle & Equipment Reserve 1,561 1,561 0.0% 1,200 23.1% 1,224 1,248 1,273 1,298 1,324 1,350 1,377 1,405 1,433 1,462 1,491 1,521 1,651 1,682
Transfer of Interest to Reserve 1,186 1,186 0.0% 1,210 2.0% 1,234 1,259 1,284 1,310 1,336 1,363 1,390 1,418 1,446 1,475 1,605 1,535 1,666 1,697
Transfer to Water Operating Fund Surplus 5,000 5,000 0.0% 5,000 0.0% 5,000 10,000 10,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
Transfers to Reserve Funds &
Surplus 28,063 39,438 40.5% 76,250 171.7%| 131,580 189,577 212,241 191,463 211,803 233,211 259,402 286,307 | 269,459 293,843 325,755 357,184 391,746 378,580
FINANCIAL PLAN BALANCE 0 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 93



Appendix “E” — Detailed Long-Term (15-Year) WARD Operating Fund Financial Plan

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA WASTE & RECYCLE DEPOT (WARD) OPERATING FUND
15-YEAR (2024 - 2038) FINANCIAL PLAN

Estimated Draft % change
Budget  Year-End % Budget from 2023 % % %
2023 2023 change 2024 Budget Plan 2025 change | Plan 2026 change | Plan 2027 change | Plan 2028 | Plan 2028| Plan 2030 | Plan 2031 | Plan 2032 | Plan 2033| Plan 2034 | Plan 2035| Plan 2036| Plan 2037| Plan 2038
REGULAR OPERATING REVENUES
FEES & CHARGES
Waste & Recycling Annual Fee & Tags 171,047 171,897 05%| 206,024 20.4% 226,553 10.0% 249,134 10.0% 259,080 4.0% 269,423 280,180 291,367 303,001 315100 327,683 340,768| 354,376 368528] 383,246 398,562
Permits & Licences 100 50 -50.0% 100 0.0% 100 0.0% 100 0.0% 100 0.0% 100] 100] 100 100 100 100 100| 100 100 100| 100|
Fees & Charges 171,147 171,947 0.5%| 206,124 20.4% 226,653 10.0% 249,234 10.0% 259,180 4.0%) 269,523 280,280 291,467 303,101 315,200 327,783 340,868| 354,476 368,628] 383,346 398,652
Interest Income 1,500 1,583 5.5% 1,530 2.0% 1,561 2.0% 1,592 2.0% 1,624 2.0% 1,656 1,689 1,723 1,757 1,792 1,828 1,865 1,902 1,940 1,979 2,019
Total Regular Operating Revenues 172,647 173,530 0.5%| 207,654 20.3% 228,214 9.9% 250,826 9.9%| 260,804 4.0%) 271,179 281,969| 293,190 304,858| 316,992 329611| 342,733] 356,378| 370,568| 385,325| 400,671
REGULAR OPERATING EXPENSES
Allocation of Centralized Support 81,030 86,080 6.2% 91,550 13.0% 93,931 2.6% 102,173 8.8% 103,499 1.3% 112,505 115,990 119,701 121,817 124,421 134,345 139,567| 141,991 145676] 148,866 160,906
OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
Public Works 6,101 6,393 4 8% 6,678 9.5% 6,872 2.9% 7,075 3.0% 7,281 2.9% 10,749 11,065 11,393 11,729 12,076 15,842 16,312 16,795 17,293 17,805 21,898
Utilities 1,082 318 -70.6% 500 -53.8% 520 4.0% 541 4.0% 563 4.1% 586 609 633 658 684 71 739 769 800 832 865
Depot Operations 25,051 26,315 5.0% 41,165 64.3% 41,988 2.0% 42,829 2.0% 43,685 2.0% 44 558 45,450 46,359 47,287 48,233 49,198 50,182 51,185 52,209 53,254 54317
Materials & Equipment 5,857 4,749 -18.9% 5841 -0.3% 5,858 2.0% 6,078 2.0% 6,199 2.0% 6,323 6,450] 6,579 6,710 6,844 6,981 7121 7,264 7,409 7,558 7,710
Processing & Hauling Expense 68,752 60,998 -11.3% 71,486 4 0% 74,329 4 0% 77,286 4 0% 80,361 4.0% 83,558 86,883 90,340 93,035 97 674 101,562 105,605 109,809 114,180 118,726 123,453
WARD Operations 106,843 98,773 -7.6%] 125,670 17.6% 129,667 3.2% 133,809 3.2% 138,089 3.2% 145,774 150,457 155,304 160,319 165,511 174,294 179,959| 185,822 191,891 198,175 208,243
Total Regular Operating Expenses 187,873 184,853 -1.6%| 217,220 15.6% 223,598 2.9% 235,982 5.5%| 241,588 2.4% 258,279 266,447 275,005/ 282136| 289,932| 308,639| 319,526| 327,813| 337,567| 347,041 369,149
(SURPLUS) DEFICIT BEFORE OTHER REVENUE/EXPENSES &
TRANSFERS 15,226 11,323 -25.6% 9,566 -37.2% (4,616) -148.3% (14,844) 221.6%| (19,216) 29.5% (12,900)| (15,522)] (18,185)| (22,722)] (27,060)| (20,972)| (23,207)] (28,565)| (33,001) (38,284)| (31,522)
TRANSFERS TO (FROM) RESERVES & SURPLUS
Transfer to Vehicle & Equipment Reserve 1,000 1,000 0.0% 1,200 20.0% 1,440 20.0% 1,728 20.0% 2,074 20.0% 2,489 2,987 3,584 4,301 5161 6,193 7,432 8,918 10,702 12,842 15,410
Transfer of Interest to WARD Surplus 1,500 1,500 0.0% 1,530 2.0% 1,561 2.0% 1,592 2.0% 1,624 2.0% 1,656 1,689 1,723 1,757 1,792 1,828 1,865 1,902 1,940 1,979 2,019
Transfer (from) WARD Surplus to Offset Operating Deficits &
Transfer to Reserve (17,726) (13,823) -22.0%| (12,296) -30.6% 1615 -113.1% 11,524  613.6% 15,518 34 7% 8,755 10,846 12,878 16,664 20,107 12,951 13,910 17,745 20,359 23,463 14,093
TOTAL TRANSFERS TO (FROM) RESERVES & SURPLU3 (15,226) (11,323) -25.6% (9,566) -37.2% 4,616 -148.3% 14,844  221.6% 19,216 29.5% 12,900 15,522 18,185 22,722 27,060 20,972 23,207 28,565 33,001 38,284 31,522
FINANCIAL PLAN BALANCE 0 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0%| 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 94




Appendix “F” — Detailed Long-Term (15-Year) Capital Plans

5-Year Financial Plan Long-Term Financial Plan
Draft Budget Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Total Capital
Page 1 of 2 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038 2024 - 2038
GENERAL CAPITAI
General & Information Technology
Computers 23.000 1.800 10.100 12 600 2. 000 27 317 2.138 11.996 14 965 2. 375 32 444 2 539 14 247 17.773 2.821 178,115
Servers 2.800 - 12,000 - - 3.326 - 14 252 - - 3.950 - 16,927 - - 53,255
Peripherals 1.860 600 1.710 330 - 2.209 T13 2,031 382 - 2,624 846 2412 465 - 16,192
Power & UPS - - 290 - 1.700 - - 344 - 2.019 - - 409 - 2.398 7,160
Subtotal General $27.660 $2.400 $24.100 $12.930 $3.700 $32.852 $2.851 $28.623 $15.357 $4.394 $39.018 $3.385 $33.995 $18.238 $5.219 254,722
Public Works & Municipal Hall
MNew Generator (for Municipal Hall & Public Works) 40.000 40,000
Permanent Shelter For Public Works Machinery 100. 000 100,000
Crack Filling Machine -
Public VWorks Driveway 50,000 50,000
Public Works Fuel Station (above ground fuel tank. pump & catchment)
(per Asset Management) 40.000 40,000
Public Works Egquipment 8.600 5.000 5,000 5.000 5,000 5,000 5.000 5.000 5,000 5,000 5.000 5.000 5,000 5,000 5.000 78,500
Municipal Hall Septic Systems (per Asset Management) 75000 75,000
Municipal Computer Room (per Asset Management) 10,000 10,000
Municipal Hall Furnace (per Asset Management) 7.500 7,500
Municipal Hall Appliances (per Asset Management) 5,000 5,000
Emergency Power Generator (for Public Works & Municipal Hall) (per
Asset Management( 25,000 25,000
Portable Generator (small one for Public Warks) 5000 6,000
Subtotal Public Works $8.500 $80.000 $195.000 $58.500 $15.000 $5.000 $5.000 $5.000 $5.000 $5.000 $5.000 $5.000 $5.000 $5.000 $35.000 $437.000
Vehicles & Equipment
2023 Chewvy Silverado 130.000 130,000
2023 Kubota 45, 000 45,000
2018 Ford F550 150,000 150,000
Plows (per Asset Management) 5.000 5.000 16,000
Salt Spreaders (per Asset Management) {one hydraulic one electric) 15,000 15.000 30,000
Chipper (per Asset Management) 20,000 20,000
Pavement Crack Sealer (per Asset Management) 10.000 10,000
Holland THN7Y0DA Tractor, Deluxe Cab 4x4 with bucket/Mew Backhoe,
JD 310 160,000 170.000 330,000
Subtotal Wehicle & Amachments $160.000 $0 $0 $20,000 $23.,000 $0 $0 $0 $195,000 $0 $23.000 $130,000 $170,000 $0 $10,000 $731.000
Non-MRN Roads including Access
Marine Awe - Mill & Fill (Marine} 165,000 165,000
Turn around area 4000 block Marine ave (per Asset Management) 60,000 60,000
Belcarra Bay Rd (from stop sign to Turtlehead Rd) + possible drainage
design 287.500 287,500
Belcarra Bay Rd (from Turtlehead Rd to Whiskey Cove Lane) 200,000 200,000
Young Rd (per Asset Management) 130,000 130,000
Senkler Bridge Wing Wall Repair {(per Council motion} 20000 20,000
Senkler Road Bridge Replacement 625, 000 625,000
Tatlow Station Access Rd_ 0,000 70,000
Road Rehabilitation {including pothole repairs) 30,000 30,000 30.000 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 210,000
Shouldering Boulevards 15,000 15,000 15,000 15, 000 15,000 15, 000 15,000 15, 000 120,000
Subtotal Non-MRN Roads $185.000 $45,000 $287.500 $175,000 $215,000 $45,000 $130.000 $45,000 $0 $45,000 30 $45,000 $625,000 $45,000 30 $1.887.500
Bedwell Bay Upgrade Project (BBUP) {(Construction) 207.000 207.000 207.000 207.000 828,000
Bedwell Bay Upgrade Project (BBUP) {(Construction) 109.250 109.250 109,250 109,250 437,000
Gabion wall Main Ave (intersection Bedwell Bay Rd) (per Asset
Management) 187.500 187,500
Gabion wall Main Ave (intersection Bedwell Bay Rd) (per Asset
Management) B2 500 62,500
Road Barriers & Flashing Beacons - Bedwell Bay Rd — part of Major
Road Metwork (MRM} 35.000 35.000
Subtotal MRN Roads $351.250 $316.250 $3186.250 $316.250 $250.000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 s$o $0 $0 $1.550.000
Drainage
Culvert Camera 15000 15,000
Culvert Replacement {under Turtlehead Rd west of Belcarra Bay and
Turtlehead Rd intersection) (per Asset Management) 10,000 10,000
Storm Sewer & Catch Basin Replacements 15000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15000 105,000
Subtotal Storm Sewer $15,000 S0 $25,000 S0 $15,000 S0 $15,000 S0 $15,000 S0 $15,000 S0 $15,000 S0 $15,000 $130,000
Parks & Recreation
Trail System Rehabilitation & Improvements 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000 75.000
Small bridge on trail at end of Salish Rd (per Asset Management) 6.000 6,000
Concrete stairs with wooden railing - Marine Ave (per Asset Management) 20,000 20,000
Senkler Bridge Inspections, Repair & Renewal 20,000 10.000 10.000 200.000 10.000 250,000
Salish Foreshore Bridge 20,000 20,000
Three (3) Trails from Marine Avenue to Beach (3400 block) Marine —
wooden stairs down to beach: 3700 block — divers’ trail: 3900 block
Marine — cement staircase 50,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 110,000
Subtotal Parks & Recreation $75,000 $5.000 $31,000 $15,000 $45,000 $5,000 $15,000 $5.000 $25,000 $205,000 $5.000 $5.000 $15,000 $25,000 $5.000 $481,000

GENERAL CAPITAI $448,650 $878,850 $566,700 $87.,852 $83,623 $255,357 $70,219

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 95



5-Year Financial Plan Long-Term Financial Plan

Draft Budget Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Total Capital
Page 2 of 2 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038 2024 - 2038
Universal Water Meters (radio read/pit antennae) 40,000 10,000 50,000
New Water Meters 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 70,000
MNew Water Meter for Leak Detection (Tatlow) 30,000 30,000
Tatlow/Dutchman Reservoir Repairs 30,000 30,000
Water Meters (per Asset Management) 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 75,000
Water Equipment 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15.000 225,000
Water Chlarination System Construction 175,000 175,000
Pipeline Inspection (see Sept. 11th. 2023 Council agenda) 29,000 29,000
Tatlow Reservoir Water Pump 55,000 55,000
SCADA System 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 35,000

TOTAL WATER CAPITAL

WASTE & RECYCLE DEPOT (WARD) CAPITAL

$89,000 $270,000 $30,000 $25,000 $85,000 $25,000 $30,000 $25,000 $30,000 $25,000 $30,000 $25,000 $30,000 $25,000 $30,000 774,000

Minor WARD Equipment 8.000 8.000 8.000 8.000 8.000 8.000 8.000 8,000 64,000
Recycle center security system (per Asset Management) 15,000 20,000 35,000
Recycle depot electric gate and components (per Asset Management) 15.000 15,000
Wasteline porta Pak 3032 compactor and container - Bin A (per Asset

Management) 50,000 50,000
Universal UP200 compactor and container - Bin C (per Asset

Management) 40,000 40,000
Wasteline Storage container - Bin B (per Asset Manageament) 20,000 20,000
Maobile Office 30.000 30,000
Gate & Access Control 9.500 9.500 9.500 28,500
Repaving Tarmac Area 50,000 50,000

TOTAL WARD CAPITAL

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES - ALL FUNDS

FUNDING SOURCES

$38,000 $0  $67,500 $65,000 $48,000 $35,000 $8,000 $9.500 $8,000 $0 $8,000 $0 $17,500 $20,000 $8,000 332,500

$949,410 $718,650 $976,350 $687,680 $699,700 $147,852 $205,851 $118,123 $293,357 $284,394 $125,018 $213,385 $911495 $138,2 $108,219 $6,577,722

Canada Community-Building Fund Reserve 165,000 - - 62,500 - - - - - - - - - - 227,500
General Capital Reserve 260,660 77,400 266,600 70,430 36,700 32,852 35.851 38,123 233,357 204,394 62,018 133,385 246,495 15,238 33.219 1,749,722
Vehicle & Equipment Capital Reserve 8,500 5,000 45,000 96,000 68,000 40,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 28,000 5,000 5,000 25,000 40,000 385,500
Transportation Infrastructure Reserve 75,000 50,000 318,500 180,000 260,000 50,000 135.000 50,000 25,000 50,000 5,000 50,000 530,000 70,000 5,000 1,953,500
Growing Communities Fund Reserve 109,250 284,250 109,250 109,250 - - - - - - - - - - - 612,000
Water Capital Reserve 89,000 95,000 30,000 25,000 85,000 25,000 30,000 25,000 30,000 25,000 30,000 25,000 30,000 25,000 30,000 599,000
Covid Restart Grant - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Grant - MRN (O&M) (deferred revenue) - - - - - - - - - - - - R
Grant - Major Road Metwork and Bike Upgrades (MRMNB), Bicycle

Infrastructure Capital Cost Share (BICCS) and the Walking

Infrastructure to Transit (WWITT) TransLink funding programs 242,000 207,000 207,000 207,000 187,500 - - - - - - - - - - 1,050,500
Third Party Contributions - - - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL FUNDING SOURCES

$949,410 $718,650 $976,350

$687,680 $699,700 $147,852 $205,851 $118,123 $293,357 $284,394 $125,018 $213,385 $911,495 $138,238 $108,219 $6,577,722

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 96



Appendix “G” — Graph, Map and Table Index

GRAPHS

Graph 1 — Belcarra Historical Water Usage
Graph 2 - % Changes in Property Taxes & User Fees

Graph 3 — Reqular General Operating Fund Revenue & Expenses 2024 — 2028

Graph 4 — Reqular Water Operating Fund Revenue & Expenses 2024 - 2028
Graph 5 — Reqular WARD Operating Fund Revenue & Expenses 2024 - 2028
Graph 6 — 15-Year (2024 — 2028) Capital Plan

Graph 7 — Funding Sources for Long-Term (15-Year) Capital Plan

Graph 8 — Population Counts, Belcarra

Graph 9 — Employed labour force by main mode of commuting, Belcarr

Graph 10 — Employed labour force by place of work status, Belcarra

Graph 11 — Percent of households in Belcarra that spent 30% or more of income on shelter costs
Graph 12 — Regqular Geneal Operating Fund Revenue 2020 - 2023

Graph 13 — Reqular General Fund Operating Expenses 2020 - 2023

Graph 14 — Reqular Water Operating Fund Revenue 2020 - 2023

Graph 15 — Regular Water Operating Fund Expenses 2020 - 2023

Graph 16 — Belcarra Historical Water Usage

Graph 17 — WARD Operating Revenue 2020 - 2023

Graph 18 — WARD Operating Expenses 2020 - 2023

Graph 19 — Water Fund Long-Term Debt Outstanding

Graph 20 — Historical Transfers to (from) Reserves & Surpluses

Graph 21 — Total Reserve & Surplus Balances
Graph 22 — Property Tax & Utility User Rates History

Graph 23 — % Changes in Property Taxes & User Fees

Graph 24 — 2023 Taxes Raised by Various Taxing Authorities
Graph 25 — General Operating Fund Reserve & Surplus Transfers
Graph 26 — Reqular General Operating Revenue 2024 - 2038
Graph 27 — Reqular General Operating Expenses 2024 - 2038

Graph 28 — Water Operating Fund Reserve & Surplus Transfers

Graph 29 — Water Operating Fund Revenue 2024 - 2038

Graph 30 — Water Operating Fund Expenses 2024 - 2038

Graph 31 — WARD Operating Fund Reserve & Surplus Transfers

Graph 32 — WARD Operating Fund Revenue 2024 - 2038

Graph 33 — WARD Operating Fund Expenses 2024 - 2038

Graph 34 — 15-Year (2024 — 2028) Capital Plan

Graph 35 — 15-Year (2024 — 2028) General Capital Plan

Graph 36 —15-Year (2024 — 2028) Water Capital Plan

Graph 37 —15-Year (2024 — 2028) WARD Capital Plan

Graph 38 — General Operating Fund Reserve & Surplus Balance Resulting From Scenarios
Graph 39 — Water Operating Fund Reserve & Surplus Balance Resulting From Scenarios

Graph 40 — WARD Operating Fund Reserve & Surplus Balance Resulting From Scenarios

MAPS

Map 1: The Road Map to Financial Sustainability
Map 2: Village of Belcarra and Indian Arm

Map 3: Lower Mainland

Map 4: Village of Belcarra, Official Community Plan
Map 5: Village of Belcarra Official Community Plan Aerial Photograph

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 97



TABLES

Table 1 — Summary of Key Financial Numbers
Table 2 — Village of Belcarra Estimated Borrowing Ca

Table 3 — Potential Development Revenue as Identified in Draft OCP

Table 4 — Asset Inventory & Replacement Values
Table 5 — Sustainable Annual Funding versus Actual Annual Funding

Table 6 - Number and Median After-Tax Income of Belcarra Households
Table 7 — Total Belcarra Population by Labour Force Status

Table 8 — Belcarra Employed Labour Force by Class of Worker

Table 9 — Summary of Key Financial Numbers
Table 10 - Summary of Financial Indicators
Table 11 — General Operating Fund Sensitivity Analysis

Table 12 — Water Operating Fund Sensitivity Analysis
Table 13 — WARD Operating Fund Sensitivity Analysis
Table 14 — Village of Belcarra Borrowing Capacity

Table 15 — Deferred Revenue Projections

Table 16 — New Construction Assessments & Revenue 2020 & 2021
Table 17 — New Construction Assessments & Revenue 2022 & 2023
Table 18 — Assessed Property Value Changes 2023 & 2022

Table 19 — Assessed Value Property Changes 2021 & 2020

Table 20 — Potential Development Revenue as Identified in Draft OC
Table 21 — Asset Inventory & Replacement Costs

Table 22 — Annual Reserve Contributions for Assets

Table 23 — Funding Sources or Assets
Table 24 — Sustainable Annual Funding versus Actual Annual Funding for Assets

Table 25 — Reserve Balances

Table 26 — Funding Gaps for Water & WARD Utilities
Table 27 — Accumulated Funding Gap for Assets
Table 28 — Recommended WARD & Water Utility Rat
Table 29 — Life Cycle Costing

Table 30 — Life Cycle Costing Example

Table 31 — Water Rates & Increases in Draft Long-Term Financial Plan

Table 32 — WARD Rates & Increases in Draft Long-Term Financial Plan
Table 33 — General Major Capital Projects over the Next 5 Years

Table 34 — Water Major Capital Projects over the Next 5 Years
Table 35 — WARD Major Capital Projects over the Next 5 Years
Table 36 — General Operating Fund Budget/Financial Plan Scenarios

Table 37 — Water Operating Fund Budget/Financial Plan Scenarios
Table 38 — WARD Operating Fund Budget/Financial Plan Scenarios
Table 39 — Financial Policies & Practices

Table 40 — Recommendations Arising from Financial Planning (FP
Table 41 — Recommendations Arising from Asset Management (AM)

Table 42 — Recommendations Arising From Policy Review (P)

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 98



Appendix “H” — Asset Management Plan

Asset Management Plan Contents

Asset Management Plan Introduction & Background ..........cceceeeeeerenieieneneerie e 100
Introduction t0 ASSEet MaNAQEIMENT ......cccevererierierierieeeenerese sttt et sre st s b stesbesaesee e eneeseseesbenes 100
Purpose of Asset Management Plan — Alignment of Long-Term Funding .........ccceeeeeevereennnns 100
Asset Management SCOPE Of WOIK ....coceeererirerienienininenesiesie ettt eeeesiesee st steseesae st enessesseseeseas 100
Key Assumptions for ASSet ManagemMENT......c.cceeeverereerererrierieseeseseeeeesie e eee e seeseesneeseeseeeneens 101
Glossary of Asset ManagemMeENT TEIMIS ....c.ceceverreerereeerienteeteseesesteseeseeseeseeeeessesseeseessesssessesseenes 103

INputs iNto Asset ManagemMENT PIaN .......cocceevirerienienieieerese sttt sre s st stesae e e e enesresseseeees 104

Overview Of ASSEtS/INFIASITUCTUIE .......ccveieererirerereetetet ettt ettt st s see b e 105
[INVENTOIY VAIUBLION ....coueiiiriieiirierietetet ettt sttt et sttt ettt e st s ae st s b st et e b e e et enessesbesbenes 105
Sustainable ANNUAL FUNAING .......cooviiirieieeeceseeeee ettt sttt s sae e nse e eneas 106

Detailed Inventory of ASSetS/INfraStIUCIUIE.......c.ooieeieriiriece ettt st 111
LanNd & NAIUFAI ASSELS ....coueruiriirieieieteeeesiese ettt et sae st seesbe st et et esesbe st esbesbesbesaenaeneeneesesaesseses 111
Buildings, Structures & COMPONENLS ......coceeerierierierieteerereseseessestesteseeesressessestessesseseeseenessessesseses 113
0 1T ] 0.0 SRS 116
(== VA =Y 103 =SSP 119
INFOIMALION SYSTEMIS. ..c.uiiieiieieie ettt sttt st e st e st estesee et e sesaeensessesneessesneenseseeennens 121
Multi-Use Path, Trail & Road Shoulder (MTRS) NEtWOIK........cccoeruerererierenenienienieneereeeseseenienee 124
StOrMWALEN COIBCLION ...ttt sttt sttt et se e sbesbe st et e e e e esesseeseseens 127
Transportation INfraSITUCTUIE........cocvrieiee ettt sttt s e e st e st esesae e e ennesnnenes 130
Waste & Recycle Depot (WARD) INFTASIIUCLIUIE ......ooueeeieriieieie ettt 133
Water Distribution & TreatmMeNT ........cceceeeririererienierteeeese ettt see s see s sttt s e s see b nee 136

Asset Condition Assessment SChedule REPOIT ........ccvirererireneneniereeeeesese ettt se e sieseens 140

COSE ESHIMALES ....eviieieieteceeeie sttt ettt sttt ettt st s b b st et e st et et e e s besaesbe st e b ente e et enessessesbenes 146

Asset ManagemeNnt NEXE STEPS .. ..eic ittt ettt sttt et e she e saeesabesbesbeesneens 146

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 99



Asset Management Plan Introduction & Background

Introduction to Asset Management

Legislative Prerogative

A municipality’s asset management responsibilities are imbedded in the Community Charter:

“The purposes of a municipality include.... (c) providing for stewardship of the
public assets of its community”

This responsibility was found in the Municipal Act, which preceded the Community Charter and is found in sister
legislation, the Local Government Act. Providing for the stewardship of public assets includes planning for and
funding the maintenance, repair, and eventual replacement of such assets.

Asset Management BC Framework

In 2019, Asset Management BC developed a BC Framework for a municipal approach to Asset Management. This
Framework recommends three-part and cyclical approach to asset management for BC municipalities:

1. Assess asset management practices and the state of assets,
2. Plan what needs to be done to improve asset management, and
3. Implement the plans.

The Village of Belcarra as a result of this asset management project has made considerable progress in its Asset
Management journey.

Purpose of Asset Management Plan — Alignment of Long-Term Funding

This Asset Management Plan (Plan) was primarily developed to support sustainable service delivery for the
Village of Belcarra’s capital services. For the Village’s capital services to remain sustainable, appropriate funding
must be dedicated to asset and infrastructure replacement. The Plan estimates sustainable funding levels by
modelling estimated replacement costs over a 50-year timeframe.

Asset Management Scope of Work

The Village engaged LandInfo Technologies, through a request for proposals (RFP) process, to complete an Asset
Inventory/Replacement Plan & Condition Assessment Framework (Asset Management Plan) for the Village of
Belcarra. This entailed a detailed asset inventory & replacement plan which could be input into the Village’s
graphic information system (GIS) and be used in the Village’s long-term (15-year) financial planning model, as
well as a condition assessment framework that could be used for determining the timing of all-important asset
assessments.

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | Fall 2023 | Page 100



The Village also engaged LandInfo Technologies, through an RFP, to identify its natural assets and their
associated attributes (part of Asset Management Plan). This included parks, environmentally sensitive areas,
green spaces, stormwater management facilities, water courses, registered springs, tree canopies, and other
such assets.

Once natural capital assets were identified and inventoried (including information on the type, location
[mapping], size, condition, and management practices of each asset), they were to be captured in a format that
is transferable to GIS. The goal was to give the Village the ability to visualize and analyze the spatial distribution
and connectivity of its natural capital assets, and to track changes over time.

LandInfo Technologies is an independent consulting firm that has provided asset management consulting
services to public and private sector clients since 1995. Their primary goal is to address the unique asset
management needs of Canada's smaller communities utilizing geographical information systems.

The summarized results of LandInfo Technologies Asset Management Plan work are included in this Appendix.

Key Assumptions for Asset Management

Capital Grants: Forecasts do not include any potential conditional grants awarded by senior levels of
government. However, forecasts do include ongoing unconditional Canada Community- Building Fund payments
(formerly Federal Gas Tax payments).

Capital Service Continuity: For modelling, it was assumed that the Village of Belcarra would want to continue
with the current capital services and capital service levels. The Village may choose not to replace some of its
capital or reduce / increase capital services. Such decisions could materially impact modelling.

Climate change: The Plan did not examine the risk or impact of climate change on the Village of Belcarra’s
infrastructure or private property. Further review, funding, and staff capacity would be required should Council
or the community wish to understand the broader implications of climate change risk on the community.

Existing Capital Only: The Plan does not model anticipated growth in infrastructure requirements. Forecasts are
based on the replacement of existing municipal infrastructure only. For instance, these forecasts have not
contemplated the increased capacity required to support future densification or development. The Plan has not
anticipated potential future decisions to increase capital service levels.

Inflation: Modelling has been prepared using 2023 values. No inflationary factors have been applied to
forecasted replacement costs. As unit costs are likely to escalate, the Village could consider applying an annual
forced growth increase to recommended investment levels. Interest earnings on reserves, in part, offset some
inflation.

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 101



Infrastructure Replacement Standards: Forecasts are prepared with the assumption that infrastructure will be
replaced at the same standard that currently exists. However, if some of the Village’s infrastructure does not
meet existing standards the infrastructure investment would have to increase.

Replacement Cost Accuracy: Unit rates were developed to estimate overall replacement costs and to develop a
long-term sustainable funding model. No Class-D or above construction estimates have been prepared.
Therefore, none of the spending forecasts were utilized to prepare the Village’s capital plans. Spending forecasts
demonstrate an overall funding level likely needed to support the ongoing replacement of existing
infrastructure. Replacement cost accuracy will differ between asset classes and subclasses.

Unit Pricing Inclusion: Unit prices were current as at October 2023.
Useful lives: The Plan utilizes a modified National Asset Management Standards (NAMS) approach to useful

lives. Useful lives were generally estimated to be near the midway point of the NAMS recommended useful life
range, with some exceptions based on recent condition assessments.

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 102



Glossary of Asset Management Terms

Annual Lifecycle Costs: Annual lifecycle costs include the cost to acquire or construct a Tangible Capital Asset,
plus all operating and maintenance costs incurred over the life of the asset.

Grey Infrastructure: Built infrastructure that relates to stormwater, drainage, or flood mitigation.

Pavement Surface Evaluation and Rating Asphalt PASER Manual: Since surface condition is the most vital
element in any pavement management system, local governments use the simplified rating system presented in
this Asphalt PASER Manual to evaluate their roads. The PASER ratings combined with other inventory data
(width, length, shoulder, pavement type, etc.) from the roads inventory are very helpful in budgeting for future
road replacement.

Probability of Failure (PoF): PoF ratings calculate estimated remaining lives by using a combination of condition
values, age values, and expected lifespan values. PoF ratings are a measure of overall condition.

Request for Proposals (RFP): A formal procurement document that outlines an organization’s intent to purchase
a good or service. The buyer issues the RFP to provide background information to potential vendors and invites
them to submit a proposal to meet the requirements.

Sustainable Annual Funding: The annual dollar amounts that should be set aside on a yearly basis in order to
have enough funds to replace assets/infrastructure at the end of their useful lives.

Tangible Capital Asset (TCA): Tangible capital assets are non-financial assets having physical substance that:

l. are held for use in the production or supply of goods and services, for rental to others, for
administrative purposes or for the development, construction, maintenance, or repair of other tangible
capital assets,

Il. have useful economic lives extending beyond an accounting period,

. are to be used on a continuing basis, and
V. are not for sale in the ordinary course of operations.

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 103



Inputs into Asset Management Plan

The following inputs have been used to complete the Village’s Asset Management Plan:

Table 1: Asset Management Plan Inputs

Water System Studies &
Reports & List of Meters

Insurance Listing &
Valuations

Infrastructure Reports

2022 Tangible Capital
Asset Listings

BC Assessment
Information

Financial Consultant
Input

Storm Drainage
Study

Fleet & Equipment
Listings

Existing GIS Data

Public Works Asset
Listings

OCP
Environmentally
Sensitive Areas

LandInfo
Technologies Onsite
Field Work,
Assessments &
Experience

Water System &
Storm As-Built
Drawings

Roads Assessment
Study

Road Ends Reports &
Inventory

Sea to Sky Hardware &
Software
Replacements

Watercourse Maps

Public Works Staff
Input & Verification

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 104



Overview of Assets/Infrastructure
Inventory Valuation

The total estimated replacement cost of the Village’s capital assets/infrastructure is approximately $21.5 million.
In comparison, the total historical cost of the Village’s assets at the end of 2022 was approximately $14.5 million
and the net book value or depreciated cost was $10.5 million. The breakdown in the Village’s
asset/infrastructure inventory follows including quantities, replacement values, average life spans, average
remaining years, and percentages of useful life consumed.

Table 2: Asset/Infrastructure Inventory

Asset Groups (Systems) Quantity Replacement Average Average % of Useful
Value (2023 Lifespan Remaining Life
CAD) Years Consumed
Land & Natural Assets N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Buildings, Structures and 5 $1.399,500 a4 2 44%
Components
Equipment N/A $155,900 18 14 23%
Fleet 4 Units $500,000 12 11 8%
Information Systems N/A $94,000 5 3 40%

Multi-Use Path, Trail & Road

Shoulder Network 1.1 km $136,767 26 15 43%
Stormwater Collection 9.1 km $4,029,252 72 40 44%
Transportation 8.8 km $4,521,164 23 13 44%
Waste & Recycle Depot N/A $185,000 15 11 27%
Water Treatment and 175km  $10,502,029 66 44 34%
Distribution

Grand Total $21,523,612

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 105



Sustainable Annual Funding

The total sustainable annual funding (in 2023 dollars) for all of the Village’s assets is approximately $533,000
(see Table 3 next page) of which $341,000 is for General Fund assets, $10,000 for WARD Fund assets and
$182,000 for Water Fund assets. These are the amounts that need to be transferred to capital reserves annually
to replace the assets/infrastructure at the end of their respective useful lives.

Table 3: Sustainable Annual Funding

Annual

Asset Groups (Systems) Reserve %

Land and Natural Assets N/A N/A
Buildings, Structures and Components $30,454 5.3%
Equipment $7,720 1.3%
Fleet $41,667 7.3%
Information Systems $18,800 3.2%
Multi-Use Path, Trail & Road Shoulder Network $5,230 0.9%
Stormwater Collection $57,576 10%
Transportation $208,887 36.2%
Subtotal General Fund Assets $370,334 64.0%
Waste & Recycle Depot $16,083 2.8%
Water Treatment and Distribution $189,320 32.8%
Grand Total $575,737 100.0%

Probability of Failure (PoF) of Assets

Probability of Failure (PoF) ratings are a common tool used in asset management planning to assess
the likelihood of future failures and estimating the remaining useful life of assets. PoF ratings were assigned based
on the asset's condition or age.

e Condition: Where a visual inspection was possible - e.g., roads, buildings, fleet, equipment, the current
condition of the assets were assessed visually. Assets in good condition are less likely to fail in the near
future, while those with signs of deterioration or issues will have a higher PoF rating.

e Age: Where a visual condition assessment was not possible (example underground assets), the PoF of the
assets were determined by taking into account the age and design life of the assets. Newer assets often
have a lower PoF rating since they are expected to have a longer remaining useful life. Conversely, older
assets may be more likely to fail and, therefore, have a higher PoF rating.

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 106



Using condition and age, a PoF value with an associated estimated lifespan were calculated for each asset in
Village’s asset inventory, as set out in the summary table below:

PoF Ratings PoF Description Estimated Remaining Life
Rare More than 30 years

Unlikely Between 15 and 30 years

Likely Between 0 and 5 years

Almost Certain  Less than 0 years

2
3 Possible Between 5 and 15 years
4

By categorizing assets into PoF ratings, the Village is able to prioritize their maintenance and replacement efforts.
It's important to regularly assess and update PoF ratings to adapt to changing conditions and extend the life of
assets while minimizing downtime and risk.

The graph below highlights the PoF ratings for all the Village’s asset groupings. The Buildings, Structures &
Components, the Multi-Use Path, Trail & Road Should Network, the Stormwater Collection and the
transportation asset groupings have some Almost Certain PoF ratings.

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 |Page 107



100%

PROBABLILITY OF FAILURE - ALL ASSETS

90%

80%

70%

60%

50%

40%

% BY COST

30%

20%

Probability of Failure

e
St x> S Y Y o N
Qe *s"g’ \y.‘ose o * \\ec"\o (‘9‘\ e® 3 °
o o® N @ «° S o
x° e ¢ et o™ e NS
«® W o w2 <8 Ay N
\0‘ 3(\ s‘\ ‘((\ xS \4
A\ (\6 'bé X0 2 ‘(\e
% Q0 N &
.\9 *\'(e
<@ st
& W
9@
o
W Almost Certain [OlLikely [OPossible [MD@Rare M Unlikely

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 108




The estimated asset replacement costs for all of the Village’s asset groupings, broken down into 5-year segments or ranges, over a 50-year period (to
2073), are shown in the table below. The information is also shown in a graph format below to further illustrate when major replacement dollars for
assets will come due. The <2024 Year category indicates that certain assets are now at the end of their design lives.

Table 4: Long Term Renewal Cost Projections

Mult-Use
Buildings, Path, Trail Water
Structures & Road Waste & Treatment
E | Info. Shoulder  Stormwater Recycle &

Components Equip. Fleet Systems Network Collection Transport. Depot Distribution Grand Total
<2024 $144,000 $5,000 $51,789 $286,679 $487,468
2024-2028 $85,000 $1,000 $94,000 $470 $459,185 $15,000 $654,654
2029-2033 $5,000 $55,900 $140,000 $94,000 $56,225 $1,109,139  $175,000 $303,500 $1,938,764
2034-2038 $85,000 $74,500 $360,000 $94,000 $30,072 $50,000 $1,736,885 $15,000 $48,250  $2,493,706
2039-2043 $25,000 $5,500 $94,000 $8,000 $1,189,956 $30,000 $151,422  $1,503,878
2044-2048 $458,000 $21,000 $500,000 $94,000 $4,470 $473,185  $145,000 $1,695,654
2049-2053 $2,500 $52,400 $94,000 $59,225 $65,625 $594,139 $55,000 $483,500 $1,406,389
2054-2058 $85,000 $78,000 $140,000 $94,000 $30,072  $1,936,736 $1,361,885  $135,000 $32,950 53,893,642
2059-2063 $405,000 $5,500 $360,000 $94,000 $20,000 $1,177,956 $30,000 S$2,708,500  $4,800,956
2064-2068 $100,000 $37,500 $140,000 $94,000 $470 $878,125 $1,084,185 $135,000 $1,208,902  $3,678,182
2069-2073 $94,000 $15,900 $360,000 $94,000 $41,225  $1,046,978 $609,139 $55,000 $340,375  $2,656,616
Total $'s $1,488,500 $347,200 $2,000,000 $940,000 $255,228  $4,029,252 $10,082,329 $790,000 $5,277,399 $25,209,908
Total %'s 5.9% 1.4% 7.9% 3.7% 1.0% 16.0% 40.0% 3.1% 20.9% 100.0%

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 |Page 109



LONG-TERM RENEWAL COST PROJECTIONS - ALL ASSETS

$5,000,000
$4,500,000
$4,000,000
- $3,500,000
(%]
S
et $3,000,000
<
E $2,500,000 —
Z
w
g $2,000,000
2 ]
< $1,500,000 !
2
= $1,000,000
w
$500,000
E
%0 —
<2024 2024-2028 2029-2033 2034-2038 2039-2043 2044-2048 2049-2053 2054-2058 2059-2063 2064-2068 2069-2073
B Water Treatment and Distribution $303,500 $48,250 $151,422 $483,500 $32,950  $2,708,500 $1,208,902 $340,375
O Waste & Recycle Depot $15,000 $175,000 $15,000 $30,000 $145,000 $55,000 $135,000 $30,000 $135,000 $55,000
OTransportation $286,679 $459,185  $1,109,139 $1,736,885 $1,189,956 $473,185 $594,139  $1,361,885 $1,177,956 $1,084,185 $609,139
@ Stormwater Collection $51,789 $50,000 $65,625  $1,936,736 $878,125  $1,046,978
Bl Multi-Use Path, Trail & Road Shoulder Network $5,000 $470 $56,225 $30,072 $8,000 $4,470 $59,225 $30,072 $20,000 $470 $41,225
OInformation Systems $94,000 $94,000 $94,000 $94,000 $94,000 $94,000 $94,000 $94,000 $94,000 $94,000
E Fleet $140,000 $360,000 $500,000 $140,000 $360,000 $140,000 $360,000
@ Equipment $1,000 $55,900 $74,500 $5,500 $21,000 $52,400 $78,000 $5,500 $37,500 $15,900
M@ Buildings, Structures and Components $144,000 $85,000 $5,000 $85,000 $25,000 $458,000 $2,500 $85,000 $405,000 $100,000 $94,000

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 |Page 110



Detailed Inventory of Assets/Infrastructure

Land & Natural Assets

There is currently no universally accepted definition of a Natural Assets. Generally speaking, Natural Assets can
include parks, environmentally sensitive areas, green spaces, natural drainage areas, water courses, registered
springs, tree canopies, and other such assets. The Village owns very little Land & Natural Assets with its
boundaries; therefore the Land & Natural Assets inventory has been categorized as follows:

Land & Natural Assets within Village of Belcarra Boundaries (Owned and Controlled by Village)
Land & Natural Assets within Village of Belcarra Boundaries (On Private Property and in
part Regulated by Village)
e Land & Natural Assets within Village of Belcarra Boundaries (on Federal, Provincial or Metro Vancouver

land)

Maps of the above Land & Natural Assets classifications can be viewed by clicking on the below link.

Maps of Land & Natural Assets

It is recognized that Land & Natural Assets provide a valuable service to the community, one that citizens enjoy
and depend on, and they can often offset the cost of constructing and maintaining grey infrastructure. For
example, creeks and rivers provide valuable drainage services, while foreshore and trees provide recreational
value. Values have not been assigned to the Village’s land assets as it has been assumed that the land assets are
not being held for resale.

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 |Page 111


https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdrive.google.com%2Ffile%2Fd%2F135c1q56xdJUL70-dBBkF7KhTETzNN5uF%2Fview%3Fusp%3Dsharing&data=05%7C01%7Ckbjorgaard%40belcarra.ca%7C41b78cc796154f1c307c08dbdb1b2ff7%7C3cd5afd687754485abc1dfcd802a6784%7C0%7C0%7C638344682038068109%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=yXW2yBBcHw5hESsVs%2BC5ljtlcpmLRWNnX2A10kVyLAk%3D&reserved=0

Land & Natural Assets Inventory

Table 5: Land & Natural Assets Inventory

Land & Natural Assets Quantity & Description of Land Explanation
& Natural Assets

Land & Natural Assets within Village of 2 Aquifers Consists of both natural

Belcarra Boundaries & owned and 36,000 sg. m. of forested land undeveloped land and developed

controlled by the Village 54,000 sg. m. structured engineered land used for trail
engineered land network and foreshore areas.

Assets captured mainly on
Belcarra’s Road ends.

Land & Natural Assets within Village of 6 Aquifers Natural assets captured on private
Belcarra Boundaries on Private 330 m. of waterways land.
Property and in part Regulated by
Village
Land & Natural Assets owned by 13 Aquifers Large porthn‘ of land within
, . , 4,345,000 sqg. m. of forested Belcarra municipal area but not

Federal GoVv’t., Provincial Gov’t. or N

s , land owned, maintained, or regulated
Metro Vancouver and within Belcarra’s .

3,941 m. of waterways by the village.

municipal boundaries 40,800 sqi. m. wetlands

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 |Page 112



Buildings, Structures & Components

The Village utilizes and maintains a small portfolio of Buildings & Structures for its municipal operations. Various
Components, such as HVAC systems, electrical & furnishing, are contained within the Buildings & Structures. The
listed septic system services Municipal Hall and Recreational Structure is the Tennis Court site. The full list below
includes Buildings, Structures & Components owned and maintained by the Village of Belcarra. Buildings,
Structures & Components as a group are approximately 44% through their useful lives on average.

Buildings, Structures & Components Inventory
Table 6: Building, Structures & Components Inventory

Replacement Average % Useful

Value (2023  Average Remaining Area Life
Asset Group/Types CAD) Lifespan Years (sgqm)  Consumed

Equipment $202,500 34 15 56%

Electrical

Communications

*Municipal Hall computer room $10,000 20 5 75%

Electrical Service and

Distribution

*Municipal Hall wiring $15,000 75 19 75%

Lighting $10,000 25 19 24%

Other

*Appliances, hot water tank, general

office contents $7,500 30 23 25%
Furnishing

Other

*Municipal Hall furniture $80,000 20 15 25%
HVAC

Heating System $5,000 35 9 74%
Plumbing

Sanitary Waste / Septic $75,000 40 2 95%

Structures $1,197,000 50 31 1,109 38%

Building

Component $575,000 53 46 57 14%

fll;]l:eillcliing shell without components $522,000 50 25 519 50%

Recreational Structure
*Tennis court

Fixed Equipment
*Tennis Court $100,000 40 -5 533 100%

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 |Page 113



PoF Buildings, Structures & Components

PROBABILITY OF FAILURE - BUILDINGS, STRUCTURES & COMPONENTS

100%

90%

80%

70%
60%
'_
[%5]
o
(@)
> 50%
X
40%
30%
20%
10%
i ~00\° e“" N {\0“ A e“" ‘eﬁ‘ . {\“% "\\e‘ e \\e\\
i R0 e ™ e SV ue® O WV >
con® . ep«\‘)D gined wea s
ex\C
plect®

Buildings, Structures and Components

Probability of Failure mRare @Unlikely [DOPossible DOLlikely W Almost Certain

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 |Page 114



Noted in the graph above with a high probability of failure are Fixed Equipment recreational structure consisting
of the tennis court. Also noted in poor condition is the Public Works buildings covered parking/storage area, the
structure has been compromised due to movement of the foundation. The municipal hall was noted in overall

fair condition, although lack of wheelchair accessibility and safety concern with the computer room were noted.

Buildings, Structures & Components Spending Forecast

Forecasted Spending Buildings, Structures & Components to 2073 $1.49 Million
Sustainable Annual Funding $30,454

LONG-TERM RENEWAL COST PROJECTIONS - BUILDINGS,
STRUCTURES & COMPONENTS

$500,000

$450,000

$400,000
$350,000
$300,000
$250,000
$200,000
$150,000
$100,000

%@Hﬂﬁﬂm B

<2024 2024- 2029- 2034- 2039- 2044- 2049- 2054- 2059- 2064- 2069-
2028 2033 2038 2043 2048 2053 2058 2063 2068 2073

O Buildings, Structures and

Components $144,000 $85,000 $5,000 $85,000 $25,000 $458,000 $2,500 $85,000 $405,000 $100,000 $94,000

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 115



Equipment

The Village’s Equipment consists of both large and small equipment, most of which is in Public Works, as well as
attachments for the Village’s vehicles. Examples of equipment captured are as follows: weed eaters, blowers, air
compressor, generator, mics tools, pavement crack sealer, and ground compactor. Equipment as a group is
approximately 24% through its useful life on average. Some of this Equipment is mobile and some is immobile.

Equipment Inventory

Table 7: Equipment Inventory

Replacement Average
Value (2023 Average Remaining % Useful Life
Asset Group/Types CAD) Lifespan Years Consumed
Equipment $155,900 19 14 24%
Tools And Machinery
Heavy
*Fuel storage $40,000 25 6 76%
Light
*Tools, welder, air compressor
etc.. $37,000 18 16 11%
Medium
*Chipper, Snowplow, and
salting attachments 578,900 18 13 27%

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 |Page 116



PoF Equipment

PROBABILITY OF FAILURE - EQUIPMENT

100%
90%
80%
70%
60%

@ 509

o 0

S 40%

§ 30%
20%
10%

0%

Heavy Light Medium

Equipment
Probability of Failure =~ ®Rare DOUnlikely DOPossible DOlikely m Almost Certain

Overall, most of the equipment captured is in fair or good condition and well maintained by staff, due to the
short lifespan of most equipment captured, the graph above is showing probability of failure to be possible or
between 5 to 15 years life remaining. Noted in the graph above in poor condition is the Public Works fuel
storage unit, no spill guard in place and the unit is not up to modern safety standards.

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 117



Equipment Spending Forecast

Forecasted Spending Equipment to 2073 $347,200
Sustainable Annual Funding $7,720

LONG-TERM RENEWAL COST PROJECTIONS - EQUIPMENT

$90,000
$80,000
$70,000
$60,000
$50,000
$40,000
$30,000
$20,000

$10,000 ’_‘
P — [ [

2024- 2029- 2034- 2039- 2044- 2049- 2054- 2059- 2064- 2069-
2028 2033 2038 2043 2048 2053 2058 2063 2068 2073

OEquipment $1,000 $55,900 $74,500 $5,500 $21,000 $52,400 $78,000 $5,500 $37,500 $15,900

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 118



Fleet Vehicles

The Village maintains a vehicle fleet of 4 units which are used by the Public Works Department. The current
undersized New Holland TN70DA tractor is in very poor condition; it was budgeted and due for replacement in
2023. Due to mechanical issues with the previous utility truck and its ultimate replacement, this did not occur
this year. This report assumes the tractor to be replaced as budgeted for 2024. The remaining 3 vehicles have all
been replaced in the last 5 years and are in good condition. The replacement value of the fleet is estimated at
$500,000. On average the fleet Vehicles as a group are approximately 6% through their useful lives, assuming

the tractor to be replaced.

Fleet Vehicles Inventory
Table 8: Fleet Vehicles Inventory

Replacement Average
Value (2023 Average Remaining % Useful Life
Asset Group/Types CAD) Lifespan Years Consumed
Fleet $500,000 12 11 6%
Construction $195,000 12 12 0%
Tractor
*New Holland TN70DA With
Flail Mower (replacement
assumed) $195,000 12 12 0%
Heavy-Duty $140,000 12 9 25%
Garbage Truck
*Ford F 550 Dump Truck $140,000 12 9 25%
Light-Duty $35,000 12 12 0%
Other
*Kubota 1100 Diesel $35,000 12 12 0%
Medium-Duty $130,000 12 12 0%
Utility Truck
*Chevy Silverado 3500 truck $130,000 12 12 0%

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 |Page 119



PoF Fleet Vehicles
PROBABILITY OF FAILURE - FLEET

100%
80%
60%
2
O 40%
>
)
X 20%
0%
Garbage Truck Other Tractor Utility Truck
- . ., ,Fleet . . .
Probability of Failure ® Rare Unlikely O Possible Likely m Almost Certain

With the tractor replacement assumed the overall condition of Belcarra’s fleet is very good. The graph above
shows the probability of failure to be possible or 5 to 15 years. This is due to the short, assumed lifespan
averaging 12 years.

Fleet Vehicles Spending Forecast

Forecasted Spending Fleet Vehicles to 2073 $2,000,000
Sustainable Annual Funding $41,667

LONG-TERM RENEWAL COST PROJECTIONS - FLEET
$600,000

$500,000
$400,000

$300,000
$200,000

$100,000
S0

2029-2033 2034-2038 2044-2048 2054-2058 2059-2063 2064-2068 2069-2073
OFleet $140,000 $360,000 $500,000 $140,000 $360,000 $140,000 $360,000

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 120



Information Systems

The Village’s Information Systems are comprised of hardware, software, and security & communication systems.
Information Systems as a group is approximately 35% through its useful life on average.

Information Systems Inventory

Table 9: Information Systems Inventory

Replacement Average
Value (2023 Average Remaining % Useful Life
Asset Group/Types CAD) Lifespan Years Consumed
Information Systems $94,000
Equipment $94,000 5 3 35%
Electrical $17,000 5 3 40%
Communications
*Radios, phones, misc. 510,000 5 3 40%
Security
*Municipal Hall system $7,000 5 3 40%
Office $77,000 5 4 30%
Hardware $72,000 5 3 40%
Software $5,000 5 4 20%

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 |Page 121



PoF Information Systems

PROBABILITY OF FAILURE - INFORMATION SYSTEMS

100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

0%

% BY COST

Communications Hardware Security Software

Information Systems
Probability of Failure M Rare Unlikely Possible OlLikely m Almost Certain

Due to the short, assumed lifespan the above graph shows average probability of failure to be likely or between
0 - 5 years. This is normal due to the short turnover of most information systems captured. Overall due to
recent upgrades the municipal hall hardware and software is in good condition.

Information Systems Spending Forecast

Forecasted Spending Information Systems to 2073 $940,000
Sustainable Annual Funding $18,800

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 122



LONG-TERM RENEWAL COST PROJECTIONS - INFORMATION SYSTEMS

$100,000

$90,000
$80,000
$70,000
$60,000
$50,000
$40,000
$30,000
$20,000
$10,000
$

2024- 2029- 2034- 2039- 2044- 2049- 2054- 2059- 2064- 2069-
2028 2033 2038 2043 2048 2053 2058 2063 2068 2073

OInformation Systems $94,000 $94,000 $94,000 $94,000 $94,000 $94,000 $94,000 $94,000 $94,000 $94,000

o

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 |Page 123



Multi-Use Path, Trail & Road Shoulder (MTRS) Network

The Village’s MTRN consists of various paths, trails and road shoulders which serve as the Village’s active
transportation network for pedestrians, bicycles (where appropriate), etc. The MTRS Network as a group is
approximately 40% through its useful life on average. The Village has applied for a grant under the BC Active
Transportation Program to create a plan for its MTRN.

A map of the MTRS Network can be viewed by clicking on the below link.
MTRS Network

MTRS Network Inventory
Table 10: MTRN Inventory

Replacement Average
Value (2023 Average Remaining Lengt % Useful Life
Asset Group/Types CAD) Lifespan Years h (m) Consumed
Multi-Use Path, Trail & Road
Shoulder Network $131,767
Transportation Network
Barrier Or Fence $80,000 34 22 277 37%
Fence $47,000 30 23 230 24%
Other
*Stairways $33,000 40 20 47 50%
Pedestrian Walkway $51,767 20 11 779 44%
Boardwalk $5,000 20 0 5 100%
Trail $51,767 20 11 779 44%

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 |Page 124


https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdrive.google.com%2Ffile%2Fd%2F1tjV2vsbtFYTwlkLZiCVq1v7SqWbkGq2z%2Fview%3Fusp%3Dsharing&data=05%7C01%7Ckbjorgaard%40belcarra.ca%7C41b78cc796154f1c307c08dbdb1b2ff7%7C3cd5afd687754485abc1dfcd802a6784%7C0%7C0%7C638344682038068109%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Y1FRjQpDLRdIjzd5XStBufOaBm6qi53ByWmhcTVoCQY%3D&reserved=0

PoF Condition of MTRS Network

PROBABILITY OF FAILURE - MULTI-USE PATH, TRAIL, & ROAD SHOULDER NETWORK

100%

80%

60%

% BY COST
S
o
X

20%
0%
Boardwalk Fence Other Trail
Multi-Use Path, Trail & Road Shoulder Network
Probability of Failure B Rare  @Unlikely  OPossible Likely B Almost Certain

Showing as poor condition as a boardwalk and budgeted to be replaced in 2024 is the small bridge on the Salish
trail. Also noted in poor condition is the cement stairs located on the foreshore trail at approximately 4152
Marine Ave.

MTRS Network Spending Forecast

Forecasted Spending MTRS Network to 2073 $255,228
Sustainable Annual Funding S5,230

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 |Page 125



LONG-TERM RENEWAL COST PROJECTIONS - MULTI-USE PATH, TRAIL &
ROAD SHOULDER NETWORK

$70,000

$60,000 —

$50,000

$40,000

$30,000 T —

$20,000 —

$10,000

Sm_HEMm _

<2024 2024- 2029- 2034- 2039- 2044- 2049- 2054- 2059- 2064- 2069-
2028 2033 2038 2043 2048 2053 2058 2063 2068 2073

O Multi-Use Path, Trail & Road Shoulder

Network $5,000 $470 $56,225$30,072 $8,000 $4,470 $59,225530,072$20,000 $470 $41,225

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 126



Stormwater Collection

The Village of Belcarra’s Stormwater Collection or drainage area is situated on steep terrains, typical of areas
located on the side of a hill/mountain. Runoff originates in the Woodhaven, Ray and Macbee watersheds and
area drainage is provided by way of surface drainage, roadside ditches (4.2 kms), culverts (2.6 kms), local creeks,
and a limited number of stormwater sewers in the developed areas which includes 58 catch basins and 24
manholes. The stormwater runoffs in the area can be broken down into the following sources/types: developed
rural residential lots (280 of them), the Village Hall, road surfaces, and the forested areas in the uplands (part of
the Belcarra Regional Park) that contribute runoffs to the area. Runoffs from the roads and developed lots are
captured and conveyed by the network of ditches and culverts, and stormwater pipes (2.2 kms) to the numerous
outfalls into either Bedwell Bay or Belcarra Bay. Some parts of the study area (east) discharges to Sasamat Creek,
which also conveys water from Sasamat Lake to Bedwell Bay. Runoffs originating from the uplands are
intercepted by the Village’s road network and local creeks before being conveyed by the open channel system in
the developed areas to the outfalls. Runoffs from the uplands south of the developed area (Woodhaven) are
intercepted by Bedwell Bay Road and Main Avenue, and Rae Creek. Runoffs from the uplands east of the
Coombe area are intercepted mainly by Belcarra Bay Road and Dutchman Creek. Stormwater Collection as a
group is approximately 44% through its useful life on average. A map of the Stormwater system can be viewed
by clicking on the below link.

Stormwater System

Stormwater Collection Inventory

Table 11: Stormwater Collection Inventory
Replacement Average % Useful
Value (2023 Average Remaining Length Life

Asset Group/Types CAD) Lifespan Years (m) Consumed

Stormwater Collection

Catch Basin
Standard $543,750 60 43 28%
Channel
Drainage Ditch $1,056,100 100 50 4,224 50%
Manhole Cover
Standard $150,000 60 45 25%
Manhole Trunk
Standard $300,000 60 40 33%
Pipe
Culvert $983,411 65 33 2,622 50%
Transmission Gravity Main $995,991 65 32 2,277 51%

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 |Page 127


https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdrive.google.com%2Ffile%2Fd%2F16KgFc0eroEAAqTBWojbApHsGc-_-hFtU%2Fview%3Fusp%3Dsharing&data=05%7C01%7Ckbjorgaard%40belcarra.ca%7C41b78cc796154f1c307c08dbdb1b2ff7%7C3cd5afd687754485abc1dfcd802a6784%7C0%7C0%7C638344682038068109%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=aqQ2O%2BWvUa5NBgu1U4vcD3VAjDOGoPZuX%2BM1KMR1ALA%3D&reserved=0

PoF Stormwater Collection

PROBABILITY OF FAILURE - STORMWATER COLLECTION

Culvert Ditch Standard Transmission Gravity
Main

100%

90%

80%

70%

60%

50%

40%

% BY COST

30%

20%

10%

0%

Stormwater Collection

Probability of Failure ERare OUnlikely [OPossible Likely @ Almost Certain

The stormwater network was found to be in overall good condition. A few issues shown in red having a
probability of failure almost certain are a drainage ditch and culvert at 4563 Belcarra Bay Rd. Also noted as a
current issue is a main pipe at 4695 Belcarra Bay Rd and a culvert running under Turtlehead Rd were found to be
in poor condition.

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 |Page 128



Stormwater Collection Spending Forecast
Forecasted Spending Stormwater Collection to 2073 S4 Million

Sustainable Annual Funding $57,576

LONG-TERM RENEWAL COST PROJECTIONS - STORMWATER
COLLECTION

$2,000,000

$1,800,000
$1,600,000
$1,400,000

$1,200,000

$1,000,000

$800,000
$600,000
$400,000

$200,000

So [ ] [ ]
<2024 2034-2038 2049-2053 2054-2058 2064-2068 2069-2073

O Stormwater Collection  $51,789 $50,000 $65,625 $1,936,736 $878,125 $1,046,978

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 129



Transportation Infrastructure

The Village maintains a road network which includes approximately 8.8 km of asphalt. Bedwell Bay Rd. is termed
the Major Road Network (MRN) as its operating and maintenance costs are funded via an annual contribution
from TransLink. The MRN is 2.4 km in length which is approximately 27% of Belcarra’s total road surface. The
Transportation Infrastructure as a group is approximately 42% through its useful life on average.

A map of Transportation network, including the condition of roads, can be viewed by clicking on the below link.

Transportation Network

Transportation Infrastructure Inventory

Table 12: Transportation Infrastructure Inventory

Replacement Average
Value (2023 Average Remaining Lengt % Useful Life
Asset Types CAD) Lifespan Years h (m) Consumed
Structures $625,000 30 15 8 50%
Bridge $625,000 30 15 8 50%
Transportation Network $3,472,261 22 13 8,784 42%
Barrier Or Fence $165,000 44 24 197 46%
Guard Rail $24,000 40 20 36 50%
Jersey Barrier $41,000 50 30 98 41%
Other
*Embankments (Kelly and Main) $500,000 25 6 63 76%
Road Overlay $3,307,261 20 12 8,588 41%
Lane
*Gravel roadway to Tatlow
station 525,295 20 0 72 100%
Local Roadway $3,281,966 20 12 8,515 41%

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 130


https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdrive.google.com%2Ffile%2Fd%2F1U_ShloG6XxjzG1_QnfWksg6nvvtZ7hzP%2Fview%3Fusp%3Dsharing&data=05%7C01%7Ckbjorgaard%40belcarra.ca%7C41b78cc796154f1c307c08dbdb1b2ff7%7C3cd5afd687754485abc1dfcd802a6784%7C0%7C0%7C638344682038068109%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=PVd7WXE3hEkEme3qgkWINF%2BGyDQkj7puRynCUVQJT6c%3D&reserved=0

PoF Transportation Infrastructure
PROBABILITY OF FAILURE - TRANSPORTATION

100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

0%

% BY COST

Composite Guard Rail Jersey Barrier Lane Local Other

Transportation
Probability of Failure M Rare O Unlikely O Possible O Likely B Almost Certain

Showing in red and having a probability of failure of almost certain classified as a local roadway is the public
works paved area, erosion has caused holes to form underneath the asphalt. Also shown in red classified as a
local roadway are sections of Marine Ave, Young Rd, and Belcarra Bay Rd before Whiskey Cove Lane. Classified
as a Lane and showing in very poor condition is the access road to the Tatlow pump house.

Transportation Infrastructure Spending Forecast

Forecasted Spending Transportation Infrastructure to 2073 $10.1 Million
Sustainable Annual Funding $208,887

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 |Page 131



$2,000,000
$1,800,000
$1,600,000
$1,400,000
$1,200,000
$1,000,000
$800,000
$600,000
$400,000
$200,000

$

o

LONG-TERM RENEWAL COST PROJECTIONS - TRANSPORTATION

<2024  2024-2028 2029-2033 2034-2038 2039-2043 2044-2048 2049-2053 2054-2058 2059-2063 2064-2068 2069-2073

OTransportation $286,679  $459,185 $1,109,139 $1,736,885 $1,189,956 $473,185 $594,139 $1,361,885 $1,177,956 $1,084,185 $609,139

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 |Page 132



Waste & Recycle Depot (WARD) Infrastructure

The Village operates a separate utility for the drop-off, sorting and hauling of waste, organics and recyclables. A
contractor picks up these items from the Village’s transfer facility and delivers the items to the applicable center
for further processing or disposal. The WARD Infrastructure as a group is approximately 27% through its useful
life on average.

WARD Inventory

Table 13: WARD Inventory

Replacement Average
Value (2023 Average Remaining Lengt % Useful Life
Asset Group/Types CAD) Lifespan Years h (m) Consumed
Equipment
Electrical $30,000 8 6 20%
Communications
*Security camera system 515,000 5 4 20%
Security
*Electric gate and components 515,000 10 8 20%
Tools And Machinery
Medium
*Bins A, B, C $145,000 15 9 40%

Transportation Network
Barrier Or Fence
Fence $10,000 30 23 101 23%

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 |Page 133



PoF WARD

PROBABILITY OF FAILURE - WASTE & RECYCLE DEPOT

% BY COST
3
o
X

Communications Fence Medium Security

- . Waste & Recycle Depot
Probability of Failure mRare [@DUnlikely [OPossible OLikely m Almost Certain

Overall, the Waste and Recycling depot was found to be in good condition. No issues were currently noted, due
to overall short lifespans of equipment some of the WARD has a probability of failure of possible or 5 to 15 years
life remaining. Also note communication equipment associated with the WARD again is in good condition but
having a short lifespan is shown with a probability of failure of likely.

WARD Spending Forecast

Forecasted Spending WARD to 2073 $790,000
Sustainable Annual Funding $16,083

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 134



LONG-TERM RENEWAL COST PROJECTIONS - WASTE & RECYCLE DEPOT

$200,000
$180,000
$160,000
$140,000

$120,000
$100,000
$80,000
$60,000
$40,000
$20,000 . .
o M ] m

2024- 2029- 2034- 2039- 2044- 2049- 2054- 2059- 2064- 2069-
2028 2033 2038 2043 2048 2053 2058 2063 2068 2073

O Waste & Recycle Depot $15,000 $175,000 $15,000 $30,000 $145,000 $55,000 $135,000 $30,000 $135,000 $55,000

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 |Page 135



Water Distribution & Treatment

The District of North Vancouver (DNV) has been the primary supplier of potable water for the Village since
2011. Water is supplied from the DNV via two 200 mm High Density Polyethylene (HDPE) marine pipelines
which are currently located at the bottom of the waterway between the Deep Cove area and Belcarra Pier.
These watermains are approximately 1,400 m in length and feed potable water from the DNV at Strathcona
Road to the Village at the intersection of Midden Road and Belcarra Bay Road. The water is supplied at a
maximum instantaneous flow and is then transported to the Tatlow Road Reservoir through a Ductile Iron
(DI) watermain. Potable water is then supplied to the two pressure zones within the Village from the Tatlow
Road Reservoir. The system consists of approximately 10.5km of distribution, 5.2km of transmission and
1.8km of service pipes. Three Buildings were captured as part of the water system the Strathcona station
vault, Midden water receiving and Tatlow pump house. 39 fire hydrants, 179 distribution side valves, 2
reservoirs, and various controls, sensor and communication equipment and 261 residential water boxes with
meters and shut off valves were captured.

The Village also has the Dutchman Reservoir that is meant to be used as a supplemental water source for
firefighting purposes. The Water Infrastructure as a group is approximately 25% through its useful life on
average.

A map of the Water system can be viewed by clicking on the below link.

Water System
Water Distribution & Treatment Inventory
Table 14: Water Distribution & Treatment Inventory

Asset Group/Types Replacement Average Average Length % Useful
Value (2023 Lifespan Remaining (m) Life

CAD) Years Consumed

Equipment
Tools And Machinery
Light *Fuel storage $4,000 50 38 24%
Medium *Generator $25,000 20 15 75%
Structures
Building $1,160,000 50 38 24%
Composite $1,050,000 50 38 24%
Substructure $110,000 50 38 24%
Water Supply
Box
Other *Box housing meters and valves $527,000 50 39 22%
Controls
Control Box $50,000 10 8 20%
Sensor $6,250 10 8 20%

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 136


https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdrive.google.com%2Ffile%2Fd%2F1GOm4kSg7hWzhTAayAcOOuhPoYCJxExif%2Fview%3Fusp%3Dsharing&data=05%7C01%7Ckbjorgaard%40belcarra.ca%7C41b78cc796154f1c307c08dbdb1b2ff7%7C3cd5afd687754485abc1dfcd802a6784%7C0%7C0%7C638344682038068109%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=K6u%2BuF2cf6DeZUdBx7ul5fbuTBE6%2Ble1QfQWH5ob%2Baw%3D&reserved=0

Water Distribution & Treatment Inventory

Table 14: Water Distribution & Treatment Inventory — cont’d

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 |Page 137

Replacement Average % Useful
Value (2023 Average Remaining Lengt Life
Asset Group/Types CAD) Lifespan Years h(m) Consumed
Water Supply

Hydrant

Dry-Barrel $243,750 75 58 23%
Meter

Bulk $105,000 20 9 55%

Commercial $1,500 20 12 40%

Residential $119,000 20 9 55%
Motor

Diesel *Backup fire pump $12,500 15 11 27%
Pipe

Distribution Force Main $3,255,689 65 49 10,418 24%

Distribution Gravity Main $4,343 65 54 12 17%

Service Connection $225,918 65 50 1,807 23%

Transmission Force Main $2,613,005 65 54 5,226 17%
Pump

Positive Displacement $18,750 15 11 27%
Reservoir

Retention $900,000 75 52 31%
Tank

Other $5,000 50 38 24%
Valve

Air Relief $24,375 30 17 43%

Blow Off $38,750 40 28 29%

Butterfly $5,000 40 29 28%

Curb Stop $975,000 50 39 22%

Hydrant Gate $46,250 40 24 40%

Isolation Valve $7,200 45 34 24%

Main Gate $100,000 40 26 36%

Other $5,000 30 19 37%

Pressure Reducing $18,750 20 9 55%

Sampling Port $13,750 40 29 27%



PoF of Water Distribution & Treatment

PROBABLILITY OF FAILURE - WATER TREATMENT & DISTRIBUTION
100% = =1 1 F 1 B - e

90%

80%

70%

60%

% BY COST

20%

10%

0%

Bulk |
Butterfly |

Commercial |
Light

Main Gate |
Other

Positive Displacement |

]
"
g2
o

Air Relief |
Blow Off |
Medium |

Sensor |

Q. [
2 S
A €
= 2
> [J]
o o

Residential |

o 9
£ 5
S

c O
T E
s s
Q3
>
I

Composite
Control Box |

(]
S
>
=
(8]
=]
S
=
w
]
=]
(7]

Isolation Valve
Sampling Port |

Pressure Reducing |

<
)
=
(S}
[}
=
c
o
(]
[}
2
<
[}
(%]

£ £
T ©
S 2
o >
o =
S
S B
c O
9 c
)
2 5
s 2
L5
o v
[a]

Water Treatment and Distribution

£
©
=
[
o
S
(=]
[ 5
c
2
n
g
£
7]
c
@©
S
-

Probability of Failure M Rare @ Unlikely OO0 Possible = Likely B Almost Certain

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 |Page 138



Being mostly constructed in the years 2000 and 2012, the water distribution system is in good condition.
No issues are currently noted as can be seen in the graph above. Continued inspections and
maintenance will be carried out by public works staff to keep the water system in good working order.

Water Distribution & Treatment Spending Forecast

Forecasted Spending Water Distribution & Treatment to 2073 $5.3 Million
Sustainable Annual Funding $189,320

LONG-TERM RENEWAL COST PROJECTIONS - WATER TREATMENT &
DISTRIBUTION

$3,000,000
$2,500,000
$2,000,000
$1,500,000
$1,000,000
$500,000

N u

2029- 2034- 2039- 2049- 2054- 2059- 2064- 2069-

2033 2038 2043 2053 2058 2063 2068 2073

O Water Treatment and Distribution $303,500 $48,250 $151,422 $483,500 $32,950 $2,708,500$1,208,902 $340,375

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 139



Asset Condition Assessment Schedule Report

This assessment schedule summary (see table below) was generated using calculated probability of
failure and expected remaining life values. Which was guided by condition and general information
provided by staff for each asset or feature. This is a proposed schedule to be used as a guide for future
capital planning. Each asset group is summarized below highlighting assets that will require assessment
over the next 6 years.

Buildings, Structures & Components:

The Public Works Parking & Storage Structure serves as a storage facility for essential equipment and
materials used by the Public Works department. It was deemed to be in very poor condition assessment
of the structure and bench cut land is recommended in the coming year. An inspection of the Municipal
Hall’s aging septic system is recommended for 2025 which will provide a more accurate condition and
life expectancy data.

Equipment:

The Public works fuel storage unit was deemed to be in poor condition and potentially situated on
unstable land. Like the Public works storage area an assessment of the bench cut land needs to be
performed along with a more accurate condition evaluation to determine potential life expectancy.
Currently the fuel unit is not up to modern safety standards as it has no spill guard in place. The
assessment is recommended by or before 2027 as the current life expectancy is assumed to have only 6
years remaining.

Multi-Use Path, Trail & Road Shoulder Network:

Replacement of a small bridge in poor condition on the Salish Rd end trail is assumed for 2024. Other
Trails noted that may require attention are the foreshore access trail at 4152 Marine Ave, the concrete
stairway structure requires decommissioning, replacement, or repair. Assessment recommended by
2027. Also noted is the fencing on the trail from the 3600 block of Main Ave down to Bedwell Bay Rd.
Potential hazards exist since it is constructed on a steep embankment, recommended to be assessed by
2029.

Storm Water Network:

Overall, Belcarra’s storm network was found to be in good or fair condition, a general collection of data
will be carried out in 2024 to update specifications and conditions of the network. Inspections will be
done in-house using scoping equipment. Four features were identified as current issues and require
assessment; a culvert into drainage ditch at 4653 Belcarra Bay Rd, in heavy rainfall flow is inadequate. A
main at 4695 Belcarra Bay Rd and a Culvert under Turtlehead Rd west of Belcarra Bay Rd is degrading.
Assessment of these features is recommended in 2024.

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 140



Transportation Network:

Along with information from the 2017 road study a visual inspection of Belcarra’s road surfaces was
carried out. Budget to be paved in 2024, is 3700 — 3900 blocks of Marine Ave. The public works area in
very poor condition is recommended for repair or repaving in 2024. Recommended for assessment in
2025: the gabion wall at the intersection of Kelly Rd and Bedwell Bay Rd. Then in 2026 the gabion wall at
Main Ave and Bedwell Bay. In 2027 cul-de-sac at 4000 Marine Ave and the Tatlow Pump Station. In 2028
at approximately 4700 block of Belcarra Bay Rd and south of Turtle head Rd. Also, in 2028 assessment is
recommended on the 3600 block of Marine Ave and the bottom of Kelly Rd. In 2029 sections on Belcarra
Bay Rd north of Turtlehead Rd and the end of Coombe Lane. In 2030 lower traffic roadways such as the
4000 block of Marine Ave, Young Rd and Robson Rd are recommended for assessment. Also noted
continued inspection of the Senkler bridge is recommended for approximately 2029 to ensure longevity
of this high value asset.

Water Distribution Network:

Overall, the water network is in good condition. Noted for upcoming assessment and part of standard 5
years inspections in 2024 are assessment of the dual water supply pipes coming from the District of
North Vancouver and their adjoining valving and controls. A distribution pipe of unknown material and
condition was identified on the gravity feed side below Main Ave and Tatlow reservoir, assessment is
recommended by 2028.

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 141



Table 15: Proposed asset condition assessment schedule

Asset group

Buildings, Structures
& Components

Buildings, Structures
& Components

Buildings, Structures
& Components

Equipment

Fleet

Asset description

Public works parking & storage
structure

Municipal Hall septic system

Municipal Hall computer room
Fuel storage unit at public works

New Holland Tractor

Small bridge on Salish Rd trail

Stairway to foreshore at 4152 Marine
Ave

Fence on trail between 3600 block
Main Ave down to Bedwell Bay Rd

Catch basins at 3600 block of Kelly Rd

General data collection and
inspection of storm network

Gravity Main approximately 4695
Belcarra Bay Rd

Inspection procedures

Assessment of bench cut land and structure condition

Septic system inspection

Potential safety hazard to be addressed
Assessment of bench cut area, and fuel tank until replacement

Continued maintenance until assumed replacement
Replacement budgeted for 2024

Options for replacement or repair to be reviewed
Assessment of trail and fence for repairs or replacement
Deterioration of concrete known, continued inspections to
monitor

On going data collection using scope to be purchased

Current drainage issue, assessment in conjunction with road
surface

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 |Page 142

Schedule

2024

2025

2025
2027

2024

2024

2027

2029

2024

2024

2028

Resource

Contracted

Contracted

In house
Contracted

In house

Contracted

In house

In house

In house

In house

Contracted



Table 15: Proposed asset condition assessment schedule — cont’d

Asset group

Asset description

Culvert Under Turtlehead Rd west of
Belcarra Bay Rd

Ditch approximately 4653 Belcarra
Bay Rd

Culvert approximately 4653 Belcarra
Bay Rd

Approx 3700 - 3900 Marine Ave

Public Works paved area

Bedwell Bay at Kelly intersection

Gabion wall at intersection of Bedwell
Bay Rd and Kelly Rd

Gabion wall at intersection of Bedwell
Bay Rd and Main Ave

Turn around area, 4000 block Marine
Ave

Access road to Tatlow pump station

Inspection procedures
Known issue and condition, bottom of culvert rusting out

Current drainage issue, assessment in conjunction with road
surface

Current drainage issue, assessment in conjunction with road
surface

Repaving to be performed in 2024

Options for repair or replacement to be reviewed

Road surface and base condition assessment

Gabion wall and adjoining land assessment

Gabion wall and adjoining land assessment

Road surface and base condition assessment

Assessment of gravel roadway for paving

Schedule

2026

2028

2028

2024

2024

2025

2025

2026

2027

2027

Resource

In house

Contracted

Contracted

Contracted

In house

Contracted

Contracted

Contracted

Contracted

Contracted

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 143




Table 15: Proposed asset condition assessment schedule —cont’d

Asset group Asset description Inspection procedures Schedule Resource

Bedwell bay Rd from Midden to

Belcarra Bay Rd Road surface and base condition assessment 2028 Contracted
Belcarra bay Rd south of Turtlehead Road surface and base condition assessment 2028 Contracted
4700 block Belcarra Bay Rd Road surface and base condition assessment 2028 Contracted
Bottom of Kelly Rd Road surface and base condition assessment 2028 Contracted
Belcarra Bay Rd before Whiskey Road surface and base condition assessment 2029 Contracted
Cove Lane

Bedwell bay Rd from Midden to
Belcarra Bay Rd Road surface and base condition assessment 2028 Contracted

Belcarra Bay Rd between turtlehead

and Salish Road surface and base condition assessment 2029 Contracted
Belcarra Bay Rd north of Salish Road surface and base condition assessment 2029 Contracted
End of Coombe Lane Road surface and base condition assessment 2029 Contracted
Senkler Road Bridge Continued inspection to ensure longevity of high value asset 2029 In house

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 |Page 144



Table 15: Proposed asset condition assessment schedule —cont’d

Asset group Asset description Inspection procedures Schedule Resource
4000 Marine Ave Road surface and base condition assessment 2030 Contracted
Approx 4900 Robson Rd Road surface and base condition assessment 2030 Contracted
All Young Rd Road surface and base condition assessment 2030 Contracted
Water supply pipe across Burrard To be completed as part of standard 5 year inspection term 2024 Contracted
Inlet (1)

Water supply pipe across Burrard To be completed as part of standard 5 year inspection term 2024 Contracted
Inlet (2)

Isolation valve on Transmission pipe To be completed as part of standard 5 year inspection term 2024 Contracted
from DNV

Isolation valve on Transmission pipe To be completed as part of standard 5 year inspection term 2024 Contracted
from DNV

PVC pipe old gravity side below main Inspection and scope of piping to determine condition and 2028 In house
Ave and Tatlow reservoir material

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 145



Cost Estimates

It should be noted that the replacement cost of assets as shown in the Asset Management

Plan are rough projections of asset value in 2023 dollars. Typically, a default per unit replacement value
was applied. For example, a set dollar amount per meter of water pipe or set dollar amount per square
meter of roads surface. These values are generated as a base line and evolve with input from all users of
the Civitas data schema. For high value assets such as buildings and water reservoir tanks, a more
detailed assessment is done, values are based on available external sources such as insurance reports,
previous assessments and then confirmed with staff. These estimates provide an indication of the order
of magnitude of cost for planning purposes. As such the costs should be evaluated and updated
annually to check for reasonability. Essentially these estimates are intended to provide a comparative,
broad basis for decision-making and not reflect the true, accurate costs of undertaking the projects.

Asset Management Next Steps

Currently all data captured is stored in Landinfo's Civitas data schema, which can be viewed on the
Myciviatas web viewer and edited using QGIS open-source software. The data can be made available in
various forms which in turn can be integrated into ArcGlIS.

Data maintenance is a key component of the integrity of the Asset Management information within GIS.
The availability of accurate and timely information ensures the success of Asset Management Planning.
Moving forward, a primary focus will be on the maintenance of the data and a procedure will be put in
place to ensure that data is updated on a regular basis. The diagram below shows the proposed
workflow to be implemented.

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 146



Staff will be responsible for identifying and collecting new and updated asset and

infrastructure information. As-built drawings, if available, are typically the starting point. However, as-
built drawings are not always available and do not always reflect the situation on the ground. Also,
information such as the condition of infrastructure cannot be extracted from as-built drawings.

The capture of data in the field using a mobile application is the most effective method if data is not
available from as-built drawings. Mergin Maps, an open-source mobile application, is the recommended
software to use. It is proposed that Operations staff install Mergin Maps on their mobile phones and
capture (or verify) data while onsite. The data capture is then uploaded to a hosted server. Landinfo will
review data to ensure accuracy and then make the required changes to the master data set (see
diagram below).

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 | Page 147



Operator downloads or syncs the latest
version of the Mergin Maps project on
their mobile device.

Landinfo update the Mergin Map project
base layers with newest data from Mycivitas
database.

Projectupdated

Data

Updates updated

made

On their mobile device, data is captured
in a temporary layers. Field operators add
features or provide updates to condition,

location, service records and photos.

Landinfo reviews temporary layers and update
Mycivitas master database with data captured
in the field.

Data synced

Village of Belcarra | Road Map to Financial Sustainability | December 2023 |Page 148



	4.1 Edward Van den Berg of LandInfo Technologies, presentation regarding the Village of Belcarra Asset Management (AM) data/information including the capabilities and functionality of AM with the geographic information system (GIS)
	4.2 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultation, PowerPoint presentation regarding the Village of Belcarra’s Road Map to Financial Sustainability.
	4.3 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated December 6, 2023 regarding the Draft Financial Sustainability Report - The Village of Belcarra’s Road Map to Financial Sustainability
	3.1  2023 06 17 Finance Standing Committee Meeting Minutes.pdf
	4.1 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated July 17, 2023 regarding budget variances for the period ending June 30, 2023.
	Appendix "D" – Capital Budget Review
	That the report on the Terms of Reference Village of Belcarra Integrated Long-Term (15-Year) Financial Plan & Related Community Financial Sustainability be forwarded to the July 24, 2023 Regular Council Meeting; and further
	That the Finance Standing Committee recommend that the Terms of Reference for the Village of Belcarra Integrated Long-Term (15-Year) Financial Plan & Related Community Financial Sustainability Report be approved by Council.
	4.3 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, verbal report regarding Implementing Financial Plan amendments via Council motions.
	The Financial Consultant advised on the importance of financial plan amendments being done through motions of Council.
	4.4 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, verbal report regarding budgeting practices for capital projects and operations Including the use of contingencies.
	The Financial Consultant spoke on budgeting practices for capital projects and operations in local government.  He advised on budgeting for revenues and expenses.  He also advised on the use of a stabilization fund which can be used to offset risk and...
	Certified Correct:

	4.3  Finance Standing Committe Financial Sustainability Staff Report.pdf
	FINANCE STANDING COMMITEE REPORT
	Date: December 6, 2023
	From: Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant
	Recommendation:
	That the below steps be followed in terms of the Village’s draft Financial Sustainability Report or Road Map:
	Purpose:
	Background:
	Steps:
	Asset Management and Financial Sustainability:
	Summary:
	Attachment:
	 Draft Financial Sustainability Report - The Village of Belcarra’s Road Map to Financial Sustainability

	Village of Belcarra Financial Sustainability Report v19 Final Draft KB Dec 1 v2.pdf
	Acknowledgements
	Scope of Work and Limitations
	Executive Summary
	Background
	Organizational Flowchart
	Community
	Strategic Direction
	Strategic Plan
	Asset Management Plans
	Official Community Plan (OCP)
	Financial Policies & Guiding Tenets

	Economic Outlook & External Environment
	Operations & Financial Condition
	Operations
	Financial Overview
	Revenues & Expenses
	General Operating Fund
	Water Operating Fund
	WARD Operating Fund

	Debt & Reserves
	Debt
	Reserves, Surpluses & Deferred Revenue

	Property Taxes & Utility Rates
	Growth & Development

	Asset Management Plan & Funding
	Overview
	Funding Levels & Reserves
	Accumulated Infrastructure Funding Gap
	Funding Recommendations Asset Management (AM)

	Integrated Long-Term (15-Year) Financial Plans
	General Operating Fund
	Water Operating Fund
	WARD Operating Fund
	Long-Term (15-year) Capital Plans Overview
	General Capital Plan
	Water Capital Plan
	WARD Capital Plan

	Budget/Financial Plan Scenarios
	Road Map to Financial Sustainability
	Financial Policies & Practices
	Summarized Recommendations for Financial Sustainability

	Appendix “A” - Financial Planning Assumptions & Sensitivities
	Appendix “B” – Glossary of Terms
	Appendix “C” – Detailed Long-Term (15-Year) General Operating Fund Financial Plan
	Appendix “D” – Detailed Long-Term (15-Year) Water Operating Fund Financial Plan
	Appendix “E” – Detailed Long-Term (15-Year) WARD Operating Fund Financial Plan
	Appendix “F” – Detailed Long-Term (15-Year) Capital Plans
	Appendix “G” – Graph, Map and Table Index
	Appendix “H” – Asset Management Plan
	Asset Management Plan Introduction & Background
	Introduction to Asset Management
	Purpose of Asset Management Plan – Alignment of Long-Term Funding
	Asset Management Scope of Work
	Key Assumptions for Asset Management
	Glossary of Asset Management Terms

	Inputs into Asset Management Plan
	Overview of Assets/Infrastructure
	Inventory Valuation
	Sustainable Annual Funding

	Detailed Inventory of Assets/Infrastructure
	Land & Natural Assets
	Buildings, Structures & Components
	Equipment
	Fleet Vehicles
	Information Systems
	Multi-Use Path, Trail & Road Shoulder (MTRS) Network
	Transportation Infrastructure
	Water Distribution & Treatment

	Asset Condition Assessment Schedule Report
	Cost Estimates
	Asset Management Next Steps




